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PART |
Item 1. Business

Forward-Looking Statements
Certain statements under the sections entitledk“Raxtors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analydigimancial Condition and Results of Operations”
and “Business” and elsewhere in this Form 10-K titute forwardlooking statements within the meaning of the Pev@eécurities Litigation Reform Act
1995. Generally, you can identify forward-lookingitements by terms such as “project”, “outlookdrget”, “may,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “seek,”
“expect,” “plan,” “intend,” “forecast,” “anticipat® “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” likely,” “goal,” “strategy,” “future,” “maintain,” anc
“continue” or the negative of these terms or otbemparable terminology. Examples of forward-lookstgtements in this Form ¥}0-include, amon
others, statements we make regarding:
e Future market conditions.
e Expected operating results, such as maintaining S@g&a percentage of gross profit in the upper 688ge and retaining, on a same store t
50% of each incremental gross profit dollar afteducting SG&A expense.
Anticipated levels of capital expenditures in thiire.
Our strategies for customer retention, growthrketgposition, financial results and risk managemen

” o "o "o

n o LIS " ou " ow

The forward-looking statements contained in thisnFd.0K involve known and unknown risks, uncertaintiesl aituations that may cause our ac
results, level of activity, performance or achieests to be materially different from any futureulés levels of activity, performance or achievets
expressed or implied by these statements. Sontedfrtportant factors that could cause actual resoltiffer from our expectations are discusselart 11,
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofiRaial Condition and Results of Operations andart P Item 1A. Risk Factors of this Form KDanc
from time to time in our other filings with the SEC

By their nature, forwardboking statements involve risks and uncertaintiesause they relate to events that depend on citences that may or may
occur in the future. While we believe that the etptions reflected in the forwatdeking statements are reasonable, we cannot gieardnture result
levels of activity, performance or achievements] aar actual results of operations, financial ctadiand liquidity and development of the industrie
which we operate may differ materially from thosada in or suggested by the forward-looking statémienthis Form 1. You should not place und
reliance on these forward-looking statements. Asryéardiooking statement speaks only as of the date ortwiiis made. We assume no obligatio
update or revise any forward-looking statement.

Overview

We are a leading operator of automotive franchises a retailer of new and used vehicles and rels¢edces. As of February 21, 2014, we offere
brands of new vehicles and all brands of used lehio 96 stores in the United States and onlirigthia.com. We sell new and used cars and replace
parts; provide vehicle maintenance, warranty, pairdt repair services; arrange related financing;satl service contracts, vehicle protection praslanc
credit insurance.

Our dealerships are primarily located throughowt YWestern and Midwestern regions of the UnitedeStatVe target midized regional markets 1
domestic and import franchises and metropolitanketarfor luxury franchises. We believe this strategables brand exclusivity with insulation fr
competition with the same franchise in the market.




The following table sets forth information aboudrsss that were part of our continuing operationsfa3ecember 31, 2013:

Number of Percent of
State Stores 2013 Revenue

Texas 15 24.5%
Oregon 23 21.€
California 14 10.7
Montana 8 8.€
Washington 7 8.1
Alaska 8 7.€
Idaho 5 4.
lowa 5 4.
Nevade 4 4.8
North Dakote 3 2.4
New Mexico 2 1.€

Total 94 100.(%

Business Strategy and Operations

Our mission statement is: “Driven by our employaged preferred by our customers, Lithia is the legdiutomotive retailer in each of our marketA/é
offer customers personal, convenient, flexible peatized service combined with the large companyaathges of selection, competitive pricing, bi
access to financing, and warranties. We strivedfeersification in our products, services, brandd geographic locations to insulate us from marisk
and to maintain profitability. We have developeckatralized support structure to reduce store ladalinistrative functions. This allows store persairtc
focus on providing a positive customer experieMZith our management information systems and cédyperformed administrative functions in Medfc
Oregon, we seek to gain economies of scale frondealership network.

We target midsized regional markets for domestic and importdhiges and metropolitan markets for luxury franesidVe believe this strategy ena
brand exclusivity with minimal competition from ethdealerships with the same franchise in the ma¥Ke offer a variety of luxury, import and dome
new vehicle brands and models, reducing our depeeden any one manufacturer and our susceptibditsthanging consumer preferences. Encomps
economy and luxury cars, sport utility vehicles {&)) crossovers, minivans and trucks, we beliewveboand mix is wellsuited to what customers dem
in the markets we serve. Our new vehicle unit nfis domestic, 39% import and 10% luxury aligmaikirly with national market share, which v
45%, 48% and 7%, respectively, for the year endeceihber 31, 2013.

We have centralized many administrative functiomsstreamline store level operations. Accounts playadiccounts receivable, credit and collecti
accounting and taxes, payroll and benefits, infaionatechnology, legal, human resources, persodeetlopment, treasury, cash management, adve
and marketing are all centralized at our corpohadquarters. The reduction of administrative fionstat our stores allows our local managers tadam
customerfacing opportunities to generate increased reverunek gross profit. Our operations are supportecotny dedicated training and persor
development program, which shares best practicessiour dealership network and seeks to develpptote management talent.

Operations are structured to promote an entrepriath@nvironment at the dealership level. Eachessogeneral manager and department managers
assistance from regional and corporate managementesponsible for developing retail models trefgym in their communities. They are the leada
driving dealership operations, personnel develognmeanufacturer relationships, store culture andrftial performance.




During 2013, we focused on the following areasdisieve our mission:

e increasing revenues in all business lines;

e capturing a greater percentage of overall neviclelales in our local markets;

e capitalizing on a used vehicle market that is apipnately three times larger than the new vehiclekaiaby increasing sales of manufact
certified pre-owned used vehicles; late model, leméeage vehicles; and value autos, which arerphigher mileage vehicles;
growing our service, body and parts revenuesds in operation increase;
leveraging our cost structure as revenues inere@ade maintaining fixed costs;
diversifying our franchise mix through acquisit&
integrating acquired stores to achieve targetagms;
increasing our return to investors through dimidieand strategic share buy backs;
utilizing prudent cash management, including &tivey capital to produce accretive returns; and
increasing leveragability of the balance shegrépare for future expansion opportunities.

We believe our cost structure can be leveragealas fvels improve. Our selling, general and adstrative (“SG&A”) expense as a percentage of ¢
profit improved to 67.7% in 2013 from 69.3% in 202&justing for noneore items in both 2013 and 2012, our adjusted S@&pense as a percentag
gross profit in 2013 was 67.2%, compared to 69.492012. See “Non-GAAP Reconciliationfr more details. We continue to target SG&A
percentage of gross profit in the upper 60% raagmal we set in the second half of 2013.

We monitor how efficiently we leverage our costisture by evaluating throughput, which is calcudats the percentage of incremental gross profiat
we retain after deducting increases in SG&A expehRsethe years ended December 31, 2013 and 20t 2paremental throughput was 41.4% and 39
respectively. Adjusting for non-core items, ourustigd throughput in 2013 was 46.2% and in 2012 48a3%. See “Non-GAAP Reconciliation§dr
additional information.

Throughput contributions for newly opened or acegiistores are on a “first dollabasis for the first twelve months of operations &mlcally reduc
overall throughput. In the first year of operati@anstores throughput is equal to the inverse of their SG&Aa percentage of gross profit. For examg
store which achieves SG&A as a percentage of gnagi of 70% will have throughput of 30% in thesfi year of operation.

In 2013, we acquired six stores and opened onest@w. In 2012, we acquired four stores and opémedew stores. Adjusting to remove these locat
our throughput contribution on a same store basis B1.4% and 51.2% for the years ended Decembe&t03B, and 2012, respectively. We continu
target a same store throughput contribution of agdprately 50% in 2014.

We continuously evaluate our portfolio of franclsise balance our brand mix, minimize exposure tpare franchise and achieve financial returnshé
past three years, we spent $186.3 million to aeqldr stores which increased revenue and diversifiggortfolio. Additionally, we divest stores theat
not expected to meet our financial return requirgseDivestiture activity generated $30.5 milliamridg the past three years.

New Vehicles

In 2013, we sold 66,857 new vehicles, generatirig B8 our gross profit for the year. New vehicleesaalso have the potential to create incrementdit
opportunities through manufacturer incentives, leesé trade-in vehicles, sale of thipdrty financing, vehicle service and insurance remts, and futu
service and repair work.




In 2013, we represented 28 domestic and importdsraanging from economy to luxury cars, SUVs, ausss, minivans and light trucks.

Percent of Percent of
2013 New Vehicle 2013 New Vehicle
Manufacturer Revenue Gross Profit
Chrysler, Jeep, Dodge 29.6% 28.1%
Chevrolet, Cadillac, GMC, Buick 17.2 18.€
Toyota, Scion 11.€ 11.1
BMW, MINI 9.€ 10.C
Honda, Acura 6.7 6.8
Ford, Lincoln 6.S 6.C
Subaru 5.2 4.8
Mercedes, smart 4.8 4.5
Hyundai 2.t 3.1
Nissan 2.2 2.5
Volkswagen, Audi 1.¢ 2.C
Kia 0.7 0.8
Porsche 04 0.4
Mazda 0.3 04
Mitsubishi @ 0.1
Fiat * *
Volvo * *
Total 100.(9 100.(9%

* Less than 0.1%

We purchase our new car inventory directly from ofaaturers, who generally allocate new vehiclesttyes based on availability, monthly sales
market area. Accordingly, we rely on the manufaaturto provide us with vehicles that meet consudegnand at suitable locations, with approp
guantities and prices. However, if high demand elekiare in short supply, we exchange vehicles wfitier automotive retailers and between our
stores to accommodate customer demand and to kdlarentory.

Used Vehicles
At each new vehicle store, we also sell used vebidh 2013, retail used vehicle sales generatée &bur gross profit.

Our used vehicle operations give us an opportuaity

generate sales to customers financially unabtisimclined to purchase a new vehicle;
generate sales of vehicle brands other tharttine’s new vehicle franchise;

increase new and used vehicle sales by aggréspiwesuing customer trade-ins; and
increase finance and insurance revenues andsemd parts sales.

We classify our used vehicles in three categorrenufacturer certified pre-owned used vehicleg mbdel, lowemileage vehicles; and value autos.
offer manufacturer certified pr@vned used vehicles at most of our franchised d#ifes. These vehicles undergo additional recaditg and receive i
extended factory-provided warranty. Late model,domileage vehicles are reconditioned and offer aiditertified warranty. Value autos are older, hi
mileage vehicles that undergo a safety check dadsar degree of reconditioning. Value autos diered to customers who require a less expensiviele
or a lower monthly payment.

We acquire our used vehicles through customer 4{irmgjepurchases from ndrthia stores, independent vehicle wholesalers;gbei parties and at clos
auctions.




Our nearterm goal for used vehicles is to retail an averay@5 units per store per month. In 2013, ouresta@old an average of 53 retail used unit:
month. We believe used vehicles represent a sigmifiarea for organic growth. As new vehicle sghesvth rates return to historical levels and weticore
our focus on growing used retail sales, we bel@mwelong-term target is achievable.

Wholesale transactions result from vehicles we raoauired via tradez from customers or vehicles we have attemptesetbvia retail that we elect
dispose of due to inventory age or other factosspart of our used vehicle strategy, we have cdrated on directing more lowgriced, older vehicles
retail sale rather than wholesale disposal.

Vehicle Financing, Service Contracts and Other Praats
As part of the vehicle sales process, we assiatranging customer financing options as well asroéixtended warranties, insurance contracts anidle
and theft protection products. The sale of themmstgenerated 22% of our gross profit.

We believe that arranging financing is an imporiaantt of our ability to sell vehicles and relatadgucts and services. Our sales personnel andcinamn
insurance managers receive training in securingomey financing and possess extensive knowledgavaiflable financing alternatives. We attemg
arrange financing for every vehicle we sell and affer customers financing on a “same dadgdsis, giving us an advantage, particularly ovealkn
competitors who do not generate enough salesrachtiur breadth of finance sources.

We earn a commission on each finance, service @mutance contract we write and subsequently selltturdparty. We normally arrange financing
customers by selling the contracts to outside smuon a non-recourse basis to avoid the risk afudief

We were able to arrange financing on 78% of theckes we sold during 2013, compared to 76% in 2@2. presence in multiple markets and chang
technology surrounding the credit application pesckave allowed us to utilize a larger networkenfdlers across a broader geographic area. Addiic
we continue to see the availability of consumeditrexpand with lenders increasing the loarvétie amount available to most customers. Thedes
afford us the opportunity to sell additional or maromprehensive products, while remaining withitoan-tovalue framework acceptable to our re
customer lenders.

We also market thirgharty extended warranty contracts, insurance coatsti@nd vehicle and theft protection products toaustomers. These products
services yield higher profit margins than vehicies and contribute significantly to our profitétyil Extended warranty and service contracts fdricles
provide coverage for certain repairs beyond thetitum or scope of the manufactusesvarranty. We believe the sale of extended waesnservic
contracts and vehicle and theft protection prodiratseases our service and parts business. Addltigrthese products build a customer base forré
repair work to our locations.

When customers finance an automobile purchase, fige thhem life, accident and disability insuranceverage, as well as guaranteed auto prote
(“gap”) coverage that provides protection from loss inaliby the difference in the amount owed and the amceived under a comprehensive insur
claim. We receive a commission on each policy sold.

We offer a lifetime lube, oil and filter (“LOF"3ervice, which, in 2013, was purchased by 36% oft@al new and used vehicle buyers. This servitere
customers prepay for their LOF services, helpsetsin customers by building customer loyalty andvjates opportunities for selling additional rou
maintenance items and generating repeat servidedsss In 2013, we sold an average of $48 of awditimaintenance on each lifetime LOF servict
performed.




Service, Body and Part

In 2013, our service, body and parts operationggged 29% of our gross profit. Our service, bodlg parts operations are an integral part of estaibl
customer loyalty and contribute significantly tor @verall revenue and profits. We provide parts sewice for the new vehicle brands sold by ourestoa
well as service most other makes and models.

The service and parts business provides importg@at revenues to our stores, which we seek to grganically. Customer pay revenues represent
for vehicle maintenance and service performed baranakes and models, as well as vehicles thatfa#lee outside of the manufacturer warranty coge
period. We believe increasing our product and serwaiferings for customers differentiates us. Mdireersified services with access to a variety atg
enable us to provide a better experience for ostotners. Our service and parts revenues benefit fhe increases we have seen in new vehicle saé
the last few years as there are a greater numtdateomodel vehicles in operation, which tend itiranchised dealership locations more frequeifidy
older vehicles due to the manufacturer warrantyoperAdditionally, certain franchises provide raéimaintenance, such as oil changes, for two tc
years after a vehicle is sold, which provides tdufe warranty work.

We focus on growing our customer pay business aaken our parts and service products by notifyimgers when their vehicles are due for peri
service. This encourages preventive maintenanbem#ttan posbreakdown repairs. The number of customers whohasee our lifetime LOF service he
to improve customer loyalty and provides opporigsifor repeat parts and service business.

Revenues from the service and parts departmentsaatieularly important during economic downturas,owners tend to repair their existing vehicléisen
than buy new vehicles during such periods. Thigigdhr mitigates the effects of a drop in new vedisales that may occur in a recessionary ecor
environment.

We believe body shops provide an attractive oppdstuo grow our business, and we continue to eatalypotential locations to expand. We curre
operate 15 collision repair centers: four in Texasr in Oregon; two in Idaho; and one each in R#gdVashington, Montana, lowa and Nevada.

Marketing

We emphasize customer satisfaction and we redlatecustomer retention is critical to our succ¥gs.want our customergxperiences to be satisfying
that they refer us to their families and friendse Witilize an owner marketing strategy consistinglafabase analysis, email, traditional mail andng
contact to maintain regular communication and gdkedback.

To increase awareness and traffic at our storesemploy a combination of traditional, digitahd social media to reach potential customers.|
advertising expense, net of manufacturer credits, $89.6 million in 2013, $31.9 million in 2012 a$23.9 million in 2011. In 2013, approximately 37%
those funds were spent in traditional media and 8&¥e spent in digital and owner communications athér media outlets. In all of our communicatir
we seek to convey the promise of a positive custaxperience, competitive pricing and wide selectio

Certain advertising and marketing expendituresoffiset by manufacturer cooperative programs whéjuire us to submit requests for reimburseme
manufacturers for qualifying advertising expendigirThese advertising credits are not tied to fipa@hicles and are earned as qualifying expense
incurred. These reimbursements are recognizedradugtion of advertising expense. Manufacturer eoafive advertising credits were $11.8 millio
2013, $9.6 million in 2012 and $7.8 million in 2011




Many people now shop online before visiting oureaso We maintain websites for all of our stores arurporate site (Lithia.com) dedicated to getiray
customer leads for our stores. Today, our websiteble our customers to:
e locate our stores and identify the new vehiclnls sold at each store;
search new and pre-owned vehicle inventory;
view current pricing and specials;
calculate payments for purchase or lease;
obtain a value for their vehicle to trade or seliis;
submit credit applications;
shop for and order manufacturers’ vehicle parts;
schedule service appointments; and
provide feedback about their Lithia experience.

We also maintain mobile versions of our websited armobile application in anticipation of greateloption of mobile technology. Mobile traffic ni
accounts for 30% of our web traffic and all of Hites utilize responsive technology to enhance laaid tablet usage.

We post our inventory on major new and used veHisting services (cars.com, autotrader.com, kbh,cedmunds.com, eBay, craigslist, etc.) to r
online shoppers. We also employ search engine @atiion, search engine marketing and online displdyertising (including réargeting) to reach mc
online prospects.

Social influence marketing represents a cost-effeechethod to enhance our corporate reputationoamdtoresreputations, and increase vehicle sales
service. We are deploying tools and training to@uployees in ways that will help us listen to customers and create more advocates for Lithia.

We also encourage our stores to give back to thesd communities through financial and nfimancial participation in local charities and eterThroug!
Lithia4Kids, our initiative to increase employedwateerism and community involvement, we focusithpact of our contributions on projects that sug
opportunities and the development of young people.

Franchise Agreements
Each of our stores operates under a separate agmeéifranchise Agreement”) with the manufacturethe new vehicle brand it sells.

Typical automobile Franchise Agreements specifyldleations within a designated market area at wttiehstore may sell vehicles and related produad
perform approved services. The designation of suehs and the allocation of new vehicles amongstare at the discretion of the manufacturer. Frige
Agreements do not, however, guarantee exclusivitlyimva specified territory.

A Franchise Agreement may impose requirements @stiire with respect to:
e facilities and equipment;

inventories of vehicles and parts;

minimum working capital;

training of personnel; and

performance standards for market share and cestsatisfaction.

Each manufacturer closely monitors compliance withse requirements and requires each store to subomthly financial statements. Franct
Agreements also grant a store the right to use digplay manufacturerstrademarks, service marks and designs in the maapgeroved by ea
manufacturer.




We have determined the useful life of a FranchigeeBment is indefinite, even though certain Fraseligreements are renewed after one to six yai
our experience, agreements are routinely renewédouti substantial cost and there are legal remedidselp prevent termination. Certain Franc
Agreements, including those with Ford and Chrysiare no termination date. In addition, state fréselaws protect franchised automotive retaildrelel
certain laws, a manufacturer may not terminateartd renew a franchise without good cause or gnéany reasonable changes in the capital struot
financing of a store.

The typical Franchise Agreement provides for egfynination or non-renewal by the manufacturer upon
e achange of management or ownership without naahurfer consent;
insolvency or bankruptcy of the dealer;
death or incapacity of the dealer/manager;
conviction of a dealer/manager or owner of cartaimes;
misrepresentation of certain sales or inventofgrmation by the store, dealer/manager or ownéneéamanufacturer;
failure to adequately operate the store;
failure to maintain any license, permit or authation required for the conduct of business;
poor market share; or
low customer satisfaction index scores.

Franchise Agreements generally provide for prioittem notice before a franchise may be terminatedeu most circumstances. We also sign m
framework agreements with most manufacturers thpose additional requirements on our stores. ®ee 1A, “Risk Factors.”

Competition
The retail automotive business is highly competitiCurrently, there are approximately 17,800 dedlethe United States, many of whom are indepet
stores managed by individuals, families or smaditgroups. We compete primarily with other autdive retailers, both publicly- and privately-held.

Vehicle manufacturers have designated specific etandy and sales areas within which only one deaflea vehicle brand may operate. In addition,
Franchise Agreements typically limit our ability doquire multiple dealerships of a given brand inith particular market area. Certain state frarctzs:
also restrict us from relocating our dealershipsstablishing new dealerships of a particular thravithin any area that is served by another deaittr the
same brand. To the extent that a market has maultiphlers of a particular brand, as certain masket®perate in do, we are subject to significatran
brand competition.

We are larger and have more financial resources thast private automotive retailers with which werently compete in the majority of our regic
markets. We compete directly with retailers withigkr or greater resources in markets such as|8g#tashington; Spokane, Washington; Anchoi
Alaska; Portland, Oregon and Walnut Creek, Califorif we enter other new markets, we may face aditgrs that are larger or have access to gr
financial resources. We do not have any cost adgenin purchasing new vehicles from manufactules.rely on advertising and merchandising, pric
our customer guarantees and sales model, ouresglestise, service reputation and the locationunfstores to sell new vehicles.




Regulation

Automotive and Other Laws and Regulatio

We operate in a highly regulated industry. A numbiestate and federal laws and regulations affectbusiness. In every state in which we operate
must obtain various licenses to operate our bus@sgsncluding dealer, sales and finance and insaricenses issued by state regulatory autha
Numerous laws and regulations govern our businashjding those relating to our sales, operatidimgncing, insurance, advertising and employr
practices. These laws and regulations include $tatehise laws and regulations, consumer protedtiws, privacy laws, escheatment laws, amtire)
laundering laws and federal and state wage-hotirdatrimination and other employment practicesda

Our financing activities with customers are subjeatumerous federal, state and local laws andagguos. In 2013, there was an increase in acthatster
to oversight of consumer lending by the Consumeafkéial Protection Bureau (CFPB), which has bresilatory powers. The CFPB does not have ¢
authority over automotive dealers; however, itsutaipn of automotive finance companies and otliwearfcial institutions could affect our financ
activities. Claims arising out of actual or allegéidlations of law may be asserted against us orsbores by individuals, a class of individuals
governmental entities. These claims may expose sghificant damages or other penalties, includmgpcation or suspension of our licenses to ca
store operations and fines.

The vehicles we sell are subject to rules and egiguis of various federal and state regulatory eigsn

Environmental, Health, and Safety Laws and Regutatis

Our operations involve the use, handling, storagkantracting for recycling and/or disposal of engls such as motor oil and filters, transmisdloits,
antifreeze, refrigerants, paints, thinners, batgrcleaning products, lubricants, degreasing agérgs and fuel. Consequently, our businessbgestito
complex variety of federal, state and local requieats that regulate the environment and publictheeld safety.

Most of our stores use above ground storage tamik,to a lesser extent, underground storage taniksarily for petroleunbased products. Storage ta
are subject to periodic testing, containment, ugigghand removal under the Resource ConservatidrRacovery Act and its state law counterparts. IGlea
up or other remedial action may be necessary inetlent of leaks or other discharges from storagéstar other sources. In addition, water qu
protection programs under the federal Water Poltu€ontrol Act (commonly known as the Clean Watet) Athe Safe Drinking Water Act and compar:
state and local programs govern certain disch&drges our operations. Similarly, certain air emissdrom operations, such as auto body painting, be
subject to the federal Clean Air Act and relateatestand local laws. Health and safety standardswgated by the Occupational Safety and He
Administration of the United States Department abbr and related state agencies also apply.

Certain stores may become a party to proceedingsruthe Comprehensive Environmental Response, Qusagien, and Liability Act, or CERCL.

typically in connection with materials that werexs® former recycling, treatment and/or disposailities owned and operated by independent busés
The remediation or clean-up of facilities where thiease of a regulated hazardous substance odésmequired under CERCLA and other laws.
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We incur certain costs to comply with applicableimnmental, health and safety laws and regulatianthe ordinary course of our business. We d¢
anticipate, however, that the costs of such compéiawill have a material adverse effect on our ess, results of operations, cash flows or find
condition, although such outcome is possible gitem nature of our operations and the extensiveremwiental, public health and safety regula
framework. We may become aware of minor contanonast certain of our facilities, and we conducteistigations and/or remediation at propertie
needed. In certain cases, the current or priorgstppwner may conduct the investigation and/oragiation or we have been indemnified by eithe
current or prior property owner for such contanioratWe do not currently expect to incur significansts for the remediation. However, no assuracak
be given that material environmental commitmentsamtingencies will not arise in the future, ortttteey do not already exist but are unknown to us.

Employees
As of December 31, 2013, we employed approximd&el@0 persons on a full-time equivalent basis.

Seasonality and Quarterly Fluctuations

Historically, our sales have been lower in thetfinsd fourth quarters of each year due to conspmerhasing patterns during the holiday seasoneineh
weather in certain of our markets and the reducedhber of business days during the holiday seasera fesult, financial performance is expected :
lower during the first and fourth quarters thaningithe second and third quarters of each fiscat.yore recently, our franchise diversificatiordasos
control efforts have moderated the significanceoof seasonality. We believe that interest rateglseof consumer debt, consumer confidence
manufacturer sales incentives, as well as geneoalognic conditions, also contribute to fluctuatiomsales and operating results.

Available Information and NYSE Compliance

We file annual, quarterly and special reports, pretatements and other information with the Seesriand Exchange Commission (“SEQifder thi
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (thelf&xge Act”).You may inspect and copy our reports, proxy statesjeand other information fili
with the SEC at the SEC'’s Public Reference Roorfil0& F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Pleadlettta SEC at 1-800-SEQ330 for furthe
information on the Public Reference Room. The SEhtains an Internet Web site at http://www.sec.girere you may access copies of our SEC fil
We also make available free of charge, on our weliwww.lithia.com, our annual reports on FormKl@uarterly reports on Form 1Q; current repor
on Form 8K, and amendments to those reports filed or fuedspursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exghahct, as soon as reasonably practic
after they are filed electronically with the SEQeTinformation found on our website is not partto§ Form 10-K.You may also obtain copies of th
reports by contacting Investor Relations at 877-3384.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks describeldl before making an investment decision. The dgscribed below are not the only ones facing our
company. Additional risks not presently known touthat we currently deem immaterial may also impar business operations.

Risks related to our business

Our business will be harmed if overall consumer dand suffers from a severe or sustained downturn.

Our business is heavily dependent on consumer dienaah preferences. A downturn in overall levelea@fisumer spending may materially and adve
affect our revenues. Retail vehicle sales are cgchnd historically have experienced periodic diowrs characterized by oversupply and weak der
These cycles are often dependent on general ecoraumditions and consumer confidence, as well adetbel of discretionary personal income and ¢

availability. Economic conditions may be anemicdorextended period of time, or deteriorate inftitere. This would have a material adverse effecbol
retail business, particularly sales of new and wadmobiles.
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Our business may be adversely affected by unfavteaionditions in our local markets, even if thoseralitions are not prominent nationally.

Our performance is subject to local economic, cditipe and other conditions prevailing in our varfogeographic areas. Our dealerships are cur
located in limited markets in 12 states, with satethe top three states accounting for approximd@% of our revenue in 2013. Our results of ofiers
therefore, depend substantially on general econoomiditions and consumer spending levels in thosekets and could be materially adversely affecd
the extent these markets experience sustained mdodownturns regardless of improvements in the €c&nomy overall.

Increasing competition among automotive retailersduces our profit margins on vehicle sales and teldbusinesses. Further, the use of the Interne
the car purchasing process could materially advdysaffect us.

Automobile retailing is a highly competitive busiise Our competitors include publicly and privatelyned dealerships, of which certain competitor:
larger and have greater financial and marketinguess than we have. Many of our competitors bellsame or similar makes of new and used vel
that we offer in our markets at competitive pricde do not have any cost advantage in purchasingvedaicles from manufacturers due to the volun
purchases or otherwise.

Our finance and insurance business and other detaisinesses, which have higher margins than séleew and used vehicles, are subject to s
competition from various financial institutions aother third parties.

The Internet has become a significant part of #lessprocess in our industry. Customers are usiadrternet to compare pricing for vehicles andtex
finance and insurance services, which may furttduce margins for new and used vehicles and pffofitelated finance and insurance services. Hrim
new vehicle sales are allowed to be conducted wittie involvement of franchised dealers, our bessncould be materially adversely affected. In i
other franchise groups have aligned themselves seétlices offered on the Internet or are investiegvily in the development of their own Intel
capabilities, which could materially adversely affeur business, results of operations, finan@aldition and cash flows.

Our Franchise Agreements do not grant us the axeluight to sell a manufacturerproduct within a given geographic area. Our raesror profitabilit
could be materially adversely affected if any of manufacturers award franchises to others in éimeesmarkets where we operate or if existing frasex
dealers increase their market share in our markets.

In addition, we may face increasingly significantrpetition as we strive to gain market share thincagguisitions or otherwise. Our operating margias
decline over time as we expand into markets wherelevnot have a leading position.

Increasing fuel prices change consumer demand. Sfgant increases in fuel prices can be expectedé¢duce vehicle sale:
Historically, in times of rapid increase in crudé and fuel prices, sales of vehicles have dropgedticularly in the short term, as the economywsl|
consumer confidence wanes and fuel costs become prnominent to the consumeibuying decision. In sustained periods of higliet €osts, consume

who do purchase vehicles tend to prefer smallererfiuel efficient vehicles (which typically havealer margins) or hybrid vehicles (which can be mitec
supply during these periods).

12




Additionally, a significant portion of our new vele revenue and gross profit is derived from dormmestnufacturers. These manufacturers have hisity
sold a higher percentage of trucks and SUVs thasoitror luxury brands. They may, therefore, exparéea more significant decline in sales in the &
that fuel prices increase.

A decline of available financing in the lending mket has adversely affected, and may continue toeadely affect, our vehicle sales volun

A significant portion of vehicle buyers finance ithpurchases of automobiles. Sphme lenders have historically provided financfiog consumers wh
for a variety of reasons, including poor creditdies and lack of down payment, do not have acmestore traditional finance sources. While we tuord
to see the availability of consumer credit expahlénders tighten their credit standards or thiera decline in the availability of credit in trending marke
the ability of these consumers to purchase vehictedd be limited, which could have a material adeeeffect on our business, results of operat
financial condition and cash flows.

Adverse conditions affecting one or more key mancttizrers may negatively impact our business, resufsoperations, financial condition and ca:
flows.

We depend on our manufacturers to provide a sugfphghicles which supports expected sales levetaahufacturers are unable to supply the needes
of vehicles, our financial performance may be aselgrimpacted.

We are subject to a concentration of risk in thengwf financial distress, including potential rgamization or bankruptcy, of a major vehicle mantifeer
We purchase substantially all of our new vehictesnf various manufacturers or distributors at thevailing prices available to all franchised deal@aui
sales volume could be materially adversely impabtethe manufacturers’ or distributors’ inability supply our stores with an adequate supply ofclefi

In January 2014, Fiat completed the buyout of Qkrydhis buyout allows the two manufacturers tsbine financial resources and gain technology
manufacturing synergies. Chrysler, which has beaefitable for the past few years, provides Fiathwfinancial resources. The ability of Fiat/Chrysie
maintain financial stability as a combined entibdauccessfully manufacture new products is unknairthis time. As such, no assurances can be ¢
our financial condition, results of operations @agh flows will not be adversely impacted in thefe.

In the event of a manufacturer or distributor baipkecy, we could be held liable for damages reladeproduct liability claims, intellectual propersyits o
other legal actions. These legal actions are tylgicirected towards the vehicle manufacturer anid customary for manufacturers to indemnify wsr
exposure related to any judgments associated hdtltlaims. However, if damages could not be calkétom the manufacturer or distributor, we cout
named in lawsuits and judgments could be levieihagas.

There can be no assurance that we will be abledoessfully address the risks described aboveasetiof the current economic circumstances and
environment.

Our success depends in large part upon the oved#mand for the particular lines of vehicles that @a of our stores sell and the ability of t
manufacturers to continue to deliver high qualitdefect-free vehicles.

Demand for our primary manufacturev&hicles, as well as the financial condition, mamagnt, marketing, production and distribution calfgs of thes:
manufacturers, can significantly affect our businé&s/ents that adversely affect a manufactarability to timely deliver new vehicles may adedysaffec
us by reducing our supply of popular new vehicled keading to lower sales in our stores during éhgariods than would otherwise occur. We deper
our manufacturers to deliver high-quality, defrele vehicles. If manufacturers experience futwality issues, our financial performance may beeasisy
impacted. In addition, the discontinuance of aipaldr brand could negatively impact our revenues profitability.
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Many new manufacturers are entering the automatiglastry. New companies have raised capital to yzedully electric vehicles or to license bat
technology to existing manufacturers. Tesla hasothetnated the ability to successfullgroduce electric vehicles to the marketplace efgpr manufacture
from China and India are producing significant vo&s of new vehicles and are entering the U.S. aledting partners to distribute their products. &es
the automotive market in the U.S. is mature andotreall level of new vehicle sales may not incesimsthe coming years, the success of new comps
will likely be at the expense of other, establisbeginds. This could have a material adverse impaciur success in the future.

Vehicle manufacturers would be adversely impactgdedonomic downturns or recessions, adverse fltions in currency exchange rates, signifi
declines in the sales of their new vehicles, ineeean interest rates, declines in their credihgat labor strikes or similar disruptions (incladiwithin thei
major suppliers), supply shortages or rising ravtemial costs, rising employee benefit costs, adv@rsblicity that may reduce consumer demand far
products, product defects, vehicle recall campailitiggation, poor product mix or unappealing veaidesign, or other adverse events. These and ke
could materially adversely affect any manufactaned limit its ability to profitably design, markgtroduce or distribute new vehicles, which, in furoulc
materially adversely affect our business, resdltgperations, financial condition and cash flows.

Additionally, federal and certain state laws maedatnimum levels of vehicle fuel economy and essabémission standards. These levels and star
could be increased in the future, including theunegl use of renewable energy sources. Such lawn ofcrease the costs of new vehicles, which wbe
expected to reduce demand. Further, changes ia thes could result in fewer vehicles available date by manufacturers unwilling or unable to cor
with the higher standards.

If manufacturers or distributors discontinue or chge sales incentives, warranties and other promo#ibprograms, our business, results of operatic
financial condition and cash flows may be materigladversely affectec

We depend upon the manufacturers and distributorsdles incentives, warranties and other progrfasare intended to promote new vehicle sal
support dealership profitability. Manufacturers aligtributors routinely make changes to their insenprograms. Key incentive programs include:
e customer rebates;
dealer incentives on new vehicles;
special financing rates on certified, pre-ownarsg
below-market financing on new vehicles and spde&sing terms; and
sponsorship of used vehicle sales by authorieedwehicle dealers.

Our financial condition could be materially advdysenpacted by a discontinuation or change in oanafacturers’ or distributorshcentive programs.
addition, certain manufacturers use a dealershiglisufacturer-determined customer satisfaction indeXCSI”, score as a factor governing participatio
incentive programs. To the extent we cannot meetimrmim score requirements, we may be precluded freeeiving certain incentives, which co
materially adversely affect our business, resudltgperations, financial condition and cash flows.
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The ability of our stores to make new vehicle saldspends in large part upon the manufacturers antierefore, any disruption or change in o
relationships could impact our business.

We depend on the manufacturers to provide us widbsirable mix of new vehicles. The most populdricles usually produce the highest profit mar
and are frequently in short supply. If we canndaabsufficient quantities of the most popular msdeur profitability may be adversely affectedleSao
less desirable models may reduce our profit margins

Each of our stores operates pursuant to a Franélgemement with each of the respective manufacsui@r which it serves as franchisee. Manufacti
exert significant control over our stores throufgh terms and conditions of their franchise agre¢sné&uch agreements contain provisions for terrian
or nontenewal for a variety of causes, including CSI ssoand sales and financial performance. From tominte, certain of our stores have failes
comply with certain provisions of their franchisgreements, and we cannot assure you that our stdltdse able to comply with these provisions ire
future. In addition, actions taken by a manufactuceexploit its bargaining position in negotiatitige terms of renewals of franchise agreemer
otherwise could also have a material adverse effecbur revenues and profitability. If a manufaeturerminates or fails to renew one or more of
significant franchise agreements or a large nurobeur franchise agreements, such action could bavaterial adverse effect on our business, reet
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our Franchise Agreements also specify that, exicepértain situations, we cannot operate a fraechisanother manufacturer in the same buildinghe
manufactures franchised store. This may require us to build feilities at a significant cost. Moreover, ouamufacturers generally require that the ¢
meet defined image standards. These commitments ceguire us to make significant capital expenaitu

Manufacturer stock ownership restrictions may impaur ability to maintain or renew franchise agreesnts or issue additional equit

Certain of our Franchise Agreements prohibit trarssbf ownership interests of a store or, in setbcases, its parent. The most prohibitive regiriavhict
could be imposed by various manufacturers, inclyidiionda/Acura, Hyundai, Mazda and Nissan, provtdag under certain circumstances, we may I
franchise if a person or entity acquires an owripréfiterest in us above a specified level (rangirmm 20% to 50% depending on the partic
manufactures restrictions and falling as low as 5% if anothghicle manufacturer is the entity acquiring thenevship interest) without the approval of
applicable manufacturer. Other restrictions inaarfFranchise Agreements with manufacturers, inouéord, GM, Honda/Acura and Toyota, provide
a change in control in the Company without priongent is a violation of our franchise or dealemfeavork agreement. Transactions in our stock b
stockholders or prospective stockholders are gépevatside of our control and may result in them@ation or norrenewal of one or more of ¢
franchises or impair our ability to negotiate neanthise agreements for dealerships we desirequairacn the future, which may have a material ask
effect on our business, results of operations,nfired condition and cash flows. These restrictior®y also prevent or deter a prospective acquimn
acquiring control of us or otherwise adversely eftbe market price of our Class A common stocknoit our ability to restructure our debt obligat®
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If state dealer laws are repealed or weakened, dealerships will be more susceptible to terminatioron-renewal or renegotiation of their franchis
agreements. Additionally, federal bankruptcy lawrcaverride protections afforded under state dedkaws.

State dealer laws generally provide that a manufactmay not terminate or refuse to renew a fragchgreement unless it has first provided the destle
written notice setting forth good cause and stathy grounds for termination or noenewal. Certain state dealer laws allow dealerSlégorotests ¢
petitions or attempt to comply with the manufactisreriteria within the notice period to avoid tte¥mination or nonrenewal. If dealer laws are repeale
the states in which we operate, manufacturers mable to terminate our franchises without prowgdilvance notice, an opportunity to cure or a shg
of good cause. Without the protection of state efekldws, it may also be more difficult to renew dranchise agreements upon expiration or on t
acceptable to us.

In addition, these laws restrict the ability of @abbile manufacturers to directly enter the ratadrket in the future. If manufacturers obtain théity to
directly retail vehicles and do so in our marketsch competition could have a material adverseceffe our business, results of operations, find
condition and cash flows.

As evidenced by the bankruptcy proceedings of I@ghysler and GM in 2009, state dealer laws do ff@ré continued protection from manufactt
terminations or nomenewal of franchise agreements. No assurancelecgiven that a manufacturer will not seek protectinder bankruptcy laws, or tf
in this event, they will not seek to terminate frhise rights held by us.

Import product restrictions and foreign trade riskaay impair our ability to sell foreign vehicles gfitably.

A significant portion of the vehicles we sell, asl\as certain major components of such vehiclesp@nufactured outside the United States. Accghy)
we are affected by import and export restrictiohgasious jurisdictions and are dependent, to ageextent, on general sogg@onomic conditions in, a
political relations with, a number of foreign cories. Additionally, fluctuations in currency exclygnrates may increase the price and adverselyt afia
sales of vehicles produced by foreign manufactudenports into the United States may also be a@eraffected by increased transportation costs
tariffs, quotas or duties, any of which could hawaaterial adverse effect on our business, restitiperations, financial condition and cash flows.

Environmental, health or safety regulations couldafie a material adverse effect on our business, hessaf operations, financial condition and ca:
flows or cause us to incur significant expenditure

We are subject to various federal, state and lesgironmental, health and safety regulations wigictern items such as the generation, storage, ingt
use, treatment, recycling, transportation, dispesel remediation of hazardous material and the stomisand discharge of hazardous material intt
environment. Under certain environmental regulaionpursuant to signed private contracts, we cbaltield responsible for all of the costs relatmgny
contamination at our present, or our previously eayrfacilities, and at third party waste disposiass We are aware of minor contamination at certd
our facilities, and we are in the process of cotidgdnvestigations and/or remediation at certaiopgrties. The current level of contamination iststha
we do not expect to incur significant costs for temediation. In certain cases, the current orrgsioperty owner is conducting the investigationl/ar
remediation or we have been indemnified by eitherdurrent or prior property owner for such contation. There can be no assurance that these ¢
will remediate, or continue to remediate, thesepprties or pay, or continue to pay, pursuant teghademnities. We are also required to obtain fis
from governmental authorities for certain operagioifi we violate or fail to fully comply with thesegulations or permits, we could be fined or otlise
sanctioned by regulators.
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Environmental, health and safety regulations areofméng increasingly stringent. There can be no rasme that the cost of compliance with tt
regulations will not result in a material adversiea on our results of operations or financial @iion. Further, no assurances can be given thditiadal
environmental, health or safety matters will naseior new conditions or facts will not developthie future at our currently or formerly owned oeogte!
facilities, or at sites that we may acquire infilneire, which will require us to incur significaexpenditures.

With the breadth of our operations and volume ofrsumer and financing transactions, compliance withe many applicable federal and state laws .
regulations cannot be assured. New regulations arected on an ongoing basis. These regulations rimgact our profitability and require continuot
training and vigilance. Fines, judgments and admstrative sanctions can be severe.

We are subject to federal, state and local lawsragdlations in each of the 12 states in which aeelstores. New laws and regulations are enacteat
ongoing basis. With the number of stores we opethgenumber of personnel we employ and the lagjenve of transactions we handle, it is likely
technical mistakes will be made. It is also likéhat these regulations may impact our profitabiityd require ongoing training. Current practicestore:
may become prohibited. We are responsible for émguhat continued compliance with laws is mainéanlf there are unauthorized activities of set
magnitude, the state and federal authorities Hagg@ower to impose civil penalties and sanctionspsnd or withdraw dealer licenses or take othiores
These actions could materially impair our actiwt@ our ability to acquire new stores in thoseestavhere violations occurred. Further, privateseaw
action on behalf of individuals or a class of indiwals could result in significant damages or icjive relief.

Compliance with the variety of federal, state amuthl regulations cannot be assured. Claims may ar@it of actual or alleged violations of these vauk
laws and regulations which may be asserted againstthrough class actions or by governmental enstien civil or criminal investigations an
proceedings

We may be involved in legal proceedings arisingnfrihe conduct of our business, including litigatwith customers, employeelated lawsuits, cla
actions, purported class actions and actions brdoglyovernmental authorities. Claims arising oluactual or alleged violations of law may be as
against us or any of our dealers by individualhegiindividually or through class actions, or lypvgrnmental entities in civil or criminal investigas ant
proceedings. Such actions may expose us to sulastaxanetary damages and legal defense costs ciiyerrelief, criminal and civil fines and penattiant
damage our reputation and sales.

Governmental regulations related to fuel economgratiards and greenhouse gases may have an adverpadtron the ability of vehicle manufacture
to costeffectively produce vehicles or design vehiclesieb by customers. These regulations may also inmtpagr ability to sell these vehicles
affordable prices.

Federal regulations around fuel economy standards'greenhouse gag€missions have continued to increase. New requimtsaay adversely affect ¢
manufactures ability to profitably design, market, produce alistribute vehicles that comply with such reguati. We could be adversely impacted in
ability to market and sell these vehicles at affdnld prices and in our ability to finance theseemories. These regulations could have a matediadras
effect on our business, results of operationspfifed condition and cash flows.
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Government regulations and compliance costs mayeadely affect our business, and the failure to cdsnpould have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations.

We are, and expect to continue to be, subjectwide range of federal, state and local laws andlegigpns, including local licensing requirementf.est
laws regulate the conduct of our business, inclydin

motor vehicle and retall installment sales prasj
leasing;

sales of finance, insurance and vehicle protegioducts;
consumer credit;

deceptive trade practices;

consumer protection;

consumer privacy;

money laundering;

advertising;

land use and zoning;

health and safety; and

employment practices.

In every state in which we operate, we must obtaitain licenses issued by state authorities toad@eur businesses, including dealer, sales, ¢mami
insurancerelated licenses. State laws also regulate ourrtising, operating, financing, employment and sgiexctices. Other laws and regulations inc
state franchise laws and regulations and othemsite laws and regulations applicable to new aratl witomobile dealers. In some states, some «
practices must be approved by regulatory agendstvhave broad discretion. The enactment of nevs land regulations that materially impair or ret
our sales, finance and insurance or other opesationld have a material adverse effect on our basiresults of operations, financial conditiorshctows
and prospects.

Our financing activities are subject to federathrin-ending, consumer leasing and equal credit oppitytlawvs and regulations, as well as state andl
motor vehicle finance laws, installment finance $awnsurance laws, usury laws and other installnsatgs laws and regulations. Some states re:
finance, documentation and administrative feesni®t be charged in connection with vehicle salésin@ arising out of actual or alleged violatiorigaav
may be asserted against us or our dealershipsdbyidnals or governmental entities and may expastusignificant damages or other penalties, irnly
revocation or suspension of our licenses to condeatership operations and fines. In recent ygeigate plaintiffs and state attorneys generahim Wnitec
States have increased their scrutiny of advertisages, and finance and insurance activitiesenstile and leasing of motor vehicles. These aetvitav:
led many lenders to limit the amounts that may lerged to customers as fee income for these aetivif these or similar activities were to sigcéintly
restrict our ability to generate revenue from agiag financing for our customers, we could be aselraffected.

The DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection éstablished the Consumer Financial Protectione®ur(CFPB), which has brc
regulatory powers. Although the CFPB may not exserdis authority over an automotive dealer thagredominantly engaged in the sale and servicii
motor vehicles, the leasing and servicing of metdricles, or both, the Dodérank Act and future regulatory actions by thisdaur could lead to addition
indirect regulation of automotive dealers throughregulation of automotive finance companies attgbrofinancial institutions, and it could affectr
arrangements with lending sources.

In March 2013, the CFPB issued a bulletin sugggdtiat auto dealers who arrange credit throughidmifsarties may be participating in a credit deci
such that they are subject to the Equal Credit @ppity Act, including its antdiscrimination provisions. In particular, the CFRRhlighted that th
payment to a dealer of the excess of the inteatstthe dealer negotiates with the customer oweréte at which the lender is willing to providedncing
may encourage pricing disparities on the basisaoér national origin, or potentially other prohdtitbases. This bulletin may affect the willingne
outsider lenders to continue these practices, aightened focus on these arrangements may affectetationships and agreements, including
indemnification obligations, with lenders. The leeé commissions paid by lenders to us for arragdinancing may change due to this bulletin. Tl
factors could adversely affect our business.
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The vehicles we sell are also subject to the Natidnaffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act, the MagoasMoss Warranty Act, Federal Motor Vehicle Sa
Standards promulgated by the United States Depattaié ransportation and various state motor vehieulatory agencies. The imported automobile
purchase are subject to U.S. customs duties arleiordinary course of our business, we may, fiiam to time, be subject to claims for duties, pies
liquidated damages or other charges.

If we or any of our employees at any individual ldeship violate or are alleged to violate laws aagulations applicable to them or protecting cores
generally, we could be subject to individual claionconsumer class actions, administrative, civitriminal investigations or actions and advershklipity.
Such actions could expose us to substantial mgndtanages and legal defense costs, injunctivef gafié criminal and civil fines and penalties, irdihg
suspension or revocation of our licenses and fliaestto conduct dealership operations.

Likewise, employees and former employees are piedduy a variety of employmentlated laws and regulations relating to, amonegrothings, wages a
discrimination. Allegations of a violation couldigact us to individual claims or consumer classoast administrative investigations or adverse igitigl
Such actions could expose us to substantial mgnel@mages and legal defense costs, injunctivefrafid civil fines and penalties, and damage
reputation and sales.

Environmental laws and regulations govern, amormgrothings, discharges into the air and water,agirof petroleum substances and chemical:
handling and disposal of wastes and remediatiaronfamination arising from spills and releasesaddition, we may also have liability in connectigith
materials that were sent to thiparty recycling, treatment and/or disposal faesitunder federal and state statutes. These featedadtate statutes imps
liability for investigation and remediation of camination without regard to fault or the legalifytiee conduct that contributed to the contaminat®imilai
to many of our competitors, we have incurred angeekto continue to incur capital and operatingeexfitures and other costs in complying with ¢
federal and state statutes. In addition, we maguigect to broad liabilities arising out of contaation at our currently and formerly owned or opet
facilities, at locations to which hazardous substanwvere transported from such facilities, anduah docations related to entities formerly affiéidtwith us
Although for some such potential liabilities we ibek we are entitled to indemnification from otlentities, we cannot assure you that such entiti#:
view their obligations as we do or will be ablewvalling to satisfy them. Failure to comply with dmgable laws and regulations, or significant additi
expenditures required to maintain compliance thiéghewnay have a material adverse effect on ourrtassi, results of operations, financial conditicast
flows and prospects.

A significant judgment against us, the loss ofgm#icant license or permit or the imposition ofignificant fine could have a material adverseaftm ou
business, financial condition and future prospaats.further expect that, from time to time, new$aand regulations, particularly in the labor, ergpient
environmental and consumer protection areas wittected, and compliance with such laws, or pasaftr failure to comply, could significantly ines
our costs.

Failure of our information technology systems to fferm adequately or data protection breaches andbeyattacks could disrupt our operations or res
in the loss or misuse of customers’ proprietary anmation.

Our information technology systems are importanbgerating our business efficiently. We employ eyst and websites that allow for the secure st

and transmission of customeggoprietary information. The failure of our infortian technology systems to perform as we anticigatgld disrupt ot
business and could expose us to a risk of losssursa of this information, litigation and potentiability.
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Our information technology systems may be vulnerabldata protection breaches and cyber attacksndegur control and we may not have the reso
or technical sophistication to anticipate or prewapidly evolving types of cyber attacks. We irviessecurity technology to protect our data andites
processes against these risks. We also purchagarmue to mitigate the potential financial impafcthese risks. Despite these precautions, we caassoir
that a breach will not occur and any breach oresgfal attack could have a negative impact on paraiions or business reputation.

Our ability to increase revenues through acquisiti® depends on our ability to acquire and succedsfiritegrate additional stores.

General

The U.S. automobile industry is considered a maituatastry in which minimal growth is expected initusales of new vehicles. Accordingly, a princ
component of our growth in sales is to make actjois in our existing markets and in new geograpiickets. To complete the acquisition of additi
stores, we need to successfully address each &bltbering challenges.

Limitations on our capital resourct
The acquisition of additional stores will requirgostantial capital investment. Limitations on oapital resources would restrict our ability to cdete nev
acquisitions.

We have financed our past acquisitions from a caation of the cash flow from our operations, boilirgyg under our credit arrangements, issuancesr
common stock and proceeds from private debt offerifhe use of any of these financing sources doag the effect of reducing our earnings per s
We may not be able to obtain financing in the fetdue to the market price of our Class A commooksémd overall market conditions. Furthermore, g
cash to complete acquisitions could substantiatiyt lour operating or financial flexibility.

Substantially all of the assets of our dealerskips pledged to secure the indebtedness under edit dacility and our other floor plan financi
indebtedness. These pledges may limit our abiitydrrow from other sources in order to fund ouquasitions.

Manufacturers

We are required to obtain consent from the applécatanufacturer prior to the acquisition of a fraised store. In determining whether to approv
acquisition, a manufacturer considers many facioduding our financial condition, ownership sttwe, the number of stores currently owned anc
performance with those stores. Obtaining manufactapproval of acquisitions also takes a signifi@anount of time, typically 60 to 90 days. We ca
assure you that manufacturers will approve futgmuesitions timely, if at all, which could signifiatly impair the execution of our acquisition stt.

Most major manufacturers have now establishedaditioits or guidelines on the:

e number of such manufacturers’ stores that magcioeired by a single owner;
number of stores that may be acquired in any etarkregion;
percentage of market share that may be contrbjfeshe automotive retailer group;
ownership of stores in contiguous markets;
performance requirements for existing stores; and
frequency of acquisitions.

In addition, such manufacturers generally requieg ho other manufacturefsrands be sold from the same store location, anmg/ mmanufacturers have ¢
control agreements in place that limit our abitiychange the use of the facility without their apal.

20




A manufacturer also considers our past performascameasured by the Minimum Sales ResponsibilitySR¥) scores, CSI scores and Sales Satisfa
Index (“SSI”) scores at our existing stores. At grgint in time, certain stores may have scoresvbal®e manufacturerssales zone averages or h
achieved sales below the targets manufacturers $etveOur failure to maintain satisfactory scored # achieve market share performance goals
restrict our ability to complete future store aitinns.

Acquisition risks
We will face risks commonly encountered with growhitough acquisitions. These risks include, witHouitation:
e failing to assimilate the operations and persbohacquired dealerships;
failing to achieve predicted sales levels;
incurring significantly higher capital expendiésrand operating expenses;
entering new markets with which we are unfamiliar
encountering undiscovered liabilities and opersl difficulties at acquired dealerships;
disrupting our ongoing business;
diverting our management resources;
failing to maintain uniform standards, contraslgolicies;
impairing relationships with employees, manufeatsiand customers as a result of changes in manesge
incurring increased expenses for accounting antpbciter systems, as well as integration difficsitie
failing to obtain a manufactursrconsent to the acquisition of one or more ofléalership franchises or renew the franchise agraeon term
acceptable to us;
incorrectly valuing entities to be acquired; and
e Incurring additional facility renovation costsather expenses required by the manufacturer.

In addition, we may not adequately anticipate fithe demands that growth will impose on our systepnocedures and structures.

Consummation and competition
We may not be able to consummate any future adguisiat acceptable prices and terms or identifiable candidates. In addition, increased compe
in the future for acquisition candidates could heisufewer acquisition opportunities for us angtér acquisition prices. The magnitude, timinggipg anc
nature of future acquisitions will depend upon easi factors, including:
e the availability of suitable acquisition candigit
competition with other dealer groups for suitaddguisitions;
the negotiation of acceptable terms with theeselhd with the manufacturer;
our financial capabilities and ability to obtdinancing on acceptable terms;
our stock price;
our ability to maintain required financial covandevels after the acquisition; and
the availability of skilled employees to manalge acquired businesses.

Financial condition

The operating and financial condition of acquiredibesses cannot be determined accurately untgisseme control. Although we conduct what we be
to be a prudent level of investigation regarding ¢iperating and financial condition of the busieesae purchase, in light of the circumstances oh
transaction, an unavoidable level of risk remaggarding the actual operating condition of thessrtmsses. Similarly, many of the dealerships welieg
do not have financial statements audited or prepareaccordance with U.S. generally accepted ademyiprinciples. We may not have an acct
understanding of the historical financial conditimmd performance of our acquired businesses. Wetictually assume control of the business asse
their operations, we may not be able to ascertarattual value or understand the potential ligdodliof the acquired businesses and their earpiogstial.
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We are subject to substantial risk of loss underrotarious self-insurance programs including propgrtand casualty, workerstompensation an
employee medical coverage.

We have a significant concentration of our properijues at each dealership location, including elehéind parts inventories and our facilities. Nal
disasters, severe weather or extraordinary eveibfect us to property loss and business interroptitegal or unethical conduct by employees, coms
vendors and unaffiliated third parties can alsodotur business. Other potential liabilities agsout of our operations may involve claims by esgpks
customers or third parties for personal injury ooperty damage and potential fines and penaltiesoimection with alleged violations of regulal
requirements.

Under our self-insurance programs, we retain varleuels of aggregate loss limits, per claim debles and claim$randling expenses. Costs in exce:
these retained risks may be insured under variongracts with thirdearty insurance carriers. As of December 31, 2048 had total reserve amou
associated with these programs of $12.0 milliore TEvel of risk we retain may change in the fuasensurance market conditions or other factorecsific
the economics of our insurance purchasing chanibodgh we believe we have sufficient insurance,caanot assure that we will not be expose
uninsured or underinsured losses that could hawatarial adverse effect on our business, finamciatlition, results of operations or cash flows.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets, which consist of goodwvalhd franchise value, comprise a meaningful portiasf our total assets ($120.7 millic
at December 31, 2013). We must assess our indefilived intangible assets for impairment at leastraually, which may result in a non-cash writdewr
of franchise rights or goodwill.

Indefinitedived intangible assets are subject to impairmesessments at least annually (or more frequentnvavents or circumstances indicate thi
impairment may have occurred) by applying a failue based test. Our principal intangible assedsgamodwill and our rights under our Franc
Agreements with vehicle manufacturers. The riskrgdairment charges associated with goodwill inoesatthere are declines in our market capitaliag
profitability or cash flows. The risk of impairmenharges associated with franchise value incredisgserating losses are suffered at those stofea
manufacturer files for bankruptcy or if the stoege closed. Impairment charges result in non-cagte-downs of the affected franchise values or gooc
Furthermore, impairment charges could have an aevierpact on our ability to satisfy the financialios or other covenants under our debt agreenagw
could have a material adverse impact on our busjmesults of operations, financial condition aadrcflows.

A net deferred tax asset position comprises a maghil portion of our total assets (approximately $B million at December 31, 2013). We are requ
to assess the recoverability of this asset on againg basis. Future negative operating performanceother unfavorable developments may result i
valuation allowance being recorded against partat of this amount.

Deferred tax assets are evaluated periodicallyeterchine if they are expected to be recoverablthénfuture. This evaluation considers positive
negative evidence in order to assess whethernitoie likely than not that a portion of the assdt mot be realized. The risk of a valuation allowe
increases if continuing operating losses are irclirA valuation allowance on our deferred tax aseatd have an adverse impact on our ability teske
financial ratios or other covenants under our dapeements and could have a material adverse ingpaour business, results of operations, fina
condition and cash flows.
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Our indebtedness and lease obligations could matkyiadversely affect our financial health, limitur ability to finance future acquisitions and cait
expenditures and prevent us from fulfilling our fiancial obligations. Much of our debt has a variablaterest rate component that may significar
increase our interest costs in a rising rate enviroent.

Our indebtedness and lease obligations could mapertant consequences to us, including the follgwin
e limitations on our ability to make acquisitions;
e impaired ability to obtain additional financingrfacquisitions, capital expenditures, working tapr general corporate purposes;
e reduced funds available for our operations andrgtlweposes, as a larger portion of our cash flaewnfroperations would be dedicated to
payment of principal and interest on our indebtednand
e exposure to the risk of increasing interest ratesertain borrowings are, and will continue tpdievariable rates of interest.

In addition, our loan agreements contain coventaslimit our discretion with respect to businesatters, including incurring additional debt, aaifinn
activity or disposing of assets. Other covenargdfiaancial in nature, including current ratio,ditkcharge coverage and leverage ratio calculatfobseacl
of any of these covenants could result in a defadter the applicable agreement. In addition, awefinder one agreement could result in a defet
acceleration of our repayment obligations undewther agreements under the cross-default prowsiosuch other agreements.

Certain debt agreements contain subjective acdeleralauses based on a lender deeming itself imeear if a “material adverse changa”our busines
has occurred. If these clauses are implicated,tdender declares that an event of default hasroed, the outstanding indebtedness would like
immediately due and owing.

If these events were to occur, we may not be abpay our debts or borrow sufficient funds to rafine them. Even if new financing were availablejat
not be on terms acceptable to us. As a resultisfribk, we could be forced to take actions thatotleerwise would not take, or not take actions the
otherwise might take, in order to comply with thegeeements.

Additionally, our real estate debt generally hasxayear term, after which the debt needs to be renewreeplaced. A decline in the appraised valueea
estate or a reduction in the loanv@kue lending ratios for new or renewed real edtatas could result in our inability to renew matgrreal estate loans
the debt level existing at maturity, or on termsegatable to us, requiring us to find replacememtdgs or to refinance at lower loan amounts.

As of December 31, 2013, including the effect aéiast rate swaps, approximately 84% of our tathlt dvas variable rate. The majority of our variaale
debt is indexed to the omeenth LIBOR rate. The current interest rate enwvinent is at historically low levels, and interedesawill likely increase in tt
future. In the event interest rates increase, @aurolving costs may increase substantially. Adddibn fixed rate debt that matures may be renewt
interest rates significantly higher than currenels. As a result, this could have a material aslvémpact on our business, results of operationanéia
condition and cash flows.
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We have a significant relationship with a third-pgr warranty insurer and administrator. This thirgbarty is the obligor of service warranty policiesld
to our customers. Additionally, we have agreemeirtsplace that allow for future income based on thleaims experience on policies sold to «
customers.

We sell service warranty policies to our custonigssed by a thirgbarty obligor. We receive additional fee incomadfual claims are less than the amac
reserved for anticipated claims and the costs ofigidtration and administrator profit.

A decline in the financial health of the thipawty insurer could jeopardize the claims resehedd by the administrator, and prevent us fromewmtihg the
experience payments anticipated to be earned imefiyiears. While the amount we receive varies dhynuhe loss of this income could negatively img
our business, results of operations, financial @é@rand cash flows. Further, the inability of theurer to honor service warranty claims woul@ljkresul
in reputational risk to us and might result in elaito cover any default by the insurer.

The loss of key personnel or the failure to attradditional qualified management personnel couldwisely affect our operations and growth.

Our success depends to a significant degree oeffiies and abilities of our senior managementtipaarly Bryan B. DeBoer, our Director, Presideinic
Chief Executive Officer, and Christopher S. Holzsbur Senior Vice President and Chief Financiali€@ff Further, we have identified Sidney B. DeB
our Executive Chairman of the Board, and/or BryarbBBoer in most of our store franchise agreemastthe individuals who control the franchises
upon whose financial resources and managementtesgtre manufacturers may rely when awarding prapng the transfer of any franchise. If we |
these key personnel, our business may suffer.

In addition, as we expand, we will need to hireitioldlal managers and other employees. The markejualified employees in the industry and in the
regions in which we operate, particularly for geienanagers and sales and service personnel iy ltigmpetitive and may subject us to increasedrlab
costs during periods of low unemployment. The lfsthe services of key employees or the inabilitatiract additional qualified managers could have
material adverse effect on our business, resultgefations, financial condition and cash flowsadidition, the lack of qualified managers or other
employees employed by potential acquisition cartd&lenay limit our ability to consummate future asgions.

The sole voting control of our company is currentheld by Sidney B. DeBoer, who may have interestfedent from our other shareholders. Furthe
2.3 million shares of our Class B common stock hdlg Lithia Holding Company, LLC (“Lithia Holding”) are pledged to secure indebtedness of Li
Holding. The failure to repay the indebtedness cduksult in the sale of such shares and the lossso€h control, which may violate agreements v
certain manufacturers.

Sidney B. DeBoer, our Founder and Executive Chaignisathe sole managing member of Lithia Holdingbkich holds all of the outstanding shares of
Class B common stock. A holder of Class B commonksis entitled to ten votes for each share hehdlena holder of Class A common stock is entitla
one vote per share held. On most matters, the @lassl Class B common stock vote together as desitigss. As of February 21, 2014, Lithia Holc
controlled, and Mr. DeBoer had the authority toey@tpproximately 52% of the aggregate number afssetigible to be cast by shareholders for thetiela
of directors and most other shareholder actionadtfition, Mr. DeBoer may prevent a change in artf our Company and make certain transactions
difficult or impossible. The interest of Mr. DeBoenay not always coincide with our interests as an@any or the interest of other shareholc
Accordingly, Mr. DeBoer could cause us to enteo ittensactions or agreement that other shareholdentd not approve or make decisions with wl
other shareholders may disagree.
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Lithia Holding has pledged 2.3 million shares of @lass B common stock to secure a loan from U@ kBNational Association. If Lithia Holding
unable to repay the loan, the bank could forectoséhe Class B common stock, which would resuthimautomatic conversion of such shares to Cl:
common stock and a change in control of our CompHrthis change is not consented to by the martufacs, we would have a technical violation ui
most of the dealer sales and service agreemerdsolgals. In addition, the market price of our Classommon stock could decline materially if the k
foreclosed on such pledged stock and subsequenitysach stock in the open market.

Risks related to investing in our Class A common stk
Future sales of our Class A common stock in the fiabmarket could adversely impact the market prickour Class A common stock.

As of February 21, 2014, we had 2,903,387 shareSlags A common stock reserved for issuance ungeeguity plans (including our employee st
purchase plan). As of February 21, 2014, a tot#64f,815 shares related to outstanding restridteak srestricted stock units and options (with tiptions
having a weighted average exercise price of $6e53Ipare and options to purchase 58,884 shareg &etmcisable). In addition, we had 2,562,231 shal
Class B common stock outstanding convertible in®2,231 shares of Class A common stock.

In the future, we may issue additional shares ofGlass A common stock to raise capital or effecfussitions. We cannot predict the size of futuakes o
issuance or the effect, if any, they may have emtlarket price of our Class A common stock. The eakubstantial amounts of Class A common stok
the perception that such sales may occur, couldragly affect the market price of our Class A comrstwck and impair our ability to raise capitalotingr
the sale of additional equity securities, or td sglity at a price acceptable to us.

Volatility in the market price and trading volumef@ur Class A common stock could adversely impdwt value of the shares of our Class A comn
stock.

The stock market in recent years has experiengmifisant price and volume fluctuations that hafem been unrelated or disproportionate to the atpea
performance of companies like ours. These broakebdactors may materially reduce the market pateur Class A common stock, regardless ol
operating performance. The market price of our €£msommon stock, which has experienced large @amkvolume fluctuations over the last five ye
could continue to fluctuate significantly for margasons, including in response to the risks desgriterein or for reasons unrelated to our operstisuncl
as:
e reports by industry analysts;
changes in financial estimates by securitiesyatalor us, or our inability to meet or exceed séieg analysts’, investorsir our own estimates
expectations;
actual or anticipated sales of common stock listiexy shareholders or us;
capital commitments;
additions or departures of key personnel;
developments in our business or in our industry;
a prolonged downturn in our industry;
general market conditions, such as interest origorexchange rates, commodity and equity priceajlability of credit, asset valuations ¢
volatility;
changes in global financial and economic markets;
armed conflict, war or terrorism;
regulatory changes affecting our industry gemgial our business and operations in particular;
changes in market valuations of other compami@air industry;
the operating and securities price performanamofpanies that investors consider to be compatahls; and
announcements of strategic developments, acguisiand other material events by us, our compstaoour suppliers.
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Oregon law and our Restated Articles of Incorporati may impede or discourage a takeover, which coirtpair the market price of our Class
common stock.

We are an Oregon corporation, and certain provisiohOregon law and our Restated Articles of Inoosion may have antakeover effects. The
provisions could delay, defer or prevent a tendfar @r takeover attempt that a shareholder mighisaer to be in his or her best interest. Theegigions
may also affect attempts that might result in arpoen over the market price for the shares heldhareholders, and may make removal of the incun
management and directors more difficult, which,emzkrtain circumstances, could reduce the maria# pf our Class A common stock.

Our issuance of preferred stock could adverselyeaffholders of Class A common stock.

Our Board of Directors is authorized to issue #&seof preferred stock without any action on the paour holders of Class A common stock. Our Bloai
Directors also has the power, without shareholgeraval, to set the terms of any such series demed stock that may be issued, including votiog/grs
preferences over our Class A common stock witheetsio dividends or if we voluntarily or involuntigrdissolve or distribute our assets, and othemse I
we issue preferred stock in the future that hafepeace over our Class A common stock with respetihie payment of dividends or upon our liquida)
dissolution or winding up, or if we issue prefersgdck with voting rights that dilute the votingvper of our Class A common stock, the rights of leoddo
our Class A common stock or the price of our Clagemmon stock could be adversely affected.

Our business is seasonal, and events occurring dgriseasons in which revenues are typically higheayndisproportionately affect our results
operations and financial condition.

Historically, our sales have been lower during fingt and fourth quarters of each year due to comsupurchasing patterns during the holiday se.
inclement weather in certain of our markets andréftticed number of business days during the hokgagon. More recently our franchise diversifiai
and cost controls have moderated this seasonBldwever, if conditions occur during the secondtordt quarters that weaken automotive sales, su
severe weather in the geographic areas in whichdealerships operate, war, high fuel costs, depdeessonomic conditions including unemploymer
weakened consumer confidence or similar adverseéitioms, our revenues for the year may be dispripuately adversely affected.

Item 1B . Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our stores and other facilities consist primarifyaatomobile showrooms, display lots, service ftes, collision repair and paint shops, supplyilfées,
automobile storage lots, parking lots and officesated in the states listed under the cap@wmerviewin Iltem 1. We believe our facilities are curre
adequate for our needs and are in good repair. Sdroar facilities do not currently meet manufaetuimage or size requirements and we are ac
working to find a mutually acceptable outcome inme of timing and overall cost. We own our corperbeadquarters in Medford, Oregon and ce
properties used in operations. Certain of thespeguties are mortgaged. We also lease certain grepeproviding future flexibility to relocate ouetail
stores as demographics, economics, traffic patterrsales methods change. Most leases provideeusption to renew the lease for one or more
extension periods. We also hold certain vacantedshaips and undeveloped land for future expansion.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are party to numerous legal proceedings arisinthe normal course of our business. Although wendt anticipate that the resolution of le
proceedings arising in the normal course of busir@sthe proceedings described below will have teri@ adverse effect on our business, resul
operations, financial condition, or cash flows, semnot predict this with certainty.

Alaska Consumer Protection Act Claims

In December 2006, a class action suit was filednsgas (Jackie Neese, et al vs. Lithia ChryslepJef Anchorage, Inc., et al, Case No. 3AN4E341 ClI)
and in April 2007, a second class action suit (igableese, et al vs. Lithia Chrysler Jeep of Ancgerdnc, et al, Case No. 3AN-@815 CI) was file
against us, in the Superior Court for the Statélatka, Third Judicial District at Anchorage. Thesits were subsequently consolidated. In the dintztec
suit, plaintiffs alleged that we, through our Alasiealerships, engaged in three practices thabparly violate Alaska consumer protection law$
charging customers dealer fees and costs (includiegment preparation fees) not disclosed in thvertided price, (i) failing to disclose the acqtios,
mechanical and accident history of used vehiclewlmther the vehicles were originally manufactui@dsale in a foreign country, and (iii) engagim
deception, misrepresentation and fraud by providingustomers financing from third parties withdigclosing that we receive a fee or discount facipic
that loan. The suit sought statutory damages 00 $80each violation or three times plaintiffactual damages, whichever was greater, and egtéees an
costs.

In June2013, the parties agreed to mediate the claims.riiédiation resulted in a settlement agreementrédwived the final approval of the Court
December 11, 2013. Under the settlement agreemvenagreed to reimburse plaintifiggal fees and to pay (i) $450 in the form of casd vouchers ai
(i) $3,000 for each claim representative. As otBraber 31, 2013, we estimated costs of $ 6.2 miliiosettle all claims against us and to pay plésht
legal fees. The estimated costs are based on sumasions of the final number of approved claimd arvoucher redemption rate. We believe that -
estimates are reasonable; however, actual costd difter materially. We recorded this amount as a component of selljiegeral and administrati
expense in our Consolidated Statements of Operstiad, as of December 31, 2013, the amount wasdiedlas a component of accrued liabilities ir
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Stock Prices and Dividenc
Our Class A common stock trades on the New YorklSfxchange under the symbol LADhe following table presents the high and low galees fo
our Class A common stock, as reported on the Newk Btock Exchange Composite Tape for each of tlagtgrs in 2012 and 2013:

2012 High Low

First quarter $ 2751 $ 20.62
Second quarter 27.9¢ 21.4%
Third quarter 34.0( 22.0¢
Fourth quarter 37.8( 31.6(
2013

First quarter $ 47.6: $ 37.5¢
Second quarter 57.0¢ 42.0%
Third quarter 73.5¢ 53.6(
Fourth quarter 74.9¢ 60.4¢

The number of shareholders of record and approrimamber of beneficial holders of Class A commanlsis of February 21, 2014 was 784 and 18
respectively. All shares of Lithia’'s Class B comnsiack are held by Lithia Holding Company, LLC.

Dividends declared on our Class A and Class B comstock during 2011, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

Total amount of

Dividend amount dividend (in
Quarter declared: per share thousands)
2011
First quarter $ 0.0t $ 1,31¢
Second quarter 0.07 1,851
Third quarter 0.07 1,83¢
Fourth quarter 0.07 1,817
2012
First quarter $ 0.07 $ 1,81¢
Second quarter 0.1C 2,58:
Third quarter 0.1C 2,54¢
Fourth quartefl) 0.2C 5,122
2013
First quarter $ - $ -
Second quarter 0.12 3,35¢
Third quarter 0.1% 3,36:
Fourth quarter 0.1< 3,36¢

(1) In November 2012, we paid dividends of $2.5 millthat had been declared in October 2012. An additidividend payment of $2.6 million w
declared and paid in December 2012 in lieu of fkielend typically declared and paid in March of fbowing year.

Equity Compensation Plan Informatiol
Information regarding securities authorized fougsce under equity compensation plans is incluadédgbin 12.
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Stock Performance Grap

The following linegraph shows the annual percentage change in thalative total returns for the past five years onagaaumed $100 initial investm
and reinvestment of dividends, on (a) Lithia Motdre.’s Class A common stock; (b) the Russell 2000; ajdif auto peer group index compose
Penske Automotive Group, AutoNation, Sonic AutometiGroup 1 Automotive and Asbury Automotive Grothg only other comparable publicly trai
automobile dealerships in the United States asegkhber 31, 2013. The peer group index utilizesdmee methods of presentation and assumptionke
total return calculation as does Lithia Motors ahe Russell 2000. All companies in the peer growgex are weighted in accordance with their m:
capitalizations.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of 5100

December 2013
12,500.00
2,000.00
1,500.00
1,000.00
500.00
a = — = & =—
0.00
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
~a—Lithia Molors, Inc, —@—Russell 2000 Index Auto Peer Group Only
Base
Period Indexed Returns for the Year Ended
Company/Index 12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013
Lithia Motors, Inc. $ 100.0¢ $ 252.1F $ 4453¢ $ 691.4« $ 1,206.3: $ 2,252.6:
Auto Peer Group 100.0( 206.9: 288.1¢ 356.47 443.4" 600.4¢
Russell 2000 100.0( 127.0¢ 161.17 154.4¢ 179.7¢ 249.5:
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

You should read the Selected Financial Data inwmtjon with Item 7. “Managemest’'Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditioml d&esults ¢
Operations,’our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notegtihend other financial information contained eisere in this Annual Report on Fc
10-K. The results of operations for stores clasdifis discontinued operations have been presemted@mparable basis for all periods presented.

(In thousands, except per share amounts) Year Ended December 31,
Consolidated Statements of Operations Datz 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Revenues:
New vehicle $ 2,256,590 $ 1,84760. $ 1,391,370 $ 1,020,88 $ 844,29:
Used vehicle retail 1,032,22. 833,48 678,57: 558,10! 455,63:
Used vehicle wholesale 158,23! 139,23 128,32¢ 103,81° 69,84
Finance and insurance 139,00° 112,23 84,13( 64,21 53,89¢
Service, body and parts 383,48 347,70: 315,95¢ 277,94! 271,72¢
Fleet and other 36,20: 36,22¢ 34,38: 11,65¢ 2,457
Total revenues $ 400574 $ 331648 $ 2,632,744 $ 2,036,62 $ 1,697,85:
Gross Profit:
New vehicle $ 151,11¢ $ 134,44 $ 107,15 $ 83,64¢ $ 70,97:
Used vehicle retail 150,85¢ 121,72: 98,21« 78,79¢ 64,167
Used vehicle wholesale 2,711 1,41¢ 597 708 507
Finance and insurance 139,00° 112,23« 84,13( 64,217 53,89¢
Service, body and parts 185,57( 168,07( 152,22( 133,94 129,24:
Fleet and other 1,68¢ 1,41¢ 2,97 1,645 1,232
Total gross profit $ 630,95. $ 539,30( $ 44528: $ 362,94t $ 320,01°
Operating incomél) $ 183,51t $ 148,36¢ $ 110,81¢ $ 46,47C $ 34,517
Income from continuing operations before income i $ 165,78¢ $ 128,45 $ 88,27( $ 22,21: $ 11,57¢
Income from continuing operatiofis $ 105,21: $ 79,398 $ 55,21( $ 13,587 $ 6,60¢
Basic income per share from continuing operations $ 408 $ 3.0¢ $ 21C $ 05z $ 0.3C
Basic income per share from discontinued operations 0.0 0.04 0.14 0.01 0.12
Basic net income per share $ 411 $ 3.1 % 224 $ 05 $ 0.4z
Shares used in basic per share 25,80¢ 25,69¢ 26,23( 26,06 22,03’
Diluted income per share from continuing operations $ 4.0z $ 3.0 % 207 $ 05z % 0.3C
Diluted income per share from discontinued openatio 0.0 0.04 0.14 0.0C 0.11
Diluted net income per share $ 4.0 3 3.07 $ 221 $ 05z $ 0.41
Shares used in diluted per share 26,19: 26,17( 26,66¢ 26,72¢ 22,17¢
Cash dividends declared per common skire $ 03¢ $ 047 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.1t $ -
(In thousands) As of December 31,
Consolidated Balance Sheets Dat: 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Working capital $ 209,03¢ $ 211,90 $ 191,600 $ 162,670 $ 96,88¢
Inventories 859,01¢ 723,32t 506,48 415,22¢ 333,62¢
Total assets 1,725,12. 1,492,70; 1,146,13: 971,67t 895,10(
Floor plan notes payable 713,85! 581,58 343,94( 251,25° 216,08:
Long-term debt, including current maturities 252,55¢ 295,05¢ 286,87« 280,77 265,77:
Total stockholders’ equity 534,72: 428,10: 367,12: 320,21° 307,03¢

(1) Includes $0.1 million, $1.4 million, $15.3 fivh and $7.9 million of norrash charges related to asset impairments foreghesyended 2012, 2011, 2
and 2009, respectively. No n@ash charges related to asset impairments or tatedrconstruction projects were recorded in 2028. ISotes 1 and
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements daiiteonal information.

(2) In November 2012, we paid dividends of $2.5 millibvat had been declared in October 2012. An additidividend payment of $2.6 million w
declared and paid in December 2012 in lieu of fkielend typically declared and paid in March of fbowing year.
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Item 7. Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

You should read the following discussion in conjimt with Item 1. “Business,” Item 1A. “Risk Factdrand our Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes theretc

Overview
We are a leading operator of automotive franchésebretailer of new and used vehicles and servikesf February 21, 2014, we offered 28 brandsenf
vehicles and all brands of used vehicles in 96estar the United States and online_at Lithia.cdie sell new and used cars and replacement paoiade
vehicle maintenance, warranty, paint and repaivises; arrange related financing; and sell sengoatracts, vehicle protection products and c
insurance.

We believe that the fragmented nature of the autemdealership sector provides us with the oppoiyuo achieve growth through consolidation. IrL3|
the top ten automotive retailers only represent#dd the stores in the United States. We targetsizdd regional markets for domestic and im
franchises and metropolitan markets for luxury ¢tdses. We believe this strategy enables brandusixily with minimal competition from oth
dealerships with the same franchise in the mafiet.acquisition strategy has been to acquire dddfes at prices that meet our internal investmamnet:
and, through the application of our centralizedrapeg structure, leverage costs and improve gimoétability. We believe our disciplined approaahd thi
current economic environment provides us with eftiva acquisition opportunities.

We also believe that we can continue to improveajmns at our existing stores. By promoting emeapurial leadership within our general and depam
managers, we strive for continuous improvementrivedsales and capture market share in our locaketss Our goal is to retail an average of 75
vehicles per store per month and we believe weneake additional improvements in our used vehiclessperformance by offering lowgriced valu
vehicles and selling brands other than the newclelfianchise at each location. Our service, body arts operations provide important repeat bssifie
our stores. We continue to grow this business titiancreased marketing efforts, competitive prioimgroutine maintenance items and diverse commr
product offerings. In 2013, we continued to expme organic growth and profitability through incsesy market share and maintaining a lean
structure.

As sales volume increases and we gain leveragerirc@st structure, we anticipate maintaining SG&RAaapercentage of gross profit in the upper
range. As we focus on maintaining discipline inteolfing costs, in 2014 we continue to target neitaj, on a same store basis, 50% of each increh
gross profit dollar after deducting SG&A expense.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoyrmiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresptequires us to make certain estimates, judgi
and assumptions that affect the reported amourassdts and liabilities, the disclosure of contmgessets and liabilities and reported amountgwénmue
and expenses at the date of the financial statem@atrtain accounting policies require us to makKeudlt and subjective judgments on matters thag
inherently uncertain. The following accounting pas involve critical accounting estimates becdheg are particularly dependent on assumptions roy
management. While we have made our best estimasesion facts and circumstances available to the dime, different estimates could have been ut
the current period. Changes in the accounting estisnwe used are reasonably likely to occur frorfogdo period, which may have a material impac
the presentation of our financial condition anduhessof operations.
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Our most critical accounting estimates include ¢hadated to goodwill and franchise value, ldivgd assets, deferred tax assets, service costaact othe
insurance contracts, and lifetime lube, oil antefilcontracts and seilfisurance programs. We also have other key acecwumpilicies for valuation
accounts receivable, expense accruals and revewognition. However, these policies either do neetrthe definition of critical accounting estim:
described above or are not currently material itemaur financial statements. We review our est@agjudgments and assumptions periodically anda
the effects of revisions in the period that they @emed to be necessary. We believe that thesetest are reasonable. However, actual results abfiér
materially from these estimates.

Goodwill and Franchise Value

We are required to test our goodwill and franchvigkie for impairment at least annually, or moreyfrently if conditions indicate that an impairmerdy
have occurred. We have determined that we opesad@@reporting unit for evaluating goodwill. Wevbahe option to qualitatively or quantitativelysas
goodwill for impairment and, in 2013, evaluated goodwill using a quantitative assessment proddfestest goodwill for impairment using the Adjus
Present Value method (“APV'tp estimate the fair value of our reporting unitiddr the APV method, future cash flows are basedeoantly prepare
budget forecasts and business plans and are usstintmte the future economic benefits that themem unit will generate. An estimate of the apgprate
discount rate is utilized to convert the futurersmoic benefits to their present value equivalent.

The quantitative goodwill impairment test is a tatep process. The first step identifies potentigddirments by comparing the calculated fair valfia
reporting unit with its book value. If the fair vl of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying amogmodwill is not impaired and the second stepdtl
necessary. If the carrying value exceeds the faine; the second step includes determining theiéaghir value in the same manner as the amot
goodwill recognized in a business combination ieigeined. The implied fair value of goodwill is theompared with the carrying amount to determi
an impairment loss should be recorded.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $49.5 million obdwill on our balance sheet. The first step of aonual goodwill impairment analysis, which
perform as of October 1 of each year, did not teawn indication of impairment in 2013, 2012 @12. The fair value of the reporting unit as of Brabe
31, 2013, using the APV method, was 132% greatar the carrying value at December 31, 2013.

We have determined the appropriate unit of accognfor testing franchise rights for impairment is an individual store basis. We have the optic
qualitatively or quantitatively assess indefiniteetl intangible assets for impairment. In 2013, evaluated our indefinitbved intangible assets using
quantitative assessment process. We estimate itheafae of our franchise rights primarily usingetMulti-Period Excess Earnings (“MPEBY)odel. Th
forecasted cash flows used in the MPEE model coritdierent uncertainties, including significantiresites and assumptions related to growth 1
margins, general operating expenses, and cospabtaNe use primarily internallgeveloped forecasts and business plans to estthefature cash flov
that each franchise will generate. We have deterdhihat only certain cash flows of the store areatly attributable to the franchise rights. Weraate thi
appropriate interest rate to discount future cémhiS to their present value equivalent taking ictmsideration factors such as a rigée rate, a peer gro
average beta, an equity risk premium and a snadksisk premium.

We also may use a market approach to determinéathealue of our franchise rights. These marketadaoints include our acquisition and divesti
experience and third-party broker estimates.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $71.2 million ahfthise value on our balance sheet associatedbWititores. No individual store accounted for r

than 12% of our total franchise value as of Decen3ie 2013. Our impairment testing of franchiseueadlid not indicate any impairment in 2013, 201
2011.
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We are subject to financial statement risk to tkierg that our goodwill or franchise rights becoimpaired due to decreases in the fair value. Aré
decline in performance, decreases in projected tyroates or margin assumptions or changes in diggates could result in a potential impairmentjoh
could have a material adverse impact on our firrmosition and results of operations. Furthermdre, manufacturer becomes insolvent, we ma
required to record a partial or total impairmenttloa franchise value related to that manufacturer.

See Notes 1 and 5 of Notes to Consolidated FineStagements for additional information.

Long-Lived Assets

We estimate the depreciable lives of our propenty aquipment, including leasehold improvements, i@wiew each asset group for impairment w
events or circumstances indicate that their cagrgimounts may not be recoverable. We determinedset group is comprised of the ldhgd assets us:
in the operations of an individual store.

We determine a triggering event has occurred byewemg store forecasted and historical financiatfgrenance. An asset group is evaluated
recoverability if it has an operating loss in therent year and two of the prior three years. Addilly, we may judgmentally evaluate an asset grbits
financial performance indicates it may not suppbet carrying amount of the loriyed assets. If a store meets these criteria, stinate the projectt
undiscounted cash flows for each asset group taséuternally developed forecasts. If the undistedrtash flows are lower than the carrying valuthe
asset group, we determine the fair value of thetagsup based on additional market data, includdegnt experience in selling similar assets.

We hold certain property for future developmentirorestment purposes. If a triggering event is dekmoehave occurred, we evaluate the propert
impairment by comparing its estimated fair valusdghon listing price less costs to sell and otharket data, including similar property that is $ale o
has been recently sold, to the current carryingezdf the carrying value is more than the estihdaér value, an impairment is recorded.

Although we believe our property and equipment asskts held and used are appropriately valuedsthamptions and estimates used may change ¢
may be required to record impairment charges tagedhe value of these assets. A future declirstare performance, decrease in projected growdls i@
changes in other operating assumptions could resat impairment of longived asset groups, which could have a materiaesdvimpact on our financ
position and results of operations.

In 2012 and 2011, we determined triggering eveatsdtcurred associated with certain property halduture development or investment purchases.
result, we performed impairment testing on thoseciie long-lived assets and recorded impairmealsted to londived assets of $0.1 million and $
million in 2012 and 2011, respectively. We did rextord any impairments related to long-lived assef13.

See Notes 1 and 4 of Notes to Consolidated Fine8tagements for additional information.

Deferred Tax Asse

As of December 31, 2013, we had deferred tax as$epproximately $64.2 million and deferred teabiliities of $41.3 million. The principal compons
of our deferred tax assets are related to goodualibwances and accruals, capital loss carryforsjadiferred revenue and cancellation reserves
principal components of our deferred tax liabibt&re related to depreciation on property and @ggii and inventories.

We consider whether it is more likely than not thatne portion or all of the deferred tax assetsnait be realized. The ultimate realization of defd ta:
assets is dependent upon future taxable incomegltine periods in which those temporary differenisesome deductible. We consider the schec
reversal of deferred tax liabilities (including tmepact of available carryback and carryforwardiqguas), projected future taxable income, and piaaning
strategies in making this assessment.
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Based upon the scheduled reversal of deferredahitities, and our projections of future taxabieome over the periods in which the deferred taetasar
deductible, we believe it is more likely than rniwhttwe will realize the benefits of the unresergleductible differences.

As of December 31, 2013, we had an $11.1 millidmaton allowance against our deferred tax as3étis. valuation allowance was mainly associated
losses from the sale of corporate entities. Asett@aounts are characterized as capital lossesyabeated the availability of projected capital gaamc
determined that it would be unlikely these amowntsild be fully utilized. If we are unable to mebetprojected taxable income levels utilized in
analysis, and depending on the availability of f@astax planning strategies, we might record aditeghal valuation allowance on a portion or allafi
deferred tax assets in the future.

Service Contracts and Other Insurance Contracts

We receive commissions from the sale of vehicl&isercontracts and certain other insurance cormstraidte contracts are sold through unrelated
parties, but we may be charged back for a portiche@commissions in the event of early terminatibthe contracts by customers. We sell these aots
on a straight commission basis; in addition, we alarticipate in future underwriting profit purstida retrospective commission arrangements, whie
recognized as income upon receipt.

We record commissions at the time of sale of tHackes, net of an estimated liability for futureacgebacks. We have established a reserve for estii
future charge-backs based on an analysis of hisiozhargdsacks in conjunction with estimated lives of thelagable contracts. If future cancellations
different than expected, we could have additioxplease related to the cancellations in future getivhich could have a material adverse impactuwy
financial position and results of operations.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the reserve fordutancellations totaled $18.2 million and $13.3liom, respectively, and is included in accr
liabilities and other longerm liabilities on our Consolidated Balance She&t§0% increase in expected cancellations wowdltén an additional reser
of approximately $1.8 million.

Lifetime Lube, Oil and Filter Contrac

We retain the obligation for lifetime lube, oil afiler service contracts sold to our customers asslimed the liability of certain existing lifetinlebe, oi
and filter contracts. Payments we receive upon althe lifetime oil contracts are deferred andogaiized in revenue over the expected life of theise
agreement to best match the expected timing ofdisés to be incurred to perform the service. Winesgé the timing and amount of future costs foima
and cancellations related to our lifetime oil cants using historical experience rates and estthfatare costs.

If our estimates of future costs to perform under tontracts exceed the existing deferred revemeayould record a reserve for the additional exge
cost. The estimate of future costs to perform untercontract are mainly dependent on our estimatedber of oil changes to be performed ov
vehicle’s life and our assumptions about future costs depem be incurred. Significant increases to eithfethese assumptions could have a ma
adverse impact on our financial position and resofitoperations.

At December 31, 2013, the deferred revenue relatéiese self-insured contracts was $50.1 million.
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Self-Insurance Programs

We self-insure a portion of our property and casuakurance, medical insurance and workers’ corsgion insurance. We engage thirakties to assist
estimating the loss exposure related to thers¢dfined portion of the risk associated with thieserances. Additionally, we analyze our historicels an
claims trends associated with these programs. Thémum exposure on any single claim under thesgraros is $1 million. Although we believe we h
sufficient insurance, exposure to uninsured or tindered losses may result in the recognition afitawhal charges, which could have a material ask
impact on our financial position and results of gpiens.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had liabilitesoaiated with these programs of $12.0 million $b#.4 million, respectively, recorded as a compt
of accrued liabilities and other long-term liakéi on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Results of Continuing Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we repantamrie from continuing operations, net of tax, 00%2 million, or $4.02 per diluted share. For
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we repondeche from continuing operations, net of tax$@9.4 million, or $3.03 per diluted share, and &
million, or $2.07 per diluted share, respectively.

Discontinued Operations

The results of operations for stores that have ket closed, or are held for sale are presergetisaontinued operations in our Consolidated States o
Operations if they qualify for reclassification wrdhe applicable accounting guidance. As a resultyesults from continuing operations are presgton
comparable basis for all periods. We realized inedrom discontinued operations, net of income tepeese, of $0.8 million, $1.0 million and $3.7 noitl
for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 andl, 28%pectively. See Notes 1 and 16 of Notes tos@atated Financial Statements for additic
information.

Key Performance Metrics
Certain key performance metrics for revenue andgpuofit were as follows for 2013, 2012 and 20ddllérs in thousands):

Percent of Percent of
Total Gross Profit Total
2013 Revenues Revenues Gross Profit Margin Gross Profit
New vehicle $ 2,256,59 56.2% $ 151,11¢ 6.7% 24.(%
Used vehicle retail 1,032,22. 25.€ 150,85¢ 14.€ 23.¢
Used vehicle wholesale 158,23! 3.€ 2,711 1.7 0.4
Finance and insuran¢® 139,00° 3.5 139,00° 100.( 22.C
Service, body and parts 383,48 9.€ 185,57( 48.L 29.4
Fleet and other 36,20: 0.6 1,68¢ 4.7 0.8
$ 4,005,74 100.(% $ 630,95: 15.6% 100.(%
Percent of Percent of
Total Gross Profit Total
2012 Revenues Revenues Gross Profit Margin Gross Profit
New vehicle $ 1,847,60: 55.7% $ 134,44 7.2% 24.%%
Used vehicle retail 833,48 25.1 121,72: 14.¢ 22.€
Used vehicle wholesale 139,23 4.2 1,41« 1.C 0.8
Finance and insuran¢® 112,23 3.4 112,23 100.( 20.¢
Service, body and parts 347,70: 10.5 168,07( 48.2 31.1
Fleet and other 36,22¢ 1.1 1,41¢ 3.c 0.2
$ 3,316,48 100.% $ 539,30( 16.2% 100.(%
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Percent of Percent of
Total Gross Profit Total
2011 Revenues Revenues Gross Profit Margin Gross Profit
New vehicle $ 1,391,37! 52.¢% $ 107,15( 7.7% 24.1%
Used vehicle retail 678,57: 25.€ 98,21« 14.F 22.1
Used vehicle wholesale 128,32¢ 4.¢ 597 0.t 0.1
Finance and insuran€® 84,13( 3.2 84,13( 100.( 18.¢
Service, body and parts 315,95¢ 12.C 152,22( 48.2 34.2
Fleet and other 34,38: 1.2 2,97: 8.€ 0.€
$ 2,632,74 100.(% $ 445 ,28: 16.% 100.(%

(1) Commissions reported net of anticipated cadatehs.

Same Store Operating Data

We believe that same store comparisons are an fengdndicator of our financial performance. Sart@esmeasures demonstrate our ability to profit

grow our existing locations. As a result, sameestoeasures have been integrated into the discussiow.

Same store measures reflect results for storesvidrat operating in each comparison period, and imludes the months when operations occurred ih
periods. For examplea store acquired in August 2012 would be includedame store operating data beginning in Septe2®E3, after its first fu
complete comparable month of operation. The opegatesults for the same store comparisons windtlide results for that store in September thr

December of each year.

New Vehicle Revenue and Gross Prc

Year Ended

December 31, Increase % Increase
(Dollars in thousands, except per unit amounts) 2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Reported
Revenue $ 2,256,591 $ 1,847,60. $ 408,99! 22.1%
Gross profit $ 151,11¢ $ 134,44 $ 16,67 12.4
Gross margin 6.7% 7.5% (60)bp (1)
Retail units sold 66,857 55,66¢ 11,19 20.1
Average selling price per retail unit $ 33,75 $ 33,19 $ 562 1.7
Average gross profit per retail unit $ 2,26 $ 2,418 $ (15%) (6.4)
Same store
Revenue $ 2,148,121 $ 1,845,27. $ 302,85: 16.4%
Gross profit $ 142,87: $ 133,87¢ $ 8,99¢ 6.7
Gross margin 6.7% 7.2% (60)bp ®
Retail units sold 63,48¢ 55,59( 7,89¢ 14.2
Average selling price per retail unit $ 33,83t $ 33,19 % 641 1.¢
Average gross profit per retail unit $ 225 $ 2,40t $ (15¢) (6.€)
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Year Ended

December 31, Increase % Increase
(Dollars in thousands, except per unit amounts) 2012 2011 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Reported
Revenue $ 184760 $ 139137 $ 456,22¢ 32.8%
Gross profit $ 134,44° % 107,15( $ 27,29 25t
Gross margin 7.2% 7.7% (40)bp ®
Retail units sold 55,66¢ 42,13¢ 13,527 32.1
Average selling price per retail unit $ 33,19: % 33,01¢ $ 17z 0.t
Average gross profit per retail unit $ 2,41t % 254 % (12¢) (5.0
Same store
Revenue $ 1,776,890 $ 1,367,171 $ 409,72( 30.(%
Gross profit $ 128,89: $ 104,96( $ 23,93¢ 22.€
Gross margin 7.3% 7.7% (40)bp @
Retail units sold 53,59( 41,39 12,19¢ 290t
Average selling price per retail unit $ 33,157 $ 33,03 % 12¢ 0.4
Average gross profit per retail unit $ 2,408 % 2,536 $ (131) (5.2

(1) A basis point is equal to 1/160 of one percent.

New vehicle sales improved primarily due to volugrewth as ye«overyear same store sales volume increased 14.2% B @hpared to 2012. Tt
growth was in addition to the 29.5% year-oyear same store sales volume increase experien@filP compared to 2011. Our domestic brand saone
unit sales grew 11.8% in 2013 compared to 2012.eSgtore unit sales for import and luxury brandsvgt&.5% and 15.0%, respectively, in 2013 comg
to 2012. We continue to focus on increasing ouresb&overall new vehicle sales within our markets.

Nationally, the number of new vehicles sold in thé. in 2013 grew approximately 8% over 2012. Recpun some of our specific markets behe
differently than the national average. Certain of markets saw an increase in local market salksnes exceeding the national average, while @
continued to lag behind the national average. Athefend of 2013, we believe approximately haldwf markets continue to be below the peeessionai
vehicle registration levels experienced in 2006.

New vehicle gross profit dollars increased 12.492043 compared to 2012. On a same store basis groft increased 6.7% in 2013 compared to z
These increases were due to a greater number megbold, offset by lower gross profit per unmitldower gross margin.

We focus on gross profit dollars earned per umit,aagross margin percentage. On a same store besigverage gross profit per new retail unit ease
$158 in 2013 compared to 2012. This decrease weasply due to the strategic decision to increaskat share through lower pricing. Additions
certain manufacturer incentives are tied to in@sas units sold per store, and, given consecy@ags of significant unit sales increases, thegectie:
have been more difficult to achieve in 2013 thaprior years, resulting in lower total incentiveldos earned.

We believe increasing new unit sales creates additiused vehicle trada-opportunities, finance and insurance sales atgd service work. We belie
the incremental business generated in future pernoll more than offset the lower new vehicle grpssfit per unit that has occurred with the pursdiou

volume-based strategy.

New vehicle sales improved throughout 2012 comp&re2D11 mainly due to an overall market recovéwgditionally, we increased our share of veh
sales in several of our markets in 2012.
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Used Vehicle Retail Revenue and Gross Profit

Year Ended

December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per unit amounts) 2013 2012 Increase % Increase
Reported
Retail revenue $ 1,032,222 $ 833,48 $ 198, 74( 23.&%
Retail gross profit $ 150,85¢ $ 121,72.  $ 29,137 23.¢
Retail gross margin 14.€% 14.€% -
Retail units sold 57,06 47,96¢ 9,09¢ 19.C
Average selling price per retail unit $ 18,09 $ 17,377 $ 7iE 4.1
Average gross profit per retail unit $ 2,64¢ $ 253t $ 10€ 4.2
Same store
Retail revenue $ 981,53t $ 830,43 $ 151,10: 18.2%
Retail gross profit $ 14437¢  $ 121,44t  $ 22,93( 18.€
Retail gross margin 14.7% 14.6% 10bp
Retail units sold 54,33 47,78 6,552 13.7
Average selling price per retail unit $ 18,068 $ 17,38 $ 68t 3.6
Average gross profit per retail unit $ 2651 $ 254: $ 11t 4.5

Year Ended

December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per unit amounts) 2012 2011 Increase % Increase
Reported
Retail revenue $ 833,48 $ 678,57 $ 154,91: 22.8%
Retail gross profit $ 121,72:  $ 98,21+ $ 23,50° 23.¢
Retail gross margin 14.€% 14.5% 1Cbp
Retail units sold 47,96 39,43¢ 8,52¢ 21.€
Average selling price per retail unit $ 17,377 $ 17,200 % 17C 1.C
Average gross profit per retail unit $ 253t $ 2,490 $ 48 1.¢
Same store
Retail revenue $ 802,16¢ $ 664,29: $ 137,87 20.8%
Retail gross profit $ 11781 % 96,12¢ $ 21,69: 22.¢
Retail gross margin 14.7% 14.5% 2Cbp
Retail units sold 46,17¢ 38,62¢ 7,551 19.5
Average selling price per retail unit $ 17,37 $ 17,197 % 174 1.C
Average gross profit per retail unit $ 2551 $ 2,48¢ $ 62 2.t

Used vehicle retail sales are a strategic focusifganic growth. We offer three categories of uaghicles: manufacturer certified pogned vehicles; co
vehicles, or late-model vehicles with lower mileaged value autos, or vehicles with over 80,00@&milAdditionally, our voluméased strategy for ne
vehicle sales increases the organic opportunitptvert vehicles acquired via trade to retail ugshicle sales.

In 2013, sales increased in all three categoriesed vehicles compared to 2012:
e Same store unit sales for manufacturer certffimdowned used vehicles increased 29.6%.
e Same store unit sales for the late model, lowitgage vehicle category increased 6.6%.
e Same store unit sales for the value auto cateégorgased 18.1%.

On average, in 2013 each of our stores sold 58 testad vehicle units per month. This compares@aoetail used vehicle units per store per mont2dh2
We continue to target increasing sales to 75 y@tsstore per month.

Used retail vehicle gross profit dollars increa28d% in 2013 compared to 2012. On a same stois, lggess profit increased 18.9% in 2013 compap

2012. These increases were related to both volumetly and increases in the average gross profitpirsold. Similar to new vehicle sales, we foon
gross profit dollars earned per unit, not on grossgin percentage, in evaluating our sales perfocaa

38




Used vehicle retail unit sales increased in 20X8pmared to 2011 as we increased our volume of saleexperienced growth in all three categoriesseit
vehicle retail sales, especially in our value aigttegory which experienced a same store unit satesase of 36.9% in 2012 compared to 2011.

Used Vehicle Wholesale Revenue and Gross Profit

(Dollars in thousands, except per unit amounts)
Reported

Wholesale revenue

Wholesale gross profit

Wholesale gross margin

Wholesale units sold
Average selling price per wholesale unit
Average gross profit per retail unit

Same store

Wholesale revenue
Wholesale gross profit
Wholesale gross margin

Wholesale units sold
Average selling price per wholesale unit
Average gross profit per retail unit

(Dollars in thousands, except per unit amounts)
Reported

Wholesale revenue

Wholesale gross profit

Wholesale gross margin

Wholesale units sold
Average selling price per wholesale unit
Average gross profit per retail unit

Same store

Wholesale revenue
Wholesale gross profit
Wholesale gross margin

Wholesale units sold
Average selling price per wholesale unit
Average gross profit per retail unit

Year Ended
December 31, Increase % Increase
2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)
$ 158,23 $ 139,23 $ 18,99¢ 13.6%
$ 2,711 $ 1,412 $ 1,29 91.7
1.7% 1.0% 7Cbp
22,08t 19,14 2,942 15.¢
$ 7,16¢ $ 727 % (209 @.5)
$ 122 $ 74 % 49 66.2
$ 149,87¢ $ 138,62: $ 11,25¢ 8.1%
$ 2,75¢  $ 1,38¢ $ 1,36¢ 98.7
1.8% 1.C% 8Cbp
21,02 19,05: 1,971 10.:
$ 7,12¢ % 727¢ % (147) (2.0
$ 131 $ 73 % 58 79.k
Year Ended
December 31, Increase % Increase
2012 2011 (Decrease) (Decrease)
$ 139,237 $ 128,32¢ $ 10,90¢ 8.5%
$ 1,412 % 597 $ 817 136.¢
1.C% 0.5% 5Cbp
19,14 16,08t 3,05¢ 19.C
$ 727 % 797¢ % (70%) (8.6
$ 74 3% 37 % 37 100.(
$ 132,72:. $ 123,04t $ 9,67¢ 7.€%
$ 1,32C $ 63t $ 68t 107.¢
1.C% 0.5% 5Cbp
18,38 15,61 2,77(C 17.7
$ 722C % 7881 $ (661) (8.4
$ 72 $ 4 3 31 75.€

Wholesale transactions are vehicles we have puedhfiem customers or vehicles we have attempteskliovia retail that we elect to dispose of du
inventory age or other factors. Wholesale vehids typically sold at or near inventory cost andndb comprise a meaningful component of our ¢
profit. We generated wholesale gross profit of $8illion, $1.4 million and $0.6 million in 2013, 2@ and 2011, respectively.




Finance and Insurance

Year Ended

December 31, %
(Dollars in thousands, except per unit amounts) 2013 2012 Increase Increase
Reported
Revenue $ 139,000 $ 112,23: % 26,77: 23.9%
Average finance and insurance per retail unit $ 1,122 $ 1,08 $ 3¢ 3.€%
Same store
Revenue $ 131,96( $ 110,25 % 21,70¢ 19.7%
Average finance and insurance per retail unit $ 1,12C $ 1,067 $ 53 5.C%

Year Ended

December 31, %
(Dollars in thousands, except per unit amounts) 2012 2011 Increase Increase
Reported
Revenue $ 112,23: % 84,13( $ 28,10« 33.2%
Average finance and insurance per retail unit $ 1,08 $ 1,031 $ 52 5.C%
Same store
Revenue $ 107,37¢ $ 81,05 $ 26,32: 32.5%
Average finance and insurance per retail unit $ 1,07¢ $ 1,01 $ 63 6.2%

The increases in finance and insurance sales i @0thpared to 2012 were driven by increased vebalies volume. We increased our penetration re
arranging financing for our customers and the shéxtended service contracts and lifetime lubkawd filter contracts. As a result, our averageneie pe
unit increased. We continued to see the availghbift consumer credit expand through 2013 with lesdecreasing the average loanviue amour
available to most customers.

The growth experienced in finance and insuranocessal 2012 compared to 2011 was due to increadedhean retail vehicle sales. Our average rev
per unit increased in 2012 compared to 2011 malangy/to the expansion of consumer credit as we aldeeto arrange financing for more of our customers

Penetration rates for certain products were asviali

2013 2012 2011
Finance and insurance 78% 76% 2%
Service contracts 42 41 41
Lifetime lube, oil and filter contracts 36 35 36
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Service, Body and Parts Revenue and Gross Pi

(Dollars in thousands)
Reported

Customer pay

Warranty

Wholesale parts

Body shop

Total service, body and parts

Service, body and parts gross profit
Service, body and parts gross margin

Same store

Customer pay

Warranty

Wholesale parts

Body shop

Total service, body and parts

Service, body and parts gross profit
Service, body and parts gross margin

(Dollars in thousands)
Reported

Customer pay

Warranty

Wholesale parts

Body shop

Total service, body and parts

Service, body and parts gross profit
Service, body and parts gross margin

Same store

Customer pay

Warranty

Wholesale parts

Body shop

Total service, body and parts

Service, body and parts gross profit
Service, body and parts gross margin

Year Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 Increase % Increase
214,17 $ 196,077 $ 18,09¢ 9.2%
62,58( 52,71 9,867 18.7
70,65¢ 64,13¢ 6,51¢ 10.Z
36,07¢ 34,77+ 1,301 3.7
383,48: $ 347,700 $ 35,78( 10.2%
185,57 $ 168,07 $ 17,50( 10.4%

48.4% 48.%% 1Ccbp
205,46: $ 195,26: $ 10,20: 5.2%
59,74¢ 52,437 7,30¢ 13.€
68,50¢ 63,93¢ 4,571 7.1
36,07¢ 34,76¢ 1,30¢ 3.8
369,78¢ $ 346,40 $ 23,38’ 6.8%
175,66° $ 164,07. $ 11,59¢ 7.1%
47.5% 47 % 1Cbp
Year Ended
December 31, Increase % Increase
2012 2011 (Decrease) (Decrease)
196,077 $ 176,87¢ $ 19,19¢ 10.%
52,71: 52,04 672 1.3
64,13¢ 56,82¢ 7,31 12.¢
34,77 30,21: 4,56 15.1
347,700 $ 315,95¢ $ 31,74¢ 10.(%
168,07 $ 152,22( $ 15,85( 10.4%
48.2% 48.2% 1Cbp
185,047 $ 173,07: $ 11,97 6.€%
49,05¢ 50,40¢ (1,352 2.9
60,93! 56,11 4,82( 8.6
34,76¢ 30,217 4 557 15.1
329,80 $ 309,80 $ 19,99¢ 6.5%
155,81 $ 146,82° $ 8,98¢ 6.1%
47.2% 47 .5% (20)bp

Our service, body and parts sales grew in all are2913 compared to 2012 and in 2012 compared1d 2We focus on retaining customers by offe
competitively priced routine maintenance and insirgg our marketing efforts. We increased our saime customer pay business 5.2% in 2013 com,

to 2012 and 6.9% in 2012 compared to 2011.

In 2013 compared to 2012, same store warranty satesased 13.9%. This increase is due to the asext vehicles in operation as vehicle sales vol
have increased from 2010 to 2013. Additionally taierfranchises provide routine maintenance, sucbilachanges, for two to four years after a vehie
sold, which provides for future work. Domestic tamarranty work increased by 4.8%, while import &mxury warranty work increased by 25.7%

18.3%, respectively, in 2013 compared to 2012. imng@ied luxury warranty work also increased duestent recalls on certain models in 2013.




Wholesale parts represented 18.5% of our same stovice, body and parts revenue mix in 2013 arikk? 2Wholesale parts grew 7.1% on a same
basis in 2013 compared to 2012.

Body shop represented 9.8% of our same store sevady and parts revenue mix in 2013 comparedt0% in 2012. Body shop grew 3.8% in 2
compared to 2012.

Service, body and parts gross profit increased%0m2013 compared to 2012, in line with our rewveguowth. Our gross margins were consistent in
compared to 2012 as margin pressures in our banly shles were outpaced by the growth in our wayrsales.

Sales in service, body and parts revenue grew 1th@012 compared to 2011. This growth was mainjyeeienced in customer pay, wholesale parts
body shop sales as increased vehicle sales volbavesresulted in more vehicles in operations.

Asset Impairment Charge:
Asset impairments recorded as a component of agntjroperations consist of the following (in thonds):

Year Ended December 31, 2013 2012 2011
Asset Impairments
Long-lived assets $ - $ 115 % 1,37¢

During 2012 and 2011, we recorded impairment claeggsociated with certain properties. As the egefttture use of these facilities changed, the-long
lived assets were tested for recoverability. Aesult, we determined the carrying value exceededéah value of these properties and asset impai
charges were recorded. We did not record impairrmieatges in 2013.

See Notes 1 and 4 of Notes to Consolidated FineStagements for additional information.
Selling, General and Administrative Expens‘SG&A”)

SG&A includes salaries and related personnel exggredvertising (net of manufacturer cooperativeegising credits), rent, facility costs, and o
general corporate expenses.

Year Ended
December 31, Increase % Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Personnel $ 278,49 $ 243,24¢ $ 35,24¢ 14.5%
Advertising 39,59¢ 31,91 7,68t 24.1
Rent 13,96: 15,16: (2,200) (7.9
Facility costs 24,44 24,17: 271 1.1
Other 70,90( 59,19: 11,70¢ 19.¢
Total SG&A $ 427,400 $ 373,68t $ 53,71. 14.2
Year Ended
December 31, Increase
As a % of gross profit 2013 2012 (Decrease)
Personnel 44.1% 45.1% (200)bps
Advertising 6.2 5.¢ 4C
Rent 2.2 2.8 (60)
Facility costs 3.6 4.t (60)
Other 11.2 11.C 20
Total SG&A 67.7% 69.2% (160)bps




Year Ended

December 31, %

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Increase Increase
Personnel $ 243,24¢ % 210,99t $ 32,25: 15.2%
Advertising 31,91 23,87¢ 8,03¢ 33.7
Rent 15,16: 13,25¢ 1,90¢ 14.¢
Facility costs 24,17: 17,26( 6,91: 40.C
Other 59,19: 51,27¢ 7,91¢ 15.2
Total SG&A $ 373,68t $ 316,66: $ 57,02¢ 18.C

Year Ended

December 31, Increase
As a % of gross profit 2012 2011 (Decrease)
Personnel 45.1% 47.2% (230)bps
Advertising 5.6 5.4 5C
Rent 2.8 3.C (20
Facility costs 4.5 3.8 7C
Other 11.C 11.F (50)
Total SG&A 69.2% 71.1% (180)bps

SG&A expense increased $53.7 million in 2013 comgao 2012. These increases were primarily driverinbreased variable costs associated
improved sales and increases in advertising asosmeséd on gaining market share. Additionally, ii20we recorded a $6.2 million expense in ¢
associated with a non-core legal reserve relatatidasettlement of a claim filed in 2006. This vedfset by a $2.5 million nogere gain on the sale
property, which was recorded as a component dlitfacosts.

In 2012, SG&A expense increased $57.0 million agabée costs increased associated with sales grohsse increases in cost were offset by a cord
focus on maintaining fixed costs. Additionally, vezorded a non-core gain of $6.9 million on the sdlproperty as a component of facility costs@i2

SG&A as a percentage of gross profit was 67.7%0itB2Zompared to 69.3% in 2012 and 71.1% in 201tluging the norcore legal reserve and gain
the sale of property in 2013 and the gain on the shproperty in 2011, SG&A expense as a percenti#ggross profit was 67.2% in 2013 compare
69.4% in 2012 and 72.5% in 2011. See “Non-GAAP Reiiations” in Managemens' Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord d&esults ¢
Operations for more details. As sales volume iregsand we further leverage our cost structureantieipate maintaining SG&A as a percentage ofg
profit in the upper 60% range in 2014.

We also measure the leverage of our cost struttyirevaluating throughput, which is the incrememicentage of gross profit retained after dedu
SG&A expense.

Year Ended

December 31, % of Change in
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 Change Gross Profit
Gross profit $ 630,95! $ 539,30( $ 91,65: 100.(%
SG&A expense (427,400 (373,689 (53,717 (58.€)
Throughput contribution $ 37,94: 41./%

Year Ended

December 31, % of Change in
(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Change Gross Profit
Gross profit $ 539,30 $ 44528: $ 94,01¢ 100.(%
SG&A expense (373,68 (316,66 (57,029 (60.7)
Throughput contribution $ 36,99 39.2%

Throughput contributions for newly opened or acedistores reduce overall throughput as in the yigar of operation, a stosethroughput is equal to t
inverse of their SG&A as a percentage of grossifprbbr example, a store which achieves SG&A assmgntage of gross profit of 70% will hi
throughput of 30% in the first year of operation.
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We acquired six stores and opened one new st@@li8 and acquired four stores and opened two nawssin 2012. Adjusting for these locations anc
non-<core adjustments discussed above, our throughpitilzation on a same store basis was 51.4% folyda ended December 31, 2013 compart
2012. Our throughput contribution on a same stasésbfor 2012 compared to 2011 was 51.2%. We caatio target a same store throughput contrib
of approximately 50%.

Depreciation and Amortizatiot
Depreciation and amortization is comprised of dejpteon expense related to buildings, significamodels or improvements, furniture, tools, equipt
and signage and amortization of certain intangilskets, including customer lists and non-competeatents.

Year Ended
December 31, %
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 Increase Increase
Depreciation and amortization $ 20,03 $ 17,12¢ $ 2,901 17.%
Year Ended
December 31, %
(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Increase Increase
Depreciation and amortization $ 17,12¢ $ 16,427 $ 701 4.2%

Depreciation and amortization increased $2.9 mmiliio 2013 compared to 2012, and $0.7 million in2@bmpared to 2011, as we purchased previ
leased facilities, built new facilities subsequemthe acquisition of stores and invested in improents at our facilities and replacement of equigt
These investments increase the amount of depredaikts and amortizable expenses.

Operating Income
Operating income was 4.6%, 4.5% and 4.2% of revemspectively, in 2013, 2012 and 2011. The in@eas 2013 compared to 2012, and 2012 com|
to 2011 were primarily due to improved sales anttinaed cost control.

Floor Plan Interest Expense and Floor Plan Assiste@
Floor plan interest expense decreased $0.4 milhioB013 compared to 2012. Changes in the averaggaoding balances on our floor plan facili
increased the expense $2.6 million, changes irintieegest rates on our floor plan facilities decezhthe expense $0.7 million and the maturity oéd
interest rate swaps decreased the expense $2i@mill

Floor plan interest expense increased $2.5 millioi2012 compared to 2011. Changes in the averaggaoding balances on our floor plan facili
increased the expense $3.5 million and changdseiinterest rates on our floor plan facilities éesed the expense $1.8 million during 2012 compia
2011. Ineffectiveness from hedging interest ratepsaincreased the expense $0.8 million.

Floor plan assistance is provided by manufactumesipport store financing of new vehicle inventdgpnder accounting standards, floor plan assisté
recorded as a component of new vehicle gross pntifén the specific vehicle is sold. However, beeamsnufacturers provide this assistance to «
inventory carrying costs, we believe a comparisbfiamr plan interest expense to floor plan assistais a useful measure of the efficiency of ouww
vehicle sales relative to stocking levels.
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The following tables detail the carrying coststiew vehicles and include new vehicle floor plaeiast net of floor plan assistance earned.

Year Ended
December 31, %
2013 2012 Increase Increase

(Dollars in thousands) (Decrease) (Decrease)
Floor plan interest expense (new vehicles) $ 12,37: $ 12,81¢ $ (447) (3.9%
Floor plan assistance (included as an offset tbafosales) (20,967 (16,639 4,33¢ 26.1
Net new vehicle carrying costs (bene $ (8,599 $ (3.81) s 4,77 125.:%

Year Ended

December 31, %
(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 Increase Increase
Floor plan interest expense (new vehicles) $ 12,81¢ $ 10,36¢ $ 2,452 23.1%
Floor plan assistance (included as an offset tbafosales) (16,639 (12,587) 4,051 32.2
Net new vehicle carrying costs (bene 3$ (381) $ (2219 3 1,59¢ 72.1%

Other Interest Expense
Other interest expense includes interest on deliried related to acquisitions, real estate moggamd our used vehicle inventory financing faciinc
our revolving line of credit.

Year Ended %
December 31, Increase Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Mortgage interest $ 6,51¢ $ 8,14¢ $ (1,629 (20.0%
Other interest 1,91¢ 1,761 14¢ 8.4
Capitalized interest (85) (294 (209) (71.7)
Total other interest expense $ 8,35( $ 9,621 ¢ (1,279 (13.9%
Year Ended %
December 31, Increase Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Mortgage interest $ 8,14¢ $ 11,398 $ (3,247 (28.5%
Other interest 1,767 1,64¢ 121 7.4
Capitalized interest (299 (169 131 80.4
Total other interest expense $ 9,621 $ 12,87¢ ¢ (3,257 (25.9%

For 2013 compared to 2012, other interest decre$%e®l million primarily due to net mortgage redoos of $28.1 million in 2013. In addition,
refinanced mortgages at lower interest rates, wioiakered interest expense. Total other interesersp also decreased due to lower volumes of barg
on our credit facility.

Other interest expense decreased $3.3 million 2 2@mpared to 2011 primarily due to the retirenadrgpproximately $36.4 million in mortgages ma
in the first half of 2012. We also refinanced maggs resulting in reduced interest rates. We had3$4illion in mortgage issuances, mainly occurriin
the fourth quarter of 2012, which had minimal imipax interest expense for the full year. This daseerelated to mortgage interest was offset byel
volumes of borrowing on our credit facility.

Other Income, net

Other income, net primarily includes interest ineoamd, beginning in 2012, the gains related tocarite investment. Other income, net was $3.0 mi|
$2.5 million and $0.7 million for 2013, 2012 andl2Qrespectively.
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Income Tax Expenst

Our effective income tax rate was 36.5% in 20132%8in 2012 and 37.5% in 2011. Our federal incoaxerate is 35.0% and our state income tax r:
currently 3.4%, which varies with the mix of statesere our stores are located. In 2013, we expegbieneficial tax treatment associated with aa
state tax credits, capital gains as well as taefisnassociated with the American Taxpayer Relieff of 2012 enacted at the beginning of 2013. Ve
have certain non-deductible expenses and othestaaunts that impact our effective rate. Excludimg noneore tax attributes associated with the treat
of our capital gains and adjusting for other norecitems, our effective income tax rate was 38.292013. See “Non-GAAP Reconciliation&3r more
details.

Non-GAAP Reconciliations

We believe each of the ndBAAP financial measures below improves the trarepar of our disclosures, provides a meaningfulg&sion of our resul
from the core business operations because thewdxddjustments for items not related to our orga@are business operations and other cest-
adjustments, and improves the periogp&siod comparability of our results from the corgsibpess operations. Our management uses these reeda
conjunction with GAAP financial measures to assesshusiness, including our compliance with covesamour credit facility and in communications a
our board of directors concerning financial perfanoe. These measures should not be consideretbamaéive to GAAP measures.

The following tables reconcile certain reported 1@MNAP measures to the most comparable GAAP measora bur Consolidated Statements
Operations (dollars in thousands, except per sra@ints):

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Disposal Reserve Tax

As reported Gain adjustments attribute Adjusted
Selling, general and administrative $ 427,400 $ 2,531 (6,159 $ - $ 423,77¢
Operating income $ 183,51¢ $ (2,53 6,15 $ - $ 187,14(
Income from continuing operations before incomesax $ 165,78¢ $ (2,53)) 6,15 $ - $ 169,41(
Income tax provision (60,579 96¢€ (2,359 (2,837 (64,797
Income from continuing operations, net of income ta $ 105,21: $ (1,569 3,80C $ (2,83) $ 104,61
Diluted income per share from continuing operations $ 40z $ (0.0€) 014 $ (0.1 $ 3.9¢
Diluted income per share from discontinued openatio 0.0 - - - 0.0
Diluted net income per share $ 408 $ (0.0 $ 014 $ (01) s 4.0z
Diluted share count 26,19:
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Asset impairments
Selling, general and administrative

Income from operations
Other income, net

Income from continuing operations before income$ax
Income tax provision

Income from continuing operations, net of income ta
Income from discontinued operations, net of incaaxe
Net income

Diluted income per share from continuing operations
Diluted income per share from discontinued openatio
Diluted net income per share

Diluted share count

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Asset
impairment
and disposal Equity
As reported gain investment Tax attribute Adjusted
$ 115 $ (115 $ - 3 - 3 -
$ 373,68t $ 73¢ % - % - $ 374,42
$ 148,36¢ $ (6249 $ - $ - $ 147,74
$ 2,52t $ - % (249 $ - % 2,281
$ 128,45 $ (629 $ (249 $ - $ 127,58¢
(49,067 244 95 (1,440 (50,169
$ 79,39 $ (380 $ (149 $ (1,440 $ 77,42¢
967 (172 - - 795
$ 80,36: $ (552) $ (149) $ (1,440 $ 78,22:
$ 3.0 $ 0.00) $ 0.00) $ 0.0 $ 2.9¢
0.04 (0.09) - - 0.0
$ 3.07 $ (0.02) $ (0.07) $ (0.0 $ 2.9¢
26,17(
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Year Ended December 31, 2011

Asset
impairment
and disposal Reserve
As reported gain adjustments Adjusted

Cost of Sales — service, body and parts $ 163,73¢ $ - $ (950 $ 162,78t
Gross Profit $ 44528: $ - % 95C $ 446,23
Asset impairments $ 1,37¢ $ (1,37¢) $ - $ -
Selling, general and administrative $ 316,66. $ 6,881 $ - $ 323,54«
Income from operations $ 110,81¢ $ (5,505 $ 95C $ 106,26:
Income from continuing operations before incomegsax $ 88,27( $ (5,505 $ 95C $ 83,71¢
Income tax provision (33,060 1,72¢ (360) (31,69¢)
Income from continuing operations, net of income ta $ 55,21( $ (3,78) $ 50C $ 52,01¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of incaaxe 3,65( (2,61¢) - 1,03¢
Net income $ 58,86( $ (6,397 $ 59C $ 53,05:
Diluted income per share from continuing operations $ 207 $ 0.19 $ 00z $ 1.9t
Diluted income per share from discontinued openatio 0.14 (0.10 - 0.04
Diluted net income per share $ 221 % (029 $ 0.0z $ 1.9¢
Diluted share count 26,66¢

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We manage our liquidity and capital resources talie to fund our operating, investing and finagcactivities. We rely primarily on cash flows fr
operations and borrowings under our credit agreésnas the main sources for liquidity. We use thios®ls to invest in capital expenditures, incr
working capital and fulfill contractual obligationBunds available for reinvestment in our busiregsused for acquisitions as well as managemeaoti
capital structure through debt retirement, casiddivds and share repurchases.

Available Source:
Below is a summary of our immediately availabledsifin thousands):

%

As of December 31, Increase Increase
2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,68t $ 42,83¢ $ (29,159 (44.7%
Available credit on the Credit Facility 159,591 120,53t 39,06( 32.¢
Total current available funds $ 183,28. $ 163,37" $ 19,907 12.2%
Estimated funds from unfinanced real estate 135,74! 76,58¢ 59,16(
Total estimated available funds $ 319,03: $ 239,96: $ 79,06"

Our cash flows generated by operating activitied aar credit facility are our most significant sces of liquidity. We have a $1.0 billion revolv
syndicated credit facility which matures in DecemB618. This facility provides new vehicle inventditoor plan financing, used vehicle invent
financing and a revolving line of credit for gerlararporate purposes.
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We also have the ability to raise funds throughtgaging real estate. As of December 31, 2013, aencumbered owned operating real estate had a
book value of $181.0 million. Assuming we can obtéinancing on 75% of this value, we estimate welddave obtained additional funds of
approximately $135.8 million at December 31, 20ti@wever, no assurances can be provided that thaiapg value of this property will match or
exceed its book value or that this capital souritibe available on terms acceptable to us.

In addition to the above sources of liquidity, pdigl sources include the placement of subordindtggbntures or loans, the sale of equity secuatiels
the sale of store sales or other asset. We evadlladé these options and may select one or mort@h depending on overall capital needs and the
availability and cost of capital, although no asses can be provided that these capital sourdebenvavailable in sufficient amounts or with terms
acceptable to us.

Information about our cash flows, by category, presented in our Consolidated Statement of Cashi=ldhe following table summarizes our cash fl
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013, 20822011

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi ~ $ 32,05¢ $ (212,476 $ (76€)
Netcash used in investing activities (130,32) (98,997 (39,42
Net cash provided by financing activiti 79,11( 333,46 51,73
Operating Activities
Below is summary of our cash flow from operating\aites:
Year Ended
December 31, Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 (Decrease)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating acti— as reported $ 32,05¢ $ (212,470 $ 244,53!
Add: Net borrowings on floor plan notes payableyrade 128,63t 348,47 (219,84))
Net cash provided by operating activ— adjusted 160,69! 136,00: 24,69
Year Ended
December 31, Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 (Decrease)
Net cash used in operating activ— as reported $ (212,470 $ (76€) $ (211,710
Add: Net borrowings on floor plan notes payabley-tr@de 348,47 63,14! 285,33.
Net cash provided by operating activ- adjusted 136,00: 62,37¢ 73,62:

Cash provided by operating activities for 2013 caneg to 2012 increased $244.5 million. Borrowimgsf and repayments to our syndicated lending ¢
related to our new vehicle inventory floor plandiiiting are presented as financing activity. Todbathderstand the impact of changes in inventodythe
associated financing, we also consider our net pesvided by operating activities adjusted to in@wcash activity associated with our new vehictzli
facility. Adjusted net cash provided by operatingiaties increased $24.7 million in 2013 compated2012. This increase was primarily driven
increased net income as well as growth in our a&cthiabilities and deferred revenues.

Inventories are the most significant componentwfaeash flow from operations. Net cash used astatiaith inventory decreased $123.5 million in 2
compared to 2012 and increased $152.2 million il228mpared to 201As of December 31, 2013, our new vehicle days suppls 74, or 2 days low
than our days supply as of December 31, 2012. @ys dupply of used vehicles was 63 days as of DeeeB1, 2013, or 7 days higher than our days s!
as of December 31, 2012. We calculate days sugpiwentory based on current inventory levels, edilg in-transit vehicles, and a 8@y historical co:
of sales level. We have continued to focus on miagagur unit mix and maintaining an appropriateclesf new and used vehicle inventory.
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Investing Activities
Below are highlights of significant activity relatéo our cash flows from investing activities:

Year Ended
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) Increase
2013 2012 (Decrease)
Capital expenditures $ (50,02 $ (64,589 $ (14,559
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (81,10 (44,716 36,38¢
Year Ended
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) Increase
2012 2011 (Decrease)
Capital expenditures $ (64,589 $ (31,679 $ 32,91
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (44,716 (60,485 (15,769

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures were $50.0 million, $64.6 imill and $31.7 million for 2013, 2012 and 2011, eetively. Capital expenditures in 2013 w
associated with capital improvements at recenttyuamed stores, purchases of land for expansiorxisfieg stores, image improvements, purchasesooé
facilities, purchases of previously leased faeititand replacement of equipment. The increasepitataxpenditures in 2012 compared to 2011 wasily
related to the building of facilities for an awaddepen point, the purchase of previously leaseiiitfas, image improvements and the constructionaoi
relocation to, a new headquarters building.

Many manufacturers provide assistance in the fofradalitional vehicle incentives if facilities mebage standards and requirements. Certain fe
upgrades and remodels will generate additional fis@twrer incentive payments. We expect a portioauwffuture capital expenditures to be associatitit
facility upgrades at recently completed acquisgiomhis additional capital investment is contengglain our initial evaluation of the investment re
metrics applied to each acquisition and is usualociated with manufacturer image standards apireenents.

Acquisitions

We acquired six stores, one franchise and one stime body shop in 2013. The combined estimaeatiystate annual revenues for these acquisitior
$150 million. In 2012 we acquired four stores. Ehesquisitions diversify our brand and geographix as we continue to evaluate our portfolic
minimize exposure to any one manufacturer and getfinancial returns.

We focus on purchasing underperforming stores aedcommon systems and measurements to improvefiti@icial results. Our investment metrics
acquisitions are as follows:

e a 75-100% after tax return on equity after fieass

e aninvestment in economic value of three to fimees earnings before interest, taxes, depreciatimhamortization (EBITDA)

e an equity investment of 10%-20% of revenues.
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Financing Activities
Below are highlights of significant activity relatéo our cash flows from financing activities:

Year Ended

December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 (Decrease)
Net borrowings (repayments) on lines of crt $ (14,359 $ 12,35: $ (26,709
Principal payments on long-term debt, unscheduled (25,770) (40,76%) (14,995
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt 4,72( 42,33: (37,619
Repurchases of common stock (7,909 (23,279 (15,37¢)
Dividends paid (20,08%) (12,06¢€) (2,987

Year Ended

December 31, Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 (Decrease)
Net borrowings on lines of crec $ 12,35: $ 47,000 $ (34,64¢)
Principal payments on long-term debt, unscheduled (40,76%) (55,66¢) (14,907)
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt 42,33 25,674 16,65¢
Repurchases of common stock (23,279 (13,56%) 9,711
Dividends paid (12,06¢) (6,822 5,24¢

Borrowing and Repayment Activ

During 2013, we had a net repayment of $14.4 milkssociated with our used vehicle financing fgc#ind our revolving line of credit. Additionallye
strategically paid off $25.8 million in outstandingprtgages and had proceeds from mortgage finamdiftd.7 million. This activity extends our ne@rr
maturities and reduces our interest expense.

We continue to deleverage our balance sheet, wirimides us with liquidity for future reinvestmeénto our business as accretive opportunities afiseni
December 31, 2013 our debt to total capital, exndloor plan notes payable, was 32.0% comparetDt8% for the same period a year ago.

Equity Transaction

Under the share repurchase program authorized byoard of Directors and repurchases associateld stidck compensation activity, we repurchi
187,621 shares of common stock at an average pfi@2.12 per share in 2013. As of December 31320& have 1,726,953 shares available
repurchase under the plan. The plan does not hmegpiration date and we may continue to repurcbhaesd from time to time as conditions warrant.

For the period January 1, 2013 through Decembe2@®13, we declared and paid dividends on our Glaasd Class B Common Stock as follows:

Total amount of

Dividend amount dividend (in
Dividend paid: per share thousands)
March 2013 $ * $ *
May 2013 0.1z 3,35¢
August 2013 0.1% 3,362
November 201. 0.1< 3,36¢

* A dividend payment of $0.10 per share was dedlaned paid in December 2012 in lieu of the dividgypically declared and paid in March of
the following year.

Management evaluates performance and makes a rezmshation to the Board of Directors on dividend pagits on a quarterly basis.
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Contractual Payment Obligations
A summary of our contractual commitments and oliliges as of December 31, 2013, was as followsh@usands):

Payments Due By Period

Contractual Obligation Total 2014 2015 and 2016 2017 and 2018 2019 and
beyond

New vehicle floor plan commitme(?) $ 695,06t $ 695,06t $ - $ - % =
Floor plan notes payab(® 18,78¢ 18,78¢ - - -
Used vehicle inventory financing facility 85,00( - - 85,00( -
Revolving line of credit - - - - -
Liabilities related to assets held for sale 6,271 6,271 - - -
Real estate debt, including interest 197,44 12,84« 49,11¢ 38,60: 96,88:
Other debt, including capital leases and interest 3,64 26¢ 48k 36¢ 2,52¢
Charge-backs on various contracts 18,18: 10,22: 7,25 68t 22
Operating lease®) 135,54: 17,45¢ 29,97¢ 23,58: 64,521
Fixed rate payments on interest rate swaps 3,42¢ 1,41¢ 2,01( - -

$ 1,163,36 $ 762,33! $ 88,84: $ 148,23 $ 163,95:

@ Amounts for floor plan notes payable, the usedaletinventory financing facility and the revolvitige of credit do not include estimated inte

payments. See Notes 1 and 6 in the Notes to Colasetl Financial Statements.
Amounts for operating lease commitments do nouitelsublease income, and certain operating expsasbsas maintenance, insurance anc
estate taxes. See Note 7 in the Notes to Consetidéhancial Statements.

(2
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Selected Consolidated Quarterly Financial Data
The following tables set forth our unaudited qudyténancial datd?) (2 .

2013 (in thousands, except per share data ) Three Months Ended,
March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
Revenues:
New vehicle $ 493,44: $ 569,48 $ 604,13! $ 589,53!
Used vehicle retail 239,22¢ 258,46! 280,73« 253,79
Used vehicle wholesale 39,50¢ 37,69: 43,39¢ 37,64
Finance and insurance 31,66: 34,21¢ 37,13: 35,99
Service, body and parts 90,44( 94,46: 97,78¢ 100,79
Fleet and other 8,80z 14,18 6,10¢ 7,10¢
Total revenues 903,08( 1,008,50! 1,069,229 1,024,87.
Cost of sales 756,64: 848,67: 903,90: 865,58:
Gross profit 146,43t 159,83: 165,38 159,29:
Selling, general and administrative 101,13: 109,28: 108,57( 108,41¢
Depreciation and amortization 4,721 4,89¢ 5,09¢ 5,31¢
Operating income 40,58¢ 45 65! 51,72( 45,56
Floor plan interest expense (3,449 (3,03¢) (2,909 (2,979
Other interest expense (2,367 (2,947 (1,939 (2,115
Other, net 801 584 83t 778
Income from continuing operations before income$ax 35,577 41,25¢ 47,718 41,24(
Income tax provision (13,695 (15,979 (16,827 (14,080
Income before discontinued operations 21,88: 25,28: 30,89: 27,16(
Discontinued operations, net of tax 172 274 127 212
Net income $ 22,05 $ 2555 $ 31,01¢ $ 27,37:
Basic income per share from continuing operations $ 0.8t $ 09¢ $ 1.2C $ 1.0t
Basic income per share from discontinued operations 0.01 0.01 - 0.01
Basic net income per share $ 0.8¢ $ 0.9¢ $ 1.2C $ 1.0€
Diluted income per share from continuing operations $ 084 $ 097 $ 1.1¢ $ 1.0¢
Diluted income per share from discontinued openatio 0.01 0.01 - 0.01
Diluted net income per share $ 0.8t $ 0.9¢ $ 118 $ 1.04
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2012 (in thousands, except per share data ) Three Months Ended,

March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31

Revenues:
New vehicle $ 392,94t $ 45593¢ $ 49184 $ 506,87
Used vehicle retail 190,61¢ 207,34: 227,15 208,36’
Used vehicle wholesale 33,350 35,10¢ 35,00¢ 35,76¢
Finance and insurance 24,877 27,18 30,93( 29,24
Service, body and parts 83,54« 85,45¢ 89,03¢ 89,66:
Fleet and other 12,90: 11,317 4 54¢ 7,45¢
Total revenues 738,24¢ 822,34 878,52¢ 877,37:
Cost of sales 613,91 688,24t 736,01t 739,01
Gross profit 124,33« 134,09¢ 142 ,51( 138,36(
Asset impairments 115 = - =
Selling, general and administrative 88,44( 92,99( 95,13: 97,12¢
Depreciation and amortization 4,13¢ 4,19¢ 4,35] 4,441
Operating income 31,64 36,90¢ 43,02: 36,79¢
Floor plan interest expense (2,907) (3,059 (3,370 (3,490
Other interest expense (2,726 (2,53)) (2,125 (2,239
Other, net 49¢ 82( 452 754
Income from continuing operations before incomesax 26,51 32,14: 37,98¢ 31,81¢
Income tax provision (9,877) (12,139 (14,897) (12,15¢)
Income before discontinued operations 16,63¢ 20,00¢ 23,09 19,66¢
Discontinued operations, net of tax 162 48€ 15C 16¢
Net income $ 16,79¢ $ 20,49. $ 23,24: $ 19,83
Basic income per share from continuing operations $ 064 $ 0.7¢ $ 091 % 0.77
Basic income per share from discontinued operations 0.01 0.0z - -
Basic net income per share $ 0.6t $ 0.8 $ 091 $ 0.77
Diluted income per share from continuing operations $ 0.6z $ 0.7¢ $ 09C $ 0.7¢
Diluted income per share from discontinued openatio - 0.0z - -
Diluted net income per share $ 0.6 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.9C $ 0.7¢

(1) Quarterly data may not add to yearly totals duetmding.
(2) Certain reclassifications of amounts previgusported have been made to the quarterly finhdei@ to maintain consistency and comparability
between periods present

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any offalance sheet arrangements that have or are rédgdikaly to have a material current or futureesff on our financial conditio
changes in financial condition, revenues or expenssults of operations, liquidity, capital expiémes or capital resources.

Inflation and Changing Prices
Inflation and changing prices did not have a matémpact on our revenues or income from continuwpgrations in the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Mirket Risk

Variable Rate Debt

Our credit facility, other floor plan notes payabled certain real estate mortgages are structwedréable rate debt. The interest rates on ouabiar rat
debt are tied to either the onenth LIBOR or the prime rate. These debt obligatjadherefore, expose us to variability in intepsgments due to chany
in these rates. Certain floor plan debt is basedp@m-ended lines of credit tied to each individitate from the various manufacturer finance coriggn
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Our variablerate floor plan notes payable, variable rate mgegaotes payable and other credit line borrowinggest us to market risk exposure.
December 31, 2013, we had $833.8 million outstapdinder such agreements at a weighted averageshiate of 1.5% per annum. A 10% increa:
interest rates, or 15 basis points, would incremseual interest expense by approximately $0.8 aonillinet of tax, based on amounts outstandil
December 31, 2013.

Fixed Rate Debt

The fair value of our longerm fixed interest rate debt is subject to interate risk. Generally, the fair value of fixedangst rate debt will increase
interest rates fall because we would expect tolbe @ refinance for a lower rate. Conversely, féie value of fixed interest rate debt will decreas
interest rates rise. The interest rate changestaffe fair value but do not impact earnings ohdésws.

At December 31, 2013, we had $132.6 million of legn fixed interest rate debt outstanding and ®dron the balance sheet, with maturity ¢
between November 2016 and May 2031. Based on disedwcash flows using current interest rates fongarable debt, we have determined that the
value of this long-term fixed interest rate debswapproximately $126.8 million at December 31, 2013

Hedging Strategie:
We believe it is prudent to limit the variability a portion of our interest payments. Accordindghpm time to time we have entered into interest tvap
to manage the variability of our interest rate esype, thus leveling a portion of our interest exgeeim a changing rate environment.

We have effectively changed the variable-rate damsk exposure on a portion of our floor plan debtfixed-rate cash flows by entering into receive-
variable, payfixed interest rate swaps. Under the interest sataps, we receive variable interest rate paymemdsnaake fixed interest rate payme
thereby creating fixed rate floor plan debt.

We do not enter into derivative instruments for aoypose other than to manage interest rate ex@oghat is, we do not engage in interest rate dpon
using derivative instruments. Typically, we designall interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges.

As of December 31, 2013, we had a $25 million egerate swap outstanding with U.S. Bank Dealer @erial Services. This interest rate swap matures
on June 15, 2016 and has a fixed rate of 5.587%marm. The variable rate on the interest rate ssvtie one-month LIBOR rate. At December 31, 2013,
the one-month LIBOR rate was 0.17% per annum, @ated in the Wall Street Journal.

The fair value of our interest rate swap agreenmeptesents the estimated receipts or paymentsabaid be made to terminate the agreement. 1
amounts related to our cash flow hedges are redaseleferred gains or losses in our ConsolidatddriBe Sheets with the offset recorded in accuen
other comprehensive income, net of tax. At Decer8tie2013, the fair value of all of our agreememés a liability of $2.9 million. The estimated amt¢
expected to be reclassified into earnings witharbxt twelve months was $1.2 million at Decemigr2813.

Risk Management Policie
We assess interest rate cash flow risk by idemigfyind monitoring changes in interest rate expasiina may adversely impact expected future caste

and by evaluating hedging opportunities. Our poigcio manage this risk through a mix of fixed rate variable rate debt structures and interestsnatps

We maintain risk management controls to monitoerest rate cash flow attributable to both our @mding and forecasted debt obligations, as wetiue
offsetting hedge positions. The risk managementrotminclude assessing the impact to future chmstsfof changes in interest rates.
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Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Financial Da

The financial statements and notes thereto requyeithis item begin on page Fas listed in Item 15 of Part IV of this documeQuarterly financial da
for each of the eight quarters in the two-yearqebended December 31, 2013 is included in Item 7.

Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants @kccounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

Our management evaluated, with the participatiahwnder the supervision of our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, the effectivene
our disclosure controls and procedures as of tlikadrthe period covered by this Annual Report omnfFd0K. Based on this evaluation, our Ct
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officesncluded that our disclosure controls and procedare effective to ensure that information we
required to disclose in reports that we file ormsitbunder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 isuawlated and communicated to our managel
including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chighancial Officer, as appropriate to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure and thelt
information is recorded, processed, summarized-eparted within the time periods specified in Sé@s and Exchange Commission rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportm
There was no change in our internal control ovearftial reporting that occurred during our lastdlsquarter that has materially affected or is oaably
likely to materially affect our internal control evfinancial reporting .

Managemen's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repartg
Our management is responsible for establishing rathtaining adequate internal control over finahecgporting. Our internal control over financ
reporting is designed to provide reasonable assarsegarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of financial statements faerea
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles.

Our management assessed the effectiveness ofteamahcontrol over financial reporting as of Det®m31, 2013. In making this assessment, we us
criteria set forth innternal Control — Integrated Framework (1998%ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission.

In accordance with guidance issued by the SEC, eorep are permitted to exclude acquisitions froeirtfinal assessment of internal controls «
financial reporting during the year of the acquasitwhile integrating the acquired operations. Mgaraents evaluation of internal control over finan
reporting excludes the operations of the sevenisitigms completed in 2013. These acquisitionses@nt approximately 3% of consolidated total asm
approximately 2% of consolidated revenues for @& ended December 31, 2013.

Based on our assessment, our management conchateds of December 31, 2013, our internal comivel financial reporting was effective.
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KPMG LLP, our Independent Registered Public Accogntirm, has issued an attestation report on potarmal control over financial reporting as
December 31, 2013, which is included in Item 8hif Form 10-K.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govenance

Information required by this item will be includedhder the caption&lection of Directors, Committees of the Board dfebtors, Audit Committe
Independence and Financial Expi, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Named ExecQfificersand Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Repor
Compliancen our Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meetfigghareholders and, upon filing, is incorporatecein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be indied under the captiofS8ompensation of Directors, Compensation CommittepoR, Compensatic
Discussion and AnalysiExecutive Compensation, Potential Payments Upomihation or Change-irGontrol, Company Compensation Policies
Practices, Risk Analysiand Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Egudition in our Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meetif
Shareholders and, upon filing, is incorporated indog reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownersand Management

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes equity securitiethatized for issuance as of December 31, 2013.

Number of
securities
Number of remaining available
securities to be for future issuance
issued upon Weighted average under equity
exercise of exercise price of compensation plan
outstanding outstanding (excluding
options, warrants options, warrants securities reflected
Plan Category and rights (a) and rights (b) in column (a)) (c)®
Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders 2,177,36:
Options 58,88: $ 6.5¢
Restricted stock units 677,35¢ NAD
Equity compensation plans not approved by sharensld . . .
Total 736,24: $ 6.53(1) 2,177,36:

(1) There is no exercise price associated withrestricted stock units. The total weighted averxgrcise price is shown with respect to optiorig.on
(2) Includes 1,573,080 shares available pursuant to26B8 Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan684¢288 shares available pursuant tc
Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
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The additional information required by this itenmlie included under the capti@ecurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dahagemenin our
Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting of 8hatders and, upon filing, is incorporated hersimdference.

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactionsand Director Independence

The information required by this item will be inded under the captior@ertain Relationships and Related TransactiandDirector Independenci out
Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting of 8hatders and, upon filing, is incorporated hersimdference.

Iltem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information required by this item will be includedder the captiofrees Paid to KPMG LLP Related to Fiscal 2013 antiZ2@nd Pre-Approval Policigs
our Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meetingbéreholders and, upon filing, is incorporated indog reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements and Schedules
The Consolidated Financial Statements, togethér tivét report thereon of KPMG LLP, Independent Reggsl Public Accounting Firm, are included on
pages indicated below:

Page
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing F-1, F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012012 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yer@aed December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incoménéoyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&epsity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20822011 F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeated December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-8

There are no schedules required to be filed henewit
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Exhibits
The following exhibits are filed herewith and thist is intended to constitute the exhibit indexa Asterisk (*) beside the exhibit number indicates
exhibits containing a management contract, compensplan or arrangement, which are required tabatified in this report.

Exhibit Description
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of Lithiaotdrs, Inc., as amended May 13, 1999 (incorporayectference to exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended Decembei339)

3.2 2013 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Lithiadvgtinc. (incorporated by reference to exhibitt®.the Company’s Form 8-K filed
August 26, 2013)

10.1* 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incotpdray reference to Appendix A to the Company’sxirdtatement for its 2009 annual
meeting of shareholders filed on March 20, 2009)

10.2* Lithia Motors, Inc. 2001 Stock Option Plancprporated by reference to Appendix B to the Canyps Proxy Statement for its 2001
annual meeting of shareholders filed on May 8, 2001

10.2.1* Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreemestt2001 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by refeeeiacexhibit 10.6.1 to the Company'’s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001)

10.2.2* Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreamhér 2001 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by refiee to exhibit 10.6.2 to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRGQ1)

10.3 Lithia Motors, Inc. 2013 Amended and Rest&ttk Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencexubit 10.1 to the Company’s Form
8-K filed May 2, 2013)

10.3.1 RSU Deferral Plan (incorporated by refegeetacexhibit 10.3.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Ktfor year ended December 31, 2011)

10.4* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Benance and Time Vesting) (incorporated by refeecto exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013)
10.4.1* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreementify Term Performance Vesting)

10.4.2* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement{@ Vesting) (for mid-level executives) (incorpadtby reference to exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March2813)

10.4.3* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreemenin{& Vesting) (for noremployee directors) (incorporated by referencextubét 10.4 to th
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March2813)

10.4.4* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Perforneaacd Time Vesting

10.5*% Lithia Motors, Inc. 2013 Discretionary Supp8ervices Variable Performance Compensation @taorporated by reference to exhibit
10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed May 2, 2013)

10.6 Chrysler Corporation Sales and Service AgesgrAdditional Terms and Provisions (incorporatgdédference to exhibit 10.3.2 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Regjisn Statement No. 333-14031, as declared éffebly the Securities Exchange
Commission on December 18, 1996)

10.6.1 Chrysler Corporation Chrysler Sales andi€eAgreement, dated September 28, 1999, betwheyslér Corporation and Lithia
Chrysler Plymouth Jeep Eagle, Inc. (incorporateddigrence to exhibit 10.15.1 to the Company’s FaésK for the year ended
December 31, 1999 (Additional Terms and Provistorthe Sales and Service Agreements are in Exhib&) (1))

10.7 Mercury Sales and Service Agreement Geneo&istons (incorporated by reference to exhibit1®to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 333-14031)

10.7.1 Supplemental Terms and Conditions agreelbrnteen Ford Motor Company and Lithia Motors, beted June 12, 1997 (incorporated
by reference to exhibit 10.7.2 to the Company’'sf&0-K for the year ended December 31, 1997)

10.7.2 Mercury Sales and Service Agreement, dhted 1, 1997, between Ford Motor Company and Lihid, LLC dba Lithia Lincoln
Mercury (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10f6.the Company’s Form 10-K for the year endedebdmer 31, 1997) (general
provisions are in Exhibit 10.10) (2)
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Exhibit

Description

10.8

10.8.1

10.9

10.9.1

10.9.2

10.10

10.10.1

10.11

10.11.1

10.11.2

10.12

10.14*

10.15*

10.16

10.16.1

10.16.2

10.17*

Volkswagen Dealer Agreement Standard Pravis{mcorporated by reference to exhibit 10.16.theoCompany’s Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1997)

Volkswagen Dealer Agreement dated Septehet998, between Volkswagen of America, Inc. kitidia HPI, Inc. dba Lithia
Volkswagen (incorporated by reference to exhibiflZal to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year endedember 31, 1999 (standard
provisions are in Exhibit 10.11) (3)

General Motors Dealer Sales and Service Ageeé Standard Provisions (incorporated by referémexhibit 10.7.2 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 3381}

Supplemental Agreement to General Motorp@ation Dealer Sales and Service Agreement ditedary 16, 1998 (incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.18.1 to the Company’s FafK for the year ended December 31, 1999)

Chevrolet Dealer Sales and Service Agreedaad October 13, 1998 between General Motorp@ation, Chevrolet Motor Division
and Camp Automotive, Inc. (incorporated by refeesticexhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Form 10-K fog tyear ended December 31,
1998) (4)

Toyota Dealer Agreement Standard Providjimesrporated by reference to exhibit 10.10.2 ®@ompany’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1, Reg. No. 333-14031)

Toyota Dealer Agreement, between ToyottoM®ales, USA, Inc. and Lithia Motors, Inc., dhthla Toyota, dated February 15, 1996
(incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.20.1 ® @ompany’s Form 10-K for the year ended Decembel 399) (5)

Nissan Standard Provisions (incorporated by referén exhibit 10.15.2 to the Compi's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1997)

Nissan Public Ownership Addendum dated August 989Xincorporated by reference to exhibit 10.28.the Compar’s Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1999) (6)

Nissan Dealer Term Sales and Service Agreemenigeetlithia Motors, Inc., Lithia NF, Inc., and thésBan Division of Nissan Mot
Corporation In USA dated January 2, 1998 (incorfatdy reference to exhibit 10.15.1 to the Compafgrm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1997) (standard provisions are intitxh0.14) (7)

Lease Agreement between CAR LIT, LLC andlikiReal Estate, Inc. relating to properties in fdedl Oregon (incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.36 to the Company’s ForaKIfor the year ended December 31, 1999) (8)

Form of Outside Director Nonqualified Defst Compensation Agreement (incorporated by reéerém exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)

Executive Nonqualified Deferred Compensattgreement between the Company and M. L. Dick Hg@imdated December 31, 2009
(incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.2 to tleenpany’s Form 8-K filed January 5, 2010)

Loan Agreement dated as of April 17, 2012 betweigmid_Motors, Inc., and U.S. Bank National Assoiciat as agent for the lenders,
and U.S. Bank National Association, JPMorgan Cigestk, N.A., Mercedes-Benz Financial Services USA|.Loyota Motor Credit
Corporation, BMW Financial Services N.A., LLC, NassMotor Acceptance Corporation, Bank of Americad NWells Fargo Bank,
N.A., Bank of the West and Key Bank National Asation, as lenders (incorporated by reference tibé®0.1 to the Compar's Form
8-K filed April 20, 2012)

Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Deceffhe2012 with U.S. Bank National Association asrddor the lenders, and U.S. Bank
National Association, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.rddde-Benz Financial Services USA LLC, Toyota Motor Gtébrporation,
BMW Financial Services N.A., LLC, Nissan Motor Agtance Corporation, Bank of America, N.A., Wellsdge@aBank, N.A., Bank of
the West and KeyBank National Association, as len@iacorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 ®@ompany’s Form 8-K filed
December 24, 2012)

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement dated DecenBh@013 with U.S. Bank National Association as adenthe lenders, and U.
Bank National Association, JPMorgan Chase Bank, NVercedes-Benz Financial Services USA LLC, Toydtor Credit
Corporation, BMW Financial Services NA, LLC, BankAmerica, NA, Bank of the West, KeyBank Nationadsdciation, Nissan Mot
Acceptance Corporation, TD Bank, NA, VW Credit, .Iridyundai Capital America, American Honda FinaGaeporation and Wells
Fargo Bank, NA, as lenders (incorporated by refezdn exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filedcember 18, 2013)

Amended and Restated Split-Dollar Agreenfercorporated by reference to exhibit 10.17 toGenpany’s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2012)



60




Exhibit

Description

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.21.1*

10.21.2*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

12

21

23

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Terms of Amended Employment and Changeant@l Agreement between Lithia Motors, Inc. andrigly B. DeBoer dated January 15,
2009 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2thioCompany’s Form 10-K for the year ended Decerdbg2008) (9)

Form of Indemnity Agreement for each Narfaecutive Officer (incorporated by reference toibit.0.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K
filed May 29, 2009)

Form of Indemnity Agreement for each nomaagement Director (incorporated by reference tokéixh0.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K
filed May 29, 2009)

Executive Management Non-Qualified Defer@mnpensation and Lorierm Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencextalst 10.22
to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended Ddzm31, 2010)

Form of Executive Management Non-Quadlifizeferred Compensation and Long-Term Incentive Plalotice of Discretionary
Contribution Award for Sidney DeBoer (incorporatgdreference to exhibit 10.22.1 to the Companysd0-K for the year ended
December 31, 2010)

Form of Executive Management Non-Quadlifizeferred Compensation and Long-Term Incentive Plalotice of Discretionary
Contribution Award (incorporated by reference thibk 10.22.2 to the Company’s Form 10-K for theyended December 31, 2010)

Employment Agreement with Executive Vice$tdent Brad Gray dated March 1, 2012 (incorporbteckference to exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Marct2812); Amendment to Terms of Employment Agreendatéd April 30, 2013.

Form of Amended Employment and Change intfb Agreement dated February 22, 2013 betweetmapany and each of Scott
Hillier, Bryan B. DeBoer, John F. North Il and @hHolzshu (incorporated by reference to exhibi22Go the Company’s Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2012)

Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement betwdga Real Estate, Inc. and Dick Heimann dated Oct@86e 2013 (incorporated
reference to exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s FornQLfdr the quarter ended September 30, 2013)

Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges

Subsidiaries of Lithia Motors, Inc.

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registeredi®@zcounting Firm
Certification of Chief Executive Officer puemnt to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of theuBtes Exchange Act of 1934.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer puamt to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of theuBtes Exchange Act of 1934.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer puent to Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of theuites Exchange Act of 1934 and 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer puemnt to Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of theufites Exchange Act of 1934 and 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.

XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldgaDocument.
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition LinklzaBocument.
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Dotent.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation LagéoDocument.

(1) Substantially identical agreements exist betw€hrysler Group, LLC and those other subsidia@sating Dodge, Chrysler or Jeep dealerships.

(2) Substantially identical agreements exist ferFord and LincolMercury lines between Ford Motor Company and thatber subsidiaries operati

Ford or Lincoln-Mercury dealerships.
(3) Substantially identical agreements exist betwdolkswagen of America, Inc. and those subsiésaoiperating Volkswagen dealerships.

(4) Substantially identical agreements exist betweeav@het Motor Division, GM Corporation and thosénet subsidiaries operating General Mc

dealerships.

(5) Substantially identical agreements exist (excepttéihms are all 2 years) between Toyota Motor S&l&#\, Inc. and those other subsidiaries oper

Toyota dealerships.
(6) Substantially identical documents exist wisttle Nissan store.
(7) Substantially identical agreements exist betwdissan Motor Corporation and those other sudasédi operating Nissan dealerships.

(8) Lithia Real Estate, Inc. leases all the propertiiedford, Oregon sold to CAR LIT, LLC under subdially identical leases covering six sepa

blocks of property.



(9) Substantially similar agreements exist betweeni&ilotors, Inc. and each of M.L. Dick Heimann, Bnya. DeBoer, Christopher S. Holzshu and .
F. North 1.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 186{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registhas duly caused this report to be signeds
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

Date: February 21, 201 LITHIA MOTORS, INC
By/s/ Bryan B. DeBoel

Bryan B. DeBoer
Director, President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpihe following persons on behalf of the Regist
and in the capacities indicated on February 214201

Signature Title

/s/ Bryan B. DeBoe Director, President and Chief Executive Offic

Bryan B. DeBoer (Principal Executive Officer

/s/ Christopher S. Holzsh Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officad&ecretary
Christopher S. Holzshi (Principal Financial Officer

/s/ John F. North 11l Vice President and Corporate Control

John F. North 11l (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Sidney B. DeBoe Director and Executive Chairman

Sidney B. DeBoet

/s/ M.L. Dick Heimanr Director and Vice Chairma
M.L. Dick Heimann

/s/ Thomas Becke Director
Thomas Beckel

/s/ Susan O. Cai Director
Susan O. Cair

/s/ Kenneth E. Robert Director
Kenneth E. Robert:

/s/ William J. Young Director
William J. Young
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Lithia Motors, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Bal&heets of Lithia Motors, Inc. and subsidiare®fDecember 31, 2013 and 2012, and the re
Consolidated Statements of Operations, Comprehernstome, Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, and Gdstvs for each of the years in the thgea
period ended December 31, 2013. These Consoliddtehcial Statements are the responsibility of Glmmpanys management. Our responsibility i
express an opinion on these Consolidated FinaBté#éments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighatflaUnited States). Those standards requirt
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabfirance about whether the financial statemeatfreg of material misstatement. An audit incl
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingatheunts and disclosures in the financial stategnekt audit also includes assessing the accot
principles used and significant estimates made agagement, as well as evaluating the overall filsdustatement presentation. We believe that ouits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statetmeeferred to above present fairly, in all matergsgpects, the financial position of Lithia Motphsc. anc
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012thendesults of their operations and their cash $ldor each of the years in the thrgear period ende
December 31, 2013, in conformity with U.S. gengralicepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), Lithia Motors, Ins.interna
control over financial reporting as of December 2013, based on criteria establishednternal Control — Integrated Framework (1998sued by th
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread®ommission (COSO), and our report dated Febr2iar014 expressed an unqualified opinio
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal cordkar financial reporting.

/s KPMG LLP

Portland, Oregon
February 21, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Lithia Motors, Inc.:

We have audited Lithia Motors, Inc.’s internal aohbver financial reporting as of December 31, 20ased on criteria establishedriternal Control-
Integrated Framework (1992issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohghe Treadway Commission (COSO). Lithia Motohsg.’s
management is responsible for maintaining effectternal control over financial reporting and fts assessment of the effectiveness of internatrat
over financial reporting, included in the accomgagyManagemens Report on Internal Control Over Financial RepaytiOur responsibility is to expre
an opinion on the Company’s internal control owearicial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight @d&nited States). Those standards require
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabdeirance about whether effective internal cowtvel financial reporting was maintained in all rmith
respects. Our audit included obtaining an undedatgnof internal control over financial reportingssessing the risk that a material weakness egist
testing and evaluating the design and operatingcfieness of internal control based on the asdassie Our audit also included performing suchet
procedures as we considered necessary in the gtanoes. We believe that our audit provides a rnedde basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @gess designed to provide reasonable assurancdiregthe reliability of financial reporting a
the preparation of financial statements for extepouaposes in accordance with generally accepteduatting principles. A company’internal control ovi
financial reporting includes those policies andcerdures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrdscthat, in reasonable detail, accurately andifegflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assethefcompany; (2) provide reasonable assurancetitfiasactions are recorded as necessary to |
preparation of financial statements in accordanitle generally accepted accounting principles, dvad teceipts and expenditures of the company dng
made only in accordance with authorizations of manzent and directors of the company; and (3) pev@hsonable assurance regarding preventi
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usregisposition of the company’s assets that coaltela material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any evatuati
effectiveness to future periods are subject tailethat controls may become inadequate becauskasfges in conditions, or that the degree of cangd
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Lithia Motors, Inc. maintained, afl material respects, effective internal contreéofinancial reporting as of December 31, 2013¢elaoi
criteria established imternal Control — Integrated Framework (1998%ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission.

Lithia Motors, Inc. completed seven acquisitiongimy 2013 and, as permitted, management electeskd¢tude the acquisitions from its assessme
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2013. The total assets of these sevensdmns represented approximately 3% of constdic
total assets as of December 31, 2013 and appraxlyn2o of consolidated revenues for the year eridlecember 312013. Our audit of internal cont
over financial reporting of Lithia Motors, Inc. alexcluded an evaluation of the internal contra@rdinancial reporting of these seven acquisitions.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the Consolidated Balance S
of Lithia Motors, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Debem31, 2013 and 2012, and the related Consolidatsgments of Operations, Comprehensive Inc
Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, and Cash Flowsé&mh of the years in the thrgear period ended December 31, 2013, and our reptet! February 2
2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on those @mfaded Financial Statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Portland, Oregon
February 21, 2014
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LITHIA MOTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands)

December 31

2013 2012
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,68¢ $ 42,83¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fetounts of $173 and $336 170,51¢ 133,14¢
Inventories, net 859,01¢ 723,32t
Deferred income taxes 1,54¢ 3,832
Other current assets 15,25! 17,48¢
Assets held for sale 11,52¢ 12,57¢
Total Current Assets 1,081,54! 933,20¢
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depieciaf $106,871 and $97,883 481,21: 425,08¢
Goodwill 49,51 32,047
Franchise value 71,19¢ 62,42¢
Deferred income taxes 10,25¢ 17,12
Other non-current assets 31,39« 22,80¢
Total Assets $ 1,72512.  $ 1,492,70.
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities:
Floor plan notes payable $ 18,78¢ $ 13,45¢
Floor plan notes payable: non-trade 695,06¢ 568,13(
Current maturities of long-term debt 7,08: 8,182
Trade payables 51,15¢ 41,58¢
Accrued liabilities 94,14: 81,60:
Liabilities related to assets held for sale 6,271 8,347
Total Current Liabilities 872,51: 721,30
Long-term debt, less current maturities 245,47 286,87¢
Deferred revenue 44 ,00¢ 33,58¢
Other long-term liabilities 28,41 22,83:
Total Liabilities 1,190,39! 1,064,60:
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock - no par value; authorized 15,0@0es; none outstanding - -
Class A common stock - no par value; authorizedd@Dshares; issued aadtstanding 23,329 and 22,¢ 268,25! 268,80:
Class B common stock - no par value; authorize@@bshares; issued and outstanding 2,562 and 2,7 31¢ 343
Additional paid-in capital 22,59¢ 12,39¢
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,53¢) (2,615)
Retained earnings 245,08t 149,17:
Total Stockholders' Equity 534,72: 428,10:
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 172512 $ 1,492,70.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitsients.
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LITHIA MOTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except share amounts)

Revenues:
New vehicle
Used vehicle retail
Used vehicle wholesale
Finance and insurance
Service, body and parts
Fleet and other
Total revenues
Cost of sales:
New vehicle
Used vehicle retail
Used vehicle wholesale
Service, body and parts
Fleet and other
Total cost of sales
Gross profit
Asset impairments
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Operating income
Floor plan interest expense
Other interest expense
Other income, net
Income from continuing operations before income$ax
Income tax provision
Income from continuing operations, net of income ta
Income from discontinued operations, net of incdaxe
Net income

Basic income per share from continuing operations
Basic income per share from discontinued operations
Basic net income per share

Shares used in basic per share calculations

Diluted income per share from continuing operations
Diluted income per share from discontinued openatio
Diluted net income per share

Shares used in diluted per share calculations

See accompanying notes to consolidated financtdstents.
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Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
2,256,59 $ 1,847,60. $ 1,391,37'
1,032,22: 833,48 678,57

158,23! 139,23° 128,32¢
139,00° 112,23 84,13(
383,48 347,70 315,95t
36,20: 36,22¢ 34,38:
4,005,74" 3,316,48 2,632,741
2,105,48 1,713,15! 1,284,22!
881,36t 711,76 580,35
155,52 137,82: 127,73
197,91: 179,63: 163,73¢
34,51 34,81 31,41(
3,374,79 2,777,18 2,187,46.
630,95 539,30 445,28
- 115 1,37¢
427,40( 373,68t 316,661
20,03 17,12¢ 16,42’
183,51¢ 148,36¢ 110,81¢
(12,379) (12,816 (10,369
(8,350) (9,621) (12,879
2,99: 2,52¢ 694
165,78t 128,45° 88,27(
(60,579 (49,067 (33,060
105,21 79,39t 55,21(
78€ 967 3,65(
106,000 $ 80,36: $ 58,86(
40t $ 3.0¢ $ 2.1C
0.02 0.04 0.14
411 $ 3.1: $ 2.24
25,80¢ 25,69¢ 26,23(
40: $ 3.0: $ 2.07
0.02 0.0¢ 0.14
408 $ 3.07 $ 2.21
26,19: 26,17 26,66+




LITHIA MOTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 106,00( $ 80,36: $ 58,86(
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Gain on cash flow hedges, net of tax expense d8,$66,175 and $195 1,075 1,89¢ 361
Comprehensive income $ 107,07 $ 82,25¢ $ 59,22:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financtdstents.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderSguity

LITHIA MOTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(In thousands)

Accumulated

Other
Compre- Total
Common Stock Additional hensive Stock-
Class A Class B Paid In Income Retained holders'
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Earnings Equity
Balance at December 31, 2010 22,52: 284,80° 3,762 46€ 10,97: (4,869 28,83¢ 320,21
Net income - - - - - - 58,86( 58,86(
Fair value of interest rate swap
agreements, net of tax expense |
$195 - - - - - 361 - 361
Issuance of stock in connection w
employee stock plans 43¢ 5,65¢ - - - - - 5,65¢
Issuance of restricted stock to
employees 11 - - - - - - -
Shares forfeited by employees (5) - - - - - - -
Repurchase of Class A common
stock (772) (13,56%) - - - - - (13,56%)
Compensation for stock and stock
option issuances and excess ta
benefits from option exercises - 2,47: - - (54) - - 2,41¢
Dividends paid - - - - - - (6,827 (6,827)
Balance at December 31, 2011 22,19t 279,36t 3,762 46¢ 10,91¢ (4,50¢) 80,871 367,12:
Net income - - - - - - 80,36 80,36:
Fair value of interest rate swap
agreements, net of tax expense |
$1,175 - - - - - 1,89: - 1,89:
Issuance of stock in connection w
employee stock plans 647 8,652 - - - = = 8,652
Issuance of restricted stock to
employees 3 - - - - - - -
Repurchase of Class A common
stock (929 (23,279 - - - - - (23,279
Class B common stock converted |
Class A common stock 1,00( 12t (2,000 (225) -
Compensation for stock and stock
option issuances and excess ta
benefits from option exercises - 3,937 - - 1,481 - - 5,41¢
Dividends paid - - - - - - (12,06€) (12,06¢6)
Balance at December 31, 2012 22,91¢ 268,80: 2,762 34: 12,39¢ (2,615 149,17: 428,10:
Net income - - - - - - 106,00( 106,00t
Fair value of interest rate swap
agreements, net of tax expense |
$668 - - - - - 1,07 - 1,077
Issuance of stock in connection w
employee stock plans 28¢ 5,14¢ - - - - - 5,14¢
Issuance of restricted stock to
employees 117 - - - - - - -
Repurchase of Class A common
stock (187 (7,907 - - - - - (7,909
Class B common stock convertec
Class Acommon stocl 20C 24 (200 (24) - - - -
Compensation for stock and stock
option issuances and excess ta
benefits from option exercises - 2,18¢ - - 10,19¢ - - 12,38:
Dividends paid - - - - - - (10,08%) (10,085
Balance at December 31, 2013 23,32¢ $ 268,25! 256z $ 31¢ % 22,59¢ $ (1,532) $ 245,08t $ 534,72

See accompanying notes to consolidated financtdstents.
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LITHIA MOTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by (used in) operating
activities:
Asset impairments
Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization within discontinug@@tions
Stock-based compensation
Gain on disposal of other assets
(Gain) loss from disposal activities within discionted operations
Deferred income taxes
Excess tax benefit from share-based payment amaemys
(Increase) decrease (net of acquisitions and dispus):
Trade receivables, net
Inventories
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Increase (decrease) (net of acquisitions and dispts):
Floor plan notes payable
Trade payables
Accrued liabilities
Other long-term liabilities and deferred revenue
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Principal payments received on notes receivable
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sales of assets
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Payments for life insurance policies
Proceeds from sales of stores
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on floor plan notes payable: non-trade
Borrowings on lines of credit
Repayments on lines of credit
Principal payments on long-term debt, scheduled
Principal payments on long-term debt and capitdds, other
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Repurchase of common stock
Excess tax benefit from share-based payment amaernys
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash
Dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for interest
Cash paid during the period for income taxes, net

Supplemental schedule of non-cash activities:
Debt issued in connection with acquisitions

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
106,000 $ 80,36 $ 58,86(
- 115 1,37¢
20,03t 17,12¢ 16,42’
- 18€ 521

6,56¢ 3,11¢ 2,001
(2,339 (747) (6,495)

- 621 (4,396)
14,47" 14,17: 8,00:
(5,99¢) (2,802) (525)
(37,370 (33,709 (22,507
(106,89f) (230,44:) (78,207)
(907) (4,192) (13,117
(4,752) (6,176) (1,108)
5,30( (82,109) 13,51(
8,48( 8,001 5,99¢
12,30: 10,53¢ 11,60¢
17,15: 13,45¢ 7,18:
32,05¢ (212,471 (76€)
91 94€ 121
(50,025) (64,582 (31,679)
4,63: 6,021 29,67
(81,10%) (44,716 (60,48%)
(3,915) (3,289 (900)

- 6,61¢ 23,83¢
(130,32) (98,99 (39,427)
128,63 348,47 63,14
800,00 592,62 56,00(
(814,35Y) (580,26¢) (9,000)
(7,100) (8,347) (10,909
(25,770) (40,76%) (55,666
4,72 42,33 25,67+
4,97: 8,65: 5,65¢
(7,909) (23,279 (13,56%)
5,99¢ 2,80: 528

- 3,30( (3,300)
(10,08%) (12,066) (6,827)
79,11( 333,46 51,73:
(19,159 21,08¢ 11,54¢
42,83 20,85 9,30¢
23,68 $ 42,83¢ $ 20,85"
21,00 $ 22,97¢ $ 24,96
42,68: 36,57¢ 33,72:
- 2,60¢ -



Floor plan debt acquired in connection with acdiges - - 19,34¢
Acquisition of assets with capital leases 36 2,60¢ -
Floor plan debt paid in connection with store d&s - 6,712 1,78¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitsients.
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LITHIA MOTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Q) Summary of Significant Accounting Paties

Organization and Business

We are a leading operator of automotive francham®s a retailer of new and used vehicles and rels¢edces. As of December 31, 2013,
offered 28 brands of new vehicles and all brandssefd vehicles in 94 stores in the United Statesomfine at Lithia.com We sell new and used cars
replacement parts; provide vehicle maintenancetamgyr, paint and repair services; arrange relateh€ing; and sell service contracts, vehicle mtite
products and credit insurance.

Our dealerships are primarily located throughoat\Western and Midwestern regions of the UnitedeStalVe target midized regional markets 1
domestic and import franchises and metropolitarketarfor luxury franchises. This strategy enables8 exclusivity with minimal competition from otl
dealerships with the same franchise in the market.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statermreffiesct the results of operations, the financiadipon and the cash flows for Lithia Motc
Inc. and its directly and indirectly wholly ownedbsidiaries. All intercompany balances and traisasthave been eliminated in consolidation. Thelts
of operations of stores classified as discontinapdrations have been presented on a comparable foasill periods presented in the accompar
Consolidated Statements of Operations. See Note 15.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as casmdrahd cash in bank accounts without restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable include amounts due from tieving:

e various lenders for the financing of vehiclesdsol

e customers for vehicles sold and service and gatts;

e manufacturers for factory rebates, dealer ingestand warranty reimbursement; and
e insurance companies and other miscellaneousvediles.

Receivables are recorded at invoice and do notihtsrest until they are 60 days past due. Thevallace for doubtful accounts is estimated b
on our historical writesff experience and is reviewed monthly. Accountibhaks are charged against the allowance aftepidbpriate means of collecti
have been exhausted and the potential for recosegnsidered remote. The annual activity for chargnd subsequent recoveries is immaterial. Sexz2

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of market valueost, using a pooled approach for vehiclestaadpecific identification method for parts.
cost of new and used vehicle inventories inclulescost of any equipment added, reconditioningteardsportation.

Manufacturers reimburse us for holdbacks, floonptaerest assistance and advertising assistarideh\are reflected as a reduction in the cart
value of each vehicle purchased. We recognize &divey assistance, floor plan interest assistahokbacks, cash incentives and other rebates ex

from manufacturers that are tied to specific vats@s a reduction to cost of sales as the relatedlgs are sold.

Parts purchase discounts that we receive from dweufacturer are reflected as a reduction in theyicey value of the parts purchased from
manufacturer and are recognized as a reductioostoof goods sold as the related inventory is seéd Note 3.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and daf@eé over their estimated useful lives on thaightline basis. Leasehold improvements nr
at the inception of the lease or during the ternthef lease are amortized on a straigig-basis over the shorter of the life of the immment or th
remaining term of the lease.

The range of estimated useful lives is as follows:

Buildings and improvements (years) 5to4C
Service equipment (years) 5to15
Furniture, office equipment, signs and fixturesafyy 3to 10

The cost for maintenance, repairs and minor rerevgalexpensed as incurred, while significant rerfded betterments are capitalized
addition, interest on borrowings for major cappabjects, significant remodels and bettermentscaptalized. Capitalized interest becomes a pathe
cost of the depreciable asset and is depreciataiding to the estimated useful lives as previossiyed. For the years ended December 31, 2012, &
2011, we recorded capitalized interest of $0.1iom|I$0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

When an asset is retired or otherwise disposetthefielated cost and accumulated depreciationeaneved from the accounts, and any gain or
is credited or charged to income from continuingragions.

Leased property meeting certain criteria is caigital and the present value of the related leasm@atg is recorded as a liability. Amortizatior
capitalized leased assets is computed on a sti#ighibasis over the term of the lease, unlessehsel transfers title or it contains a bargain @msgeloptior
in which case, it is amortized over the asset'$ulidiée, and is included in depreciation expense.

Longdived assets held and used by us are reviewedhfpairment whenever events or circumstances inditatiethe carrying amount of ass
may not be recoverable. We consider several fagtben evaluating whether there are indicationsatéptial impairment related to our lofiged asset:
including store profitability, overall macroeconanfactors and impact of our strategic managemeaisidas. If recoverability testing is performed,
evaluate assets to be held and used by compagngathying amount of an asset to future net undistesl cash flows associated with the asset, inopit
disposition. If such assets are considered to hmimed, the amount by which the carrying amounthef assets exceeds the fair value of the ass
recognized as a charge to income from continuiregatjons. See Note 4.

Franchise Value
We enter into agreements (“Franchise Agreementdth the manufacturers. Franchise value represantight received under Franct
Agreements with manufacturers and is identifiecanrindividual store basis.

We evaluated the useful lives of our Franchise Agrents based on the following factors:

e certain of our Franchise Agreements continuefinidely by their terms;

e certain of our Franchise Agreements have limiggohs, but are routinely renewed without substantat to us;

e other than franchise terminations related to thgrecedented reorganizations of Chrysler and GeMwotdrs, and allowed by bankruptcy I
we are not aware of manufacturers terminating FrisecAgreements against the wishes of the franabwasers in the ordinary course
business. A manufacturer may pressure a franchiseto sell a franchise when the owner is in bneaicthe franchise agreement ove
extended period of time;
state dealership franchise laws typically lirhi tights of the manufacturer to terminate or eoew a franchise;
we are not aware of any legislation or otherdecthat would materially change the retail autaweofranchise system; and
as evidenced by our acquisition and dispositiotohys there is an active market for most automotiealership franchises within the Uni
States. We attribute value to the Franchise Agreénacquired with the dealerships we purchase basetie understanding and indu
practice that the Franchise Agreements will beweeindefinitely by the manufacturer.
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Accordingly, we have determined that our Franciigeeements will continue to contribute to our cdlglws indefinitely and, therefore, he
indefinite lives.

As an indefinitelived intangible asset, franchise value is testadirhpairment at least annually, and more frequeifitevents or circumstanc
indicate the carrying value may exceed fair valttee impairment test for indefinitéred intangible assets requires the comparisagstimated fair value
carrying value. An impairment charge is recordedhe extent the fair value is less than the cagymlue. We have the option to qualitatively
quantitatively assess indefinite-lived intangibkesets for impairment. In 2013 we evaluated our finde-lived intangible assets using a quantite
assessment process. We have determined the apgeopnit of accounting for testing franchise valureimpairment is on an individual store basis.

We test our franchise value for impairment on Oetob of each year. The quantitative assessmentausasti-period excess earnings (“MPBE”
model to estimate the fair value of our franchid&'e. have determined that only certain cash flowthefstore are directly attributable to franchiggts
Future cash flows are based on recently preparechtipg forecasts and business plans to estimatfuthre economic benefits that the store will gate
Operating forecasts and cash flows include estidnateenue growth rates that are calculated basedamagemens' forecasted sales projections and ol
U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistar historical consumer price index data. Addisitly, we use a contributory asset charge to rept
working capital, personal property and assembledckforce costs. A discount rate is utilized to camvwbe forecasted cash flows to their present \
equivalent. The discount rate applied to the futtash flows factors an equity market risk premismall stock risk premium, an average peer groug
and a risk-free interest rate. See Note 5.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess purchase price theefair value of net assets acquired which isatlocable to separately identifiable intang
assets. Other identifiable intangible assets, siscfianchise rights, are separately recognizeukifiitangible asset is obtained through contracuaithe
legal right or if the intangible asset can be stlahsferred, licensed or exchanged.

Goodwill is not amortized but tested for impairmanteast annually, and more frequently if evemtsiccumstances indicate the carrying valu
the reporting unit more likely than not exceeds f@lue. We have the option to qualitatively or wfitatively assess goodwill for impairment and D2
evaluated our goodwill using a quantitative assessmprocess. We have determined that we operateeaseporting unit for the goodwill impairment test

We test our goodwill for impairment on October leafch year. We used an Adjusted Present Value ("ARMthod, a faivalue based test,
indicate the fair value of our reporting unit. Undee APV method, future cash flows based on réggmepared operating forecasts and business pli&
used to estimate the future economic benefits gémerby the reporting unit. Operating forecasts @ah flows include estimated revenue growth
based on managemenforecasted sales projections and on U.S. Depattafie.abor, Bureau of Labor Statistics for histaficonsumer price index data
discount rate is utilized to convert the forecastash flows to their present value equivalent regméng the indicated fair value of our reportingtuThe
discount rate applied to the future cash flowsdectan equity market risk premium, small stock pskmium, an average peer group beta and anesk-
interest rate. We compare the indicated fair valfueur reporting unit to our market capitalizatiamgluding consideration of a control premium. Tuatro
premium represents the estimated amount an inve&told pay to obtain a controlling interest. Weidet this reconciliation is consistent with a ma
participant perspective.
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The quantitative impairment test of goodwill isveotstep process. The first step identifies poténtigairment by comparing the estimated
value of a reporting unit with its book value. lietfair value of the reporting unit exceeds theyiag amount, goodwill is not impaired and the setaste|
is not necessary. If the carrying value exceedsainevalue, the second step includes determirtiegmplied fair value in the same manner as theusitnol
goodwill recognized in a business combination i®drined. The implied fair value of goodwill is theompared with the carrying amount of goodwi
determine if an impairment loss is necessary. Sge Bl

Advertising

We expense production and other costs of advegtiamincurred as a component of selling, generdlaiministrative expense. Additiona
manufacturer cooperative advertising credits foalifiying, specificallyidentified advertising expenditures are recogniasda reduction of advertisi
expense.

Advertising expense, net of manufacturer coopegadigivertising credits, was $39.6 million, $31.9lioml and $23.9 million for the years ent
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.ufdaturer cooperative advertising credits were $illion in 2013, $9.6 million in 2012 and $
million in 2011.

Contract Origination Costs
Contract origination commissions paid to our empksy directly related to the sale of our $edfured lifetime lube, oil and filter service caant:
are deferred and charged to expense in propoditimetassociated revenue to be recognized.

Legal Costs
We are a party to numerous legal proceedings griaithe normal course of business. We accrueddam legal costs, including attorney fees
potential settlement claims related to variousllpgaceedings that are estimable and probableNs&= 7.

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation costs associated with equity instrtsnexchanged for employee and director servicesnaasured at the grant date, based o
fair value of the award, and recognized as an esg@ener the individuad' requisite service period (generally the vestiedgaga of the equity award). If the
is a performanceased element to the award, the expense is re@mgbi&sed on the estimated attainment level, egtthtahe to achieve the attainm
level and/or the vesting period. See Note 10.

Income and Other Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and liatabtiare recognized for the future tax consequi
attributable to differences between the finandialesnent carrying amounts of existing assets auilities and their respective tax bases and oiperits:
and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assetsliabilities are measured using enacted tax etpscted to apply to taxable income in the yeaxshict
those temporary differences are expected to beveeed or settled. The effect on deferred tax asssddiabilities of a change in tax rates is redoegh ir
income in the period that includes the enactmetd. davaluation allowance, if needed, reduces defetax assets when it is more likely than not suame
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be wali

When there are situations with uncertainty as ¢otitiming of the deduction, the amount of the deidactor the validity of the deduction, we ad
our financial statements to reflect only thosepgasitions that are more-likely-thamt to be sustained. Positions that meet thisriteare measured usi
the largest benefit that is more than 50% likelybtorealized. Interest and penalties are recordetid period incurred or accrued when related 1
uncertain tax position. See Note 13.

We account for all taxes assessed by a governmauttadrity that are directly imposed on a reventgglpcing transaction (i.e., sales, use, value-
added) on a net (excluded from revenues) basis.
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Concentration of Risk and Uncertainties

We purchase substantially all of our new vehicled mventory from various manufacturers at the piling prices charged by auto makers t
franchised dealers. Our overall sales could be ategkby the auto manufacturensability or unwillingness to supply dealershipgiwan adequate supply
popular models.

We depend on our manufacturers to provide a supphghicles which supports expected sales levelthé event that manufacturers are unak
supply the needed level of vehicles, our finanp&formance may be adversely impacted.

We depend on our manufacturers to deliver highityalefectfree vehicles. In the event that manufacturers eepee future quality issues, ¢
financial performance may be adversely impacted.

We are subject to a concentration of risk in thengwof financial distress, including potential rgamization or bankruptcy, of a major veh
manufacturer. Our sales volume could be materadlyersely impacted by the manufacturers’ or distdls’ inability to supply the stores with an adeq!
supply of vehicles. We also receive incentives itates from our manufacturers, including cashnaitces, financing programs, discounts, holdback
other incentives. These incentives are recordeda@svables on our Consolidated Balance Sheetspayiment is received. Our financial condition abhbt
materially adversely impacted by the manufacturerdistributors’inability to continue to offer these incentives aeflates at substantially similar ter
or to pay our outstanding receivables.

We enter into Franchise Agreements with the manurfacs. The Franchise Agreements generally limgtlttation of the dealership and proy
the auto manufacturer approval rights over chamgetealership management and ownership. The autafacturers are also entitled to terminate
Franchise Agreement if the dealership is in mdténieach of the terms. Our ability to expand operat depends, in part, on obtaining consents ¢
manufacturers for the acquisition of additionalldeships. See also “Goodwill” and “Franchise Valadsove.

We have a credit facility with a syndicate of 18dfincial institutions, including seven manufactwatfiiated finance companies. Several of tt
financial institutions also provide mortgage fingmgc This credit facility is the primary sourceftdor plan financing for our new vehicle inventamd als:
provides used vehicle financing and a revolving lof credit. The term of the facility extends thgbuDecember 2018, which provides a finan
commitment for the next five years. At maturity dmancial condition could be materially adversehpacted if lenders are unable to provide credit ta:
typically been extended to us or with terms unatadap to us. Our financial condition could be mialbr adversely impacted if these providers in@msgse
in the future or undergo funding limitations.

We anticipate continued organic growth and growttough acquisitions. This growth will require adlital credit which may be unavailable
with terms unacceptable to us. If these events teeoecur, we may not be able to borrow sufficiemids to facilitate our growth.

Financial Instruments, Fair Value and Market Risks
The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, accaaatsvable, trade payables, accrued liabilities strattterm borrowings approximate fair va
because of the short-term nature and current meatext of these instruments.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific pnititrie, based on relevant market information alteatfinancial instrument. These estimates
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties anatters of significant judgment and, therefore, nodnbe determined with precision. Change
assumptions could significantly affect the estirmatgee Note 12.

We have variable rate floor plan notes payabletgages and other credit line borrowings that suhjedo market risk exposure. At Decembel

2013, we had $833.8 million outstanding in variatae debt. These borrowings had interest rategimgrfrom 1.4% to 3.0% per annum. An increas
decrease in the interest rates would affect intengzense for the period accordingly.
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The fair value of longerm, fixed interest rate debt is subject to irderate risk. Generally, the fair value of fixedeirest rate debt will increase
interest rates fall because we could refinanceaftower rate. Conversely, the fair value of fixeterest rate debt will decrease as interest rages The
interest rate changes affect the fair value, but@tompact earnings or cash flows. We monitor fowed interest rate debt regularly, refinancing tlat i
materially above market rates if permitted. SeeeN@.

We are also subject to market risk from changirtgrast rates. From time to time, we reduce our sxpoto this market risk by entering i
interest rate swaps and designating the swapssasflcav hedges. We are generally exposed to coediépayment risk based on our relationship wig
counterparty to the derivative financial instrumaéffe minimize the credit or repayment risk on oerivhtive instruments by entering into transactieith
institutions whose credit rating is Aa or higheeeNote 11.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresptequires management to make estir
and assumptions that affect the amounts reportettieénConsolidated Financial Statements and relatgds to financial statements. Changes in
estimates may affect amounts reported in futuregdsr

Estimates are used in the calculation of certasemees maintained for charpecks on estimated cancellations of service catstréife, accider
and disability insurance policies; finance feesrfrcustomer financing contracts and uncollectibloaats receivable.

We also use estimates in the calculation of varexenses, accruals and reserves, including aatéciposses related to workecsgimpensatic
insurance, anticipated losses related to self-amstg components of our property and casualty amticalansurance, selfisured lifetime lube, oil and filt
service contracts, discretionary employee bonusasanties provided on certain products and sesyilegal reserves and stolsised compensation.
also make certain estimates regarding the assetsifrthie recoverability of long-lived assets, indéé-lived intangible assets and deferred taxtasse

We offer a limited warranty on the sale of mosailaised vehicles. This warranty is based on méeagd time. We also offer a mileage and
based warranty on parts used in our service regaik and on tire purchases. The cost that may @eried for these warranties is estimated at the th
related revenue is recorded. A reserve for theseamy liabilities is estimated based on currefésdevels, warranty experience rates and estimaist
per claim. The annual activity for reserve incrasaaed claims are immaterial. As of December 313281d 2012, the accrued warranty balance was
million and $0.3 million, respectively.

Fair Value of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assunad
We estimate the fair value of the assets acquinediabilities assumed in a business combinatidngugarious assumptions. The most signifi
assumptions used relate to determining the fairevaf property and equipment and intangible frasehights.

We estimate the fair value of property and equiprbased on a market valuation approach. We usespaind other relevant information gener
primarily by recent market transactions involvinignigar or comparable assets, as well as our histbgxperience in divestitures, acquisitions arad estat
transactions. Additionally, we may use a cost vi@maapproach to value lorgred assets when a market valuation approach awvailable. Under th
approach, we determine the cost to replace thdcsepapacity of an asset, adjusted for physical egmhomic obsolescence. When available, we
valuation inputs from independent valuation expestsh as real estate appraisers and brokersyrubooate our estimates of fair value.
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We use a multi-period excess earnings (“MPEBYdel to determine the fair value of intangiblenfriise rights. Future cash flows are estinr
based on the acquired business’s preacquisitidiorpence, managemestforecasted sales projections and historical goesyrice index data provid
by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of LabatiStics. Additionally, we use a contributory assledrge to represent working capital, personal gnty
and assembled workforce costs. A discount ratdilizad to convert the forecasted cash flows tartheesent value equivalent. The discount rateiadpk
the future cash flows factors an equity market pgkmium, small stock risk premium, an average peaup beta, a riskee interest rate and a premium
forecast risk.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of a vehicle is recognizegnwva contract is signed by the customer, finantiag been arranged or collectabilit
reasonably assured and the delivery of the velictee customer is mad#é/e do not allow the return of new or used vehicesept where mandated
state law.

Revenue from parts and service is recognized uptinvedy of the parts or service to the customer. &lflew for customer returns on sales of
parts inventory up to 30 days after the sale. Ndasts returns generally occur within one to two kesieom the time of sale, and are not significant.

Finance fees earned for notes placed with finariogtitutions in connection with customer vehicieahcing are recognized, net of estim
charge-backs, as finance and insurance revenueaqgoeptance of the credit by the financial ingttutand recognition of the sale of the vehicle.

Insurance income from third party insurance comggifior commissions earned on credit life, accidert disability insurance policies solc
connection with the sale of a vehicle are recoghizeet of anticipated cancellations, as finance iasdrance revenue upon execution of the insu
contract and recognition of the sale of the vehicle

Commissions from third party service contractsraemgnized, net of anticipated cancellations, marfte and insurance revenue upon sale
contracts and recognition of the sale of the vehigVe also participate in future underwriting priofiursuant to retrospective commission arrangest
which is recognized in income as earned.

Revenue related to setfsured lifetime lube, oil and filter service caatts is deferred and recognized based on expastae fclaims for servic
The expected future claims experience is evaluageiddically to ensure it remains appropriate gigetual claims history.

Segment Reporting

We define an operating segment as a component efi@nprise that meets the following criteria:

e engages in business activities from which it asn revenues and incur expenses;

e operating results are regularly reviewed by thiemprises chief operating decision maker to make decisawut resources to be allocate
the segment and assess its performance; and

e discrete financial information is available.

Based on this definition, we believe we operate a&ngle operating and reporting segment, automattailing. We define our chief operat
decision maker (“CODM"}o be certain members of our executive managenrenipg Historical and forecasted operational perfooe is evaluated or
store-bystore basis and consolidated basis by the CODMdess performance. We have determined that naduaivstore is significant enough to
the definition of a segment. Allocation of futuesources occurs on a consolidated basis as oun@sigement is performed centrally and performaf
capital investments is evaluated on a consolidadesit.
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2) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consisted of the followingttiousands):

December 31, 2013 2012
Contracts in transit $ 85,27: $ 65,597
Trade receivables 38,60( 25,88¢
Vehicle receivables 23,60¢ 21,29¢
Manufacturer receivables 31,66: 25,65¢
179,14( 138,43t
Less: Allowance (173) (33€)
Less: Long-term portion of accounts receivable, net (8,449 (4,959
Total accounts receivable, net $ 170,51¢ $ 133,14¢

Contracts in transit are receivables from varierders for the financing of vehicles that we hawarged on behalf of the customer and
typically received within five to ten days of sati a vehicle. Trade receivables are comprised afuas due from customers, lenders for the commis
earned on financing and third parties for commissiearned on service contracts and insurance pgdéehicle receivables represent receivableshe
portion of the vehicle sales price paid directlythg customer. Manufacturer receivables represmouats due from manufacturers including holdbe

rebates, incentives and warranty claims.

The long-term portion of accounts receivable watuished as a component of other non-current asséieiConsolidated Balance Sheets.

3) Inventories

The components of inventories consisted of thetatg (in thousands):

December 31, 2013 2012

New vehicles $ 657,04 $ 563,27!

Used vehicles 167,81 130,52¢

Parts and accessories 34,16: 29,52;
Total inventories $ 859,01¢ $ 723,32t

The new vehicle inventory cost is generally redubgdmanufacturer holdbacks and incentives, whike iblated floor plan notes payable
reflective of the gross cost of the vehicle. AdDafcember 31, 2013 and 2012, the carrying valuenaritory had been reduced by $6.0 million and

million, respectively, for assistance received froranufacturers as discussed in Note 1.
4) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the followinglfousands):

December 31, 2013 2012
Land $ 146,12¢ $ 128,65:
Building and improvements 316,26 279,08
Service equipment 42,98( 39,37¢
Furniture, office equipment, signs and fixtures 73,56¢ 70,08:
578,93. 517,19:
Less accumulated depreciation (106,87’) (97,887)
472,06: 419,31
Construction in progress 9,151 5,77¢
$ 481,21. $ 425,08t

Long-Lived Asset Impairment Charges

In 2012 and 2011, triggering events were determtoduave occurred related to certain propertiestdughanges in the expected future use.
result of these events, we tested certain loregt assets for recovery. Based on these testsegmded asset impairment charges of $0.1 mikiod $1..
million in 2012 and 2011, respectively, in our Caolitated Statements of Operations. We did not teasset impairment charges in 2013.
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5) Goodwill and Franchise Value

The following is a roll-forward of goodwill (in thesands):

Goodwill
Balance as of December, 31, 2011, gross $ 318,22:
Accumulated impairment losses (299,26¢)
Balance as of December 31, 2011, net 18,95¢
Additions through acquisitions 13,71(
Goodwill allocation to dispositions (627)
Balance as of December 31, 2012, net 32,047
Additions through acquisitions 17,46¢
Balance as of December 31, 2013, net $ 49,51’

The following is a roll-forward of franchise valgie thousands):

Franchise Value

Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 59,09t

Additions through acquisitions 5,17¢

Transfers to discontinued operations (1,840

Balance as of December 31, 2012 62,42¢

Additions through acquisitions 8,77(

Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 71,19¢
(6) Credit Facilities and Long-Term Debt

Below is a summary of our outstanding balancesreditfacilities and long-term debt (in thousands):
December 31, 2013 2012
New vehicle floor plan commitme (1) (2) $ 695,06t $ 568,13(
Floor plan notes payab(® 18,78¢ 13,45¢
Total floor plan debt 713,85! 581,58«
Used vehicle inventory financing facility 85,00( 78,30¢
Revolving line of credit - 21,04t
Real estate mortgages 164,82 192,92¢
Other debt 2,727 2,77¢
Total debt $ 966,40¢ $ 876,64:

(1) As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had a newcleefioor plan commitment of $700 million and $5Tfllion, respectively, as part of our cre

facility.

(2) At December 31, 2013, an additional $4.8 milliorflobr plan notes payable outstanding on our nelicke floor plan commitment and $1.5 million

floor plan notes payable on vehicles designateskasce loaners are recorded as liabilities reltdeassets held for sale.

Credit Facility

On December 16, 2013, we completed a $1.0 bilfior;year revolving syndicated credit facility. This sycated credit facility is comprised of
financial institutions, including seven manufacteaffiliated finance companies. Our credit faciligopides a hew vehicle inventory floor plan commitit
a used vehicle inventory financing facility andewalving line of credit for general corporate puses, including acquisitions and working capitalis

credit facility may be expanded to $1.25 billiotaicavailability, subject to lender approval.

We may request a reallocation of up to $250 millddrany unused portion of our credit facility asidpas no event of default has occurre
reallocation may be requested monthly and canrstitrén a change in either our used vehicle invgnfmancing facility or the revolving line of cré
exceeding the lesser of 20% of the aggregate camenit or $200 million. All borrowings from, and remaents to, our syndicated lending group

presented in the Consolidated Statements of CastrsFs financing activities.
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The new vehicle floor plan commitment is collatezadl by our new vehicle inventory. Our used vehiigleentory financing facility is collateraliz:
by our used vehicle inventory that is less than d&@s old. Our revolving line of credit is secut®dour outstanding receivables related to vehiales
unencumbered vehicle inventory, other eligible retdles, parts and accessories and equipment.

We have the ability to deposit up to $50 millioncish in Principal Reduction “PRitcounts associated with our new vehicle inventiogr plar
commitment. The PR accounts are recognized astiffgeredits against outstanding amounts on owr vehicle floor plan commitment and would red
interest expense associated with outstanding areofatof December 31, 2013, we had no amounts degdas our PR accounts.

If the outstanding principal balance on our newielehinventory floor plan commitment, plus requests any day, exceeds 95% of the |
commitment, a portion of the revolving line of citetiust be reserved. The reserve amount is equlktéesser of $15.0 million or the maximum reving
line of credit commitment less the outstanding beaéaon the line less outstanding letters of cradie reserve amount will decrease the revolving bi
credit availability and may be used to repay th& wehicle floor plan commitment balance.

The interest rate on the credit facility variesdzhsn the type of debt and the calculated leveratye, with the rate ranging from the ormentt
LIBOR plus 1.25% to the oneonth LIBOR plus 2.5%. The annual interest ratoessed with our new vehicle floor plan commitmeexcluding th
effects of our interest rate swaps, was 1.4% aebber 31, 2013. The annual interest rate assoaigthdur used vehicle inventory financing facilayc
our revolving line of credit was 1.7% and 1.4% pexgively, at December 31, 2013.

Under the terms of our credit facility we are sgbj® financial covenants and restrictive covendnéd limit or restrict our incurring additior
indebtedness, making investments, selling or arguassets and granting security interests in sseta.

Under our credit facility, we are required to maintthe ratios detailed in the following table:

Debt Covenant Ratio Requirement As of December 31, 2013
Current ratio Not less than 1.20 to 1 141 to 1
Fixed charge coverage ratio Not less than 1.20 to 1 39 to 1
Leverage ratio Not more than 5.00 to 1 1.3¢ to 1
Funded debt restriction (millions) Not to exceed $375 $167.¢

We expect to remain in compliance with the finahaad restrictive covenants in our credit faciland other debt agreements. Howevel
assurances can be provided that we will continuertwain in compliance with the financial and resive covenants.

If we do not meet the financial and restrictive eoa&nts and are unable to remediate or cure thetmondr obtain a waiver from our lenders
breach would give rise to remedies under the ageagrthe most severe of which is the terminatiothefagreement and acceleration of the amounts.
We also would trigger cross-defaults under othét dgreements.

Floor Plan Notes Payable

We have floor plan agreements with manufactaféliated finance companies for vehicles that designated for use as service loaners.
interest rates on these floor plan notes payabfendtments vary by manufacturer and are variablestaft December 31, 2013, $18.8 million
outstanding on these agreements. Borrowings froeh repayments to, manufactuifiliated finance companies are classified as afiry activities on tr
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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Real Estate Mortgages and Other Debt

We have mortgages associated with our owned réateednterest rates related to this debt rangewh ft.7% to 4.4% at December 31, 2013.
mortgages are payable in various installments tiirdday 2031. As of December 31, 2013, we had firéerest rates on 79% of our outstanding mort
debt.

Our other debt includes capital leases and hadeistteates that ranged from 2.0% to 9.4% at Dece®bg2013. This debt, which totaled $
million at December 31, 2013, is due in variougatsents through May 2019.

Future Principal Payments
The schedule of future principal payments on leemgatdebt as of December 31, 2013 was as followth@insands):

Year Ending December 31,

2014 $ 7,08:
2015 7,311
2016 31,40¢
2017 6,17¢
2018 109,41:
Thereafter 91,16¢
Total principal payments $ 252,55:

(7) Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

We lease certain facilities under noancelable operating and capital leases. Thesesemire at various dates through 2066. Certaine
commitments contain fixed payment increases atgtegghined intervals over the life of the lease,l@bther lease commitments are subject to esca
clauses of an amount equal to the increase in disé af living based on the “Consumer Price Indeld.S. Cities Average All Items for all Urbai
Consumers’bublished by the U.S. Department of Labor, or sstardtially equivalent regional index. Lease expeetsted to operating leases is recogr
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease

The minimum lease payments under our operatingcapifial leases after December 31, 2013 are asvM®l{ thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

2014 $ 17,72¢
2015 15,65¢
2016 14,81(
2017 12,87:
2018 11,07¢
Thereafter 67,04¢
Total minimum lease payments 139,18t
Less: sublease rentals (7,02%)
$ 132,16

Rent expense, net of sublease income, for all tipgrieases was $14.0 million, $15.2 million an@RLmillion for the years ended December
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These amoumtsnatuded as a component of selling, general atdirastrative expenses in our Consolidi
Statements of Operations.
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In connection with dispositions of dealerships, @geasionally assign or sublet our interests in ergl property leases associated with :
dealerships to the purchaser. We often retain respitity for the performance of certain obligatooonder such leases to the extent that the assig
sublessee does not perform. Additionally, we mayaia subject to the terms of any guarantees and haxrelating indemnification rights against
assignee or sublessee in the event of penfisrmance, as well as certain other defensean@ealso be called upon to perform other obligationder thes
leases, such as environmental remediation of tamiges or repairs upon termination of the lease.cWeently have no reason to believe that we wé
called upon to perform any such services; howehere can be no assurance that any future perfagnaguired by us under these leases will not b
material adverse effect on our financial conditiwmesults of operations.

Certain of our facilities where a lease obligataiill exists have been vacated for business readnrntbese instances, we make efforts to
qualified tenants to sublease the facilities arsdia® financial responsibility. However, due to shecific nature and size of our dealership faesititenan
are not always available or the amount tenantsndlimg to pay does not recover the full lease gation. When an exposure exists related to vac
certain leases, liabilities are accrued to reftestestimate of future lease obligations, net tifreted sublease income.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures were $50.0 million, $64.6 imiiland $31.7 million for 2013, 2012 and 2011, ee$pely. Capital expenditures in 2013 w
associated with image improvements, purchasesood $acilities, purchases of previously leasedlifaes and replacement of equipment. The increa
capital expenditures in 2012 compared to 2011 wkdead to improvements at certain of our stordlifes, the purchase of previously leased facaitite
purchase of new store locations, replacement apetgnt and construction of, and relocation to, & headquarters building.

Many manufacturers provide assistance in the fdradditional vehicle incentives if facilities meetage standards and requirements. We be
it is an attractive time to invest in facility uggles and remodels that will generate additionaluf@aturer incentive payments. Also, tax laws alloy
accelerated deductions for capital expendituresaethe overall investment needed and encouragdeaated project timelines.

If we undertake a significant capital commitmentthe future, we expect to pay for the commitmertt afuexisting cash balances, construc
financing and borrowings on our credit facility. @&fpcompletion of the projects, we believe we waudde the ability to secure longem financing an
general borrowings from third party lenders for 76%0©0% of the amounts expended, although no assesecan be provided that these financings w
available to us in sufficient amounts or on terrmseptable to us.

Charge-Backs for Various Contracts

We have recorded a liability of $18.2 million asB¥cember 31, 2013 for our estimated contractuli@ations related to potential chargeeks fo
vehicle service contracts, lifetime oil change cacits and other various insurance contracts tieateeminated early by the customer. We estimatettis
charge-backs will be paid out as follows (in thowds):

Year Ending December 31,

2014 $ 10,22:¢
2015 5,21¢
2016 2,03¢
2017 554
2018 131
Thereafter 22
Total $ 18,18:
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Lifetime Lube, Oil and Filter Contracts

We retain the obligation for lifetime lube, oil afiler service contracts sold to our customers asslimed the liability of certain existing lifeti
lube, oil and filter contracts. These amounts ammded as deferred revenues. At the time of sadegefer the full sale price and recognize the mas
based on the rate we expect future costs to berettuAs of December 31, 2013, we had a deferregihtge balance of $50.1 million associated withé
contracts and estimate the deferred revenue wilkbegnized as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

2014 $ 10,88¢
2015 8,527
2016 6,76(
2017 5,411
2018 4,31F
Thereafter 14,15
Total $ 50,05¢

We periodically evaluate the estimated future co$tthese assumed contracts and record a chafgeiié expected claim and cancellation c
exceed the deferred revenue to be recognized. A3eoémber 31, 2013, we had a reserve balance 4fréiilion recorded as a component of acc
liabilities and other longerm liabilities on our Consolidated Balance She&te charges associated with this reserve had temgnized in 2011 a
earlier.

Self-insurance Programs

We self-insure a portion of our property and cayuakurance, medical insurance and workers’ corsgiéon insurance. Thirparties are engag
to assist in estimating the loss exposure relatede selfretained portion of the risk associated with thesarances. Additionally, we analyze our histol
loss and claims experience to estimate the losesexp associated with these programs. As of Decethe2013 and 2012, we had liabilities assoc
with these programs of $12.0 million and $12.4 iil] respectively, recorded as a component of acctiabilities and other longerm liabilities on ot
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Litigation

We are party to nhumerous legal proceedings arisirige normal course of our business. Although wendt anticipate that the resolution of le
proceedings arising in the normal course of busir@sthe proceedings described below will have teri@ adverse effect on our business, resul
operations, financial condition, or cash flows, semnot predict this with certainty.

Alaska Consumer Protection Act Claims

In December 2006, a class action suit was filedrsgas (Jackie Neese, et al vs. Lithia ChryslepJef Anchorage, Inc., et al, Case No. 3AN-06-
13341 ClI), and in April 2007, a second class actiait (Jackie Neese, et al vs. Lithia Chrysler Jafefinchorage, Inc, et al, Case No. 3AN-4815 CI) wa
filed against us, in the Superior Court for thet&taf Alaska, Third Judicial District at Anchoragehese suits were subsequently consolidated. |
consolidated suit, plaintiffs alleged that we, tigh our Alaska dealerships, engaged in three pescthat purportedly violate Alaska consumer ptain
laws: (i) charging customers dealer fees and dasttuding document preparation fees) not disclosethe advertised price, (ii) failing to disclotee
acquisition, mechanical and accident history ofdusehicles or whether the vehicles were originafignufactured for sale in a foreign country, ani
engaging in deception, misrepresentation and fbgugroviding to customers financing from third pestwithout disclosing that we receive a fee ocalisy
for placing that loan. The suit sought statutoryneges of $500 for each violation or three timesngféi s actual damages, whichever was greater
attorney fees and costs.

In June2013, the parties agreed to mediate the claimsnigdiation resulted in a settlement agreementrétatived the final approval of the Cc
on December 11, 2013. Under the settlement agredemeragreed to reimburse plaintifiggal fees and to pay (i) $450 in the form of casld vouchel
and (ii) $3,000 for each claim representative. ADecember 31, 2013, we estimated costs & 25 million to settle all claims against us andpt,
plaintiffs’ legal fees. The estimated costs are based on sumasions of the final number of approved claimd anvoucher redemption rate. We bel
that these estimates are reasonable; however,| agigt could differ materiallyWe recorded this amount as a component of selljagmeral an
administrative expense in our Consolidated StatésnehOperations and, as of December 31, 2013amheunt was included as a component of act
liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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(8) Stockholders’ Equity

Class A and Class B Common Stock

The shares of Class A common stock are not comerinto any other series or class of our secatititach share of Class B common st
however, is freely convertible into one share chsSIA common stock at the option of the holderhef €lass B common stock. All shares of Cla
common stock shall automatically convert to shafeSlass A common stock (on a share$bare basis, subject to adjustment) on the earkestd dat
for an annual meeting of our stockholders on witiehnumber of shares of Class B common stock aditg is less than 1% of the total number of st
of common stock outstanding. Shares of Class B comsitock may not be transferred to third parti@sept for transfers to certain family members an
other limited circumstances.

Holders of Class A common stock are entitled to woie for each share held of record and holderSlass B common stock are entitled to
votes for each share held of record. The Classmingon stock and Class B common stock vote togethex aingle class on all matters submitte
shareholders.

Repurchases of Class A Common Stock
In June 2000, our Board of Directors authorizedrémurchase of up to 1,000,000 shares of our Glasammon stock. As of December 31, 2(
we had purchased all available shares under tbgram, of which 419,376 shares were repurchasg2@i.

In August 2011, our Board of Directors authoriziee tepurchase of up to 2,000,000 shares of ous @aommon stock and, on July 20, 2012,
Board of Directors authorized the repurchase d®d@,@00 additional shares of our Class A commonksfBlerough December 31, 2013, we had purch
1,273,047 shares under these programs at an aveniageof $24.18 per share. As of December 31, 20126,953 shares remained available for pur
pursuant to these programs . These plans do netdraexpiration date and we may continue to re@selshares from time to time as conditions warrant.

The following is a summary of our repurchases eytbars ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Shares repurchasé€d 127,90( 848,09: 716,43:
Total purchase price (in thousands) $ 521: $ 20,69¢ $ 12,38¢
Average purchase price per share $ 40.7¢ $ 2441 $ 17.2¢

(1) Includes only shares repurchased under repurcHages. pAn additional 59,721, 80,687 and 56,012 sharere repurchased in association witt
withholdings on the exercise of stock options i120®012 and 2011, respectively.

Dividends
For the period January 1, 2011 through Decembe2@®13, we declared and paid dividends on our Glaasd Class B Common Stock as follows:

Dividend amount Total amount of

per Class A and dividend
Quarter declared Class B share (in thousands)
2011
First quarter $ 0.0t $ 1,31¢
Second quarter 0.07 1,851
Third quarter 0.07 1,83¢
Fourth quarter 0.07 1,817
2012
First quarter $ 0.07 $ 1,81¢
Second quarter 0.1C 2,58¢
Third quarter 0.1C 2,548
Fourth quartef?) 0.2C 5,127
2013
First quarter $ - $ -
Second quarter 0.12 3,35¢
Third quarter 0.1% 3,36:
Fourth quarter 0.12 3,36¢

(1) In November 2012, we paid dividends of $2.8iam that had been declared in October 2012. Aditamhal dividend payment of $2.6 million was
declared and paid in December 2012 in lieu of ikiglend typically declared and paid in March of fbowing year.

F-21




Reclassification From Accumulated Other ComprehevsiLoss
The reclassification from accumulated other comgnsive loss was as follows (in thousands):

Affected Line Item

Year Ended December 31, in the Consolidated
2013 2012 2011 Statement of Operations
Loss on cash flow hedges $ (740 $ (1,419 $ (1,899 Floor plan interest expense
Income tax benefits 28< 541 727 Income tax provision
Loss on cash flow hedges, net $ (457) $ (879 $ (1,177

See Note 11 for more details regarding our dereatbntracts.

9) 401(k) Profit Sharing, Deferred Compesation and Long-term Incentive Plans

We have a defined contribution 401(k) plan andttoasering substantially all fulime employees. The annual contribution to the daat th
discretion of our Board of Directors. Contributioois$2.1 million, $1.9 million and $1.7 million werecognized for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. Employees may congritiuthe plan if they meet certain eligibility teiggments.

We offer a deferred compensation and long-termrtige plan (the “LTIP”")to provide certain employees the ability to acclatailassets f
retirement on a tax deferred basis. We may malaeationary contributions to the LTIP. Discretionagntributions vest between one and seven yeaex
on the employes’age and position. Additionally, a participant nd@fer a portion of his or her compensation andivecthe deferred amount upon cer
events, including termination or retirement.

The following is a summary related to our LTIP:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Compensation expense (millions) $ 14 $ 1.2 % 0.€
Total discretionary contribution (millions) $ 21 % 1¢ 3 1.:2
Guaranteed annual return 5.25% 5.9(% 6.0(%

As of December 31, 2013, the balance due to ppatits was $7.1 million and was included as a compioof other longerm liabilities in th
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(10) Stock Based Compensation
2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
The 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “200@PBSllows for the issuance of 1,500,000 shares ofGlass A common stock. The 2(

ESPP is intended to qualify as an “Employee Stagklase Plantinder Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Cod®86,las amended, and is administ
by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Dinex
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Eligible employees are entitled to defer up to 10Btheir base pay for the purchase of stock, u26,000 of fair market value of our Clas
common stock annually. The purchase price is equdb% of the fair market value at the end of thechase period. During 2013, a total of 77,005 e
were purchased under the 2009 ESPP at a weighezdgeyprice of $49.94 per share, which represemtgdighted average discount from the fair me
value of $8.81 per share. As of December 31, 2603,288 shares remained available for purchaser tihd 009 ESPP.

Compensation expense related to our 2009 ESPRidatad based on the 15% discount from the peesimarket price on the date of grant.

2013 Stock Incentive Plan

Our 2013 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, (th&3Zlan")allows for the granting of up to a total of 3.8 linih nonqualified stock options a
shares of restricted stock to our officers, key leyges, directors and consultants. Our plan is adtered by the Compensation Committee of the Bot
Directors and permits accelerated vesting of onthtey awards upon the occurrence of certain chaimgesentrol. As of December 31, 2013, 1,573,
shares of Class A common stock were availableutré grants.

Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”)
Restricted stock grants vest over a period upxg/ears from the date of grant. Restricted stodk/i& under our stock incentive plans was
follows:

Non-vested Weighted average
stock grants grant date fair
value

Balance, December 31, 2012 651,94! $ 13.3¢
Granted 239,32« 43.1:
Vested (185,467) 7.97
Forfeited (28,447 19.12
Balance, December 31, 2013 677,35t $ 25.1(

In 2013, we granted 77,736 tilesting RSUs to members of our Board of Directois employees. Each grant entitles the holder teivecshare
of our Class A common stock upon vesting. A quasfehe RSUs vest on each of the four anniversarfitise grant date.

Certain key employees were granted 52,820 perfarmand timeresting RSUs in 2013. The RSUs entitled the holdeeceive shares based
attaining a target level of adjusted net income giware for 2013. The RSUs are subject to forfeituirewhole or in part, based on 2013 minin
performance measures and continuation of employrnR8its that are not forfeited vest over four yéamnn the grant date. The table below summarize
percentage of granted RSUs earned based on thevatd thresholds:

Adjusted earnings

per share
attainment level % of earned RSUs
Less than minimum $0.00 or negative 0%
Minimum $0.01 3C
Median $3.21 60
Maximum $3.53 10C

The final attainment was calculated as 100% baratie»2013 adjusted net income per share of $¥M@2estimate a total compensation expen
$2.2 million associated with these performancetand-vesting RSUs, of which $0.5 million was reciagu in 2013.
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Eight senior executives were also granted 108,368t#erm RSUs which vest based on attaining a targel lef adjusted net income per shar
any fiscal year ending on December 31, 2013 thronghember 31, 2018, which meets or exceeds spgdfi@inment thresholds. The table be
summarizes the percentage of granted RSUs earised ba the attainment thresholds:

Adjusted fiscal earnings

per share
attainment level % of earned RSUs
$4.00 33%
$5.00 33
$6.00 34

If more than one adjusted net income per sharaateant threshold is met or exceeded that was notomexceeded previously, the correspon
vesting percentages for each adjusted net incomehage attainment threshold met or exceeded madbted together. Once the adjusted net inconr
share meets or exceeds any particular thresholdR&uds are vested accordingly, no additional RSUg west in connection with adjusted net income
share meeting or exceeding that particular thresagain. Any of these RSUs that do not vest withesix year period would be forfeited.

We estimate a total compensation expense of $4libmassociated with these lotgrm RSUSs. In 2013, the attainment level of $4.80 ghar
was achieved based on the 2013 adjusted net inpemghare of $4.02 and expense associated withetteng of 33% of the award was recognized ir
twelve month period ended December 31, 2013. Wagrezed $2.4 million in compensation expense aasediwith this grant in 2013.

Stock Options

Options become exercisable over a period of upvenyfears from the date of grant with expiratiotedaup to ten years from the date of grant a
exercise prices of not less than market valuegéerohined by the Board of Directors. Beginning @®2, the expiration date of options granted wasiaec
to six years.

Option activity under our stock incentive plans vaagollows:

Weighted
average
remaining
Shares Weighted Aggregate contractual
subject average intrinsic value term
to options exercise price (millions) (years)
Balance, December 31, 2012 253,49¢ $ 6.2¢
Granted - -
Forfeited - -
Expired - -
Exercised (194,61Y 6.17
Balance, December 31, 2013 58,88 ¢ 655 $ 3.7 0.7
Exercisable, December 31, 2013 58,88: ¢ 655 $ 3.7 0.7

We estimate the fair value of stock options ushmy BlackScholes valuation model. This valuation model takés account the exercise price
the award, as well as a variety of significant agstions. We believe that the valuation technique #re approach utilized to develop the underl
assumptions are appropriate in calculating thevalines of our stock options. Estimates of faiueaare not intended to predict actual future eventse
value ultimately realized by persons who receivaitgcawards.

Stock-Based Compensation
Compensation expense related to non-vested stduksisd on the intrinsic value on the date of gaanf the stock is vested. We amortize stock-
based compensation on a strailii- basis over the vesting period of the individaaaard with estimated forfeitures considered. 88d0 be issued up

the exercise of stock options will come from newglsued shares.

As of December 31, 2013, unrecognized stbaked compensation related to outstanding, butstedestock options and RSUs was $9.2 mil
which will be recognized over the remaining weighéeerage vesting period of 1.9 years.
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Certain information regarding our stock-based camspéon was as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2013 2012 2011
Weighted average grant-date fair value per shastock options granted $ - $ - $ -
Per share intrinsic value of non-vested stock gcnt 43.1% 23.82 13.5¢
Weighted average per share discount for compemsatpense recognized under tl

2009 ESPP 8.81 4.2¢ 2.5¢€
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercisedlfoms) 8.7 7.2 15
Fair value of non-vested stock that vested duttegperiod (millions) 8.4 8.2 0.7

Stock-based compensation recognized in resultp@fations, as a component of
selling, general and administrative expensgcludes compensation expense rel

to an option granted to one of our executives.Nk@e 16. (millions) 6.€ 3.1 2.3
Tax benefit recognized in Consolidated Statemeh@perations (millions) 2.3 1.C 0.7
Cash received from options exercised and sharehased under all share-based

arrangements (millions) 5.2 8.8 5.8
Tax deduction realized related to stock optiong@sed (millions) 6.5 4.1 0.8
(12) Derivative Financial Instruments

From time to time, we enter into interest rate ssvapfix a portion of our interest expense. We db enter into derivative instruments for
purpose other than to manage interest rate exptstiretuations in the oneronth LIBOR benchmark. That is, we do not engagaterest rate speculati
using derivative instruments.

As of December 31, 2013, we had a $25 million edérate swap outstanding with U.S. Bank Dealer @emial Services. This interest rate s
matures on June 15, 2016 and has a fixed rate&c87% per annum. The variable rate on the inteegstswap is the ormmonth LIBOR rate. At Decemkt
31, 2013, the one-month LIBOR rate was 0.17% peuam as reported in the Wall Street Journal.

Typically, we designate all interest rate swapsash flow hedges and, accordingly, we record tlaagé in fair value for the effective portior
these interest rate swaps in comprehensive incatherrthan net income until the underlying hedgadsaction affects net income. If a swap is no éu
designated as a cash flow hedge and the forectrateghction remains probable or reasonably possflidecurring, the gain or loss recorded in accuatag
other comprehensive loss is recognized in inconthegorecasted transaction occurs. If the forechgtnsaction is probable of not occurring, thie oz
loss recorded in accumulated other comprehenssgeisorecognized in income immediatebge Notel2.

The estimated amount that we expect to reclassify faccumulated other comprehensive loss to netmecwithin the next twelve months is §
million at December 31, 2013.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the fair value of derivative instruments was included in our Coitkded Balance Sheets as follows
thousands):

Balance Sheet Information (in thousands Fair Value of Liability Derivatives
Location in Balance Sheet December 31, 2013
Derivatives designated ahedging instruments
Interest rate swap contract Accrued liabilities $ 1,21¢
Other long-term liabilities 1,68¢
$ 2,90(
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Balance Sheet Information (in thousands Fair Value of Liability Derivatives

Location in Balance Sheet December 31, 2012

Derivatives designated ahedging instruments
Interest rate swap contract Accrued liabilities $ 1,83¢
Other long-term liabilities 2,84(
$ 4,67¢

The effect of derivative instruments on our Cordatied Statements of Operations for the years eBgedmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 we
follows (in thousands):

Amount of loss
recognized in

Income on
Location of loss derivative
Location of loss Amount of loss recognized in Income (ineffective portion
Amount of gain reclassified from reclassified from on derivative and amount
(loss) recognized it accumulated OCI intc  Accumulated OCI (ineffective portion and  excluded from
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedgini Accumulated OCI Income (effective into Income amount excluded from effectiveness
Relationships (effective portion) portion) (effective portion)  effectiveness testing) testing)
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2013 Floor plan Floor plan
Interest rate swap contract $ 1,00t Interest expense  $ (740) Interest expense  $ (1,235
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2012 Floor plan Floor plan
Interest rate swap contracts $ 1,65t Interest expense  $ (1,419 Interest expense  $ (2,900
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2011 Floor plan Floor plan
Interest rate swap contracts $ (1,349 Interest expense  $ (1,899 Interest expense  $ (1,587
(12) Fair Value Measurements

Factors used in determining the fair value of anaricial assets and liabilities are summarizedtimee broad categories:

Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets fonidml securities;

Level 2 — other significant observable inputsjuding quoted prices for similar securities, ietdrrates, prepayment spreads, credit risk; and
e Level 3 —significant unobservable inputs, inahgdour own assumptions in determining fair value.

The inputs or methodology used for valuing finahassets and liabilities are not necessarily aicatwn of the risk associated with investin
them.

We use the income approach to determine the faiewaf our interest rate swap using observable L2vearket expectations at each measure
date and an income approach to convert estimatadefeash flows to a single present value amoustd¢dnted) assuming that participants are motiy
but not compelled, to transact. Level 2 inputstfa swap valuation are limited to quoted pricessforilar assets or liabilities in active marketggsifically
futures contracts on LIBOR for the first two yeaas)d inputs other than quoted prices that are vhbkr for the asset or liability (specifically LIBOcasl
and swap rates and credit risk at commonly quatezhials). Midmarket pricing is used as a practical expedienfdiorvalue measurements. Key inp
including the cash rates for very short term bomgw, futures rates for up to two years and LIBQRys rates beyond the derivative maturity, are ue
predict future reset rates to discount those futash flows to present value at the measuremeat dat
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Inputs are collected from Bloomberg on the lastkatday of the period. The same methodology is teetktermine the rate used to discoun
future cash flows. The valuation of the interes¢ mwap also takes into consideration our own, elsag the counterparty’s, risk of ngerformance und
the contract.

There were no changes to our valuation techniquesglthe year ended December 31, 2013.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value
Following are the disclosures related to our asmeds(liabilities) that are measured at fair veinghousands):

Fair Value at December 31, 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Measured on a recurring basis:
Derivative contract, net $ - % (2,900 $ -

Fair Value at December 31, 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Measured on a recurring basis:
Derivative contract, net $ - % (4,679 $ -

See Note 11 for more details regarding our dereatbntracts.

Fair Value Disclosures for Financial Assets and Lidities

We have fixed rate debt and calculate the estimtaied/alue of our fixed rate debt using a disceahtash flow methodology. Using estim:
current interest rates based on a similar riskilerahd duration (Level 2), the fixed cash flows discounted and summed to compute the fair véfitiee
debt. As of December 31, 2013, this debt had ntgtdetes between November 2016 and May 2031. A amnof the aggregate carrying values anc
values of our long-term fixed interest rate dek#sdollows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Carrying value $ 132,61¢ $ 130,46¢
Fair value 126,78t 134,68t

We believe the carrying value of our variable dgbt approximates fair value.

(13) Income Taxes

Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing opions was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2013 2012 2011
Current:
Federal $ 46,727 $ 31,43¢ $ 21,77¢
State 5,53¢ 3,62¢ 3,561
52,26¢ 35,06¢ 25,34(
Deferred:
Federal 9,01( 10,88¢ 7,04¢
State (702) 3,11(C 674
8,30¢ 13,99¢ 7,72
Total $ 60,57: $ 49,06: $ 33,06(

F-27




At December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had income teasvable of $3.4 million and $7.3 million, respeely, included as a component of ot
current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Individually significant components of the defertas assets and liabilities are presented belowh@nsands):

December 31, 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets:
Deferred revenue and cancellation reserves $ 8,851 $ 7,591
Allowances and accruals, including state tax caryérd amounts 31,06( 21,34(
Interest on derivatives 1,11z 1,79¢
Credits and other 1,931 -
Goodwill 10,33: 18,13¢
Capital loss carryforward 10,89: 12,24¢
Valuation allowance (11,087 (11,647
Total deferred tax assets 53,10« 49,47¢

Deferred tax liabilities:

Inventories (6,722) (4,689
Property and equipment, principally due to differesin depreciation (32,567) (22,489
Prepaid expenses and other (2,015 (1,35€6)
Total deferred tax liabilities (41,300 (28,529
Total $ 11,80: $ 20,95¢

We consider whether it is more likely than not teame portion or all of the deferred tax asset$ nat be realized. The ultimate realizatior
deferred tax assets is dependent upon future ®iabbme during the periods in which those tempodifferences become deductible. We conside
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities I{iding the impact of available carryback and canmyfard periods), projected future taxable income tax-
planning strategies in making this assessment.

As of December 31, 2013, we had a $11.1 millioruatbn allowance recorded associated with our dedetax assets. The majority of |
allowance is associated with capital losses froeghle of corporate entities in prior years. Thieiation allowance decreased $0.6 million in thereni
year.

During 2013, release of the valuation allowancateal to the utilization of our capital loss carryfard resulted in a tax benefit of $1.5 million.
of the end of 2013, we evaluated the availabilitypmjected capital gains and determined that ittiomes to be unlikely the remaining capital
carryforward would be fully utilized. We will comtiile to evaluate if it is more likely than not that will realize the benefits of these deductibléedences
However, additional valuation allowance amountddde recorded in the future if estimates of tagabtome during the carryforward period are reduced

At December 31, 2013, we had a number of statedayforward amounts totaling approximately $0.9ion, tax affected, with expiration da

through 2033. We believe that it is more likelyrth#ot that the benefit from certain state NOL cnmyards will not be realized. In recognition ofgthisk.
we have provided a valuation allowance of $0.9iatilbon the deferred tax assets relating to thege BIOL carryforwards.
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The reconciliation between amounts computed udiegiederal income tax rate of 35% and our incomeptavision from continuing operatic

for 2013, 2012 and 2011 is shown in the followiaulation (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2013 2012 2011
Federal tax provision at statutory rate $ 58,02t $ 44,72 $ 30,89t
State taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 3,141 4,77 3,021
Non-deductible expenses 1,01c 61¢ 20¢
Permanent differences related to the employee gtoathase

program 55 52 10t
Net change in valuation allowan (5549 (2,200) (34€)
General business credits (440) - -
Other (664) 97 (823
Income tax provision $ 60,57 $ 49,06: $ 33,06(

We did not have any activity during 2013 or 20112tel to unrecognized tax benefits and did not feayeamounts of unrecognized tax benefi

of December 31, 2013 or 2012. No interest or persaltvere included in our results of operationsrp@013, 2012 or 2011, and we had no accrued st
or penalties at December 31, 2013 or 2012.

(14)

Open tax years at December 31, 2013 included tlmviog:

Federal 201C - 201¢
12 states 200¢ - 201z
Acquisitions

In 2013, we completed the following acquisitioniet contributed revenues of $64.7 million for jfear ended December 31, 2013:

On June 10, 2013, we acquired OB Salem Auto Grmapin Salem, Oregon, including BMW, Honda anolkRéwagen franchises.
On October 7, 2013, we acquired Stockton NissarirKStockton, California.

On October 24, 2013, we acquired Fresno Lincaiv¥in Fresno, California.

On November 1, 2013, we acquired Howard’s BodgpSh Klamath Falls, Oregon.

On November 4, 2013, we acquired Geweke Motars,d Toyota Scion store in Lodi, California.

On December 2, 2013, we acquired Diablo SubaWamut Creek, California.

We completed the following acquisitions in 2012:

On April 30, 2012, we acquired Bellingham Cheetand Cadillac in Bellingham, Washington.

On June 12, 2012, we acquired Fairbanks GMC Bni¢kairbanks, Alaska.

On August 27, 2012, we acquired Killeen ChevraoieKilleen, Texas.

On October 23, 2012, we acquired Bitterroot TayintMissoula, Montana.

We completed the following acquisitions in 2011:

On April 18, 2011, we acquired Mercedgsnz of Portland, Oregon, Mercedes Benz of WilskewiOregon and Rasmussen BMW/MINI
Portland, Oregon.

On October 7, 2011, we acquired Fresno SubaFuesno, California.

All acquisitions were accounted for as businesshinations under the acquisition method of accogntirhe results of operations of the acqt

stores are included in our Consolidated Finandiaie®nents from the date of acquisition
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No portion of the purchase price was paid with @quiity securities. The following table summarizess ¢consideration paid for material acquisit
and the amount of identified assets acquired afilities assumed as of the acquisition date @usands):

Consideration paid for year ended December 31, 2013 2012
Cash paid, net of cash acquired $ 81,10 $ 44,71¢

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed for year eled December 31, 2013 2012
Inventories $ 30,62 $ 17,54:
Franchise value 8,77( 5,17¢
Property, plant and equipment 24,74: 11,09:
Real estate lease reserves (22)) -
Other assets 264 11C
Reserves (3449 -
Capital lease obligations (37 (2,609
Other liabilities (15€) (307)
63,64: 31,00¢
Goodwill 17,46¢ 13,71(
$ 81,10 $ 44,71¢

We account for franchise value as an indefifiited intangible asset. We expect the full amourthe goodwill recognized to be deductible for
purposes. We did not have any material acquisitiated expenses in 2013, 2012 or 2011.

The following unaudited pro forma summary preseatssolidated information as if the 2013 and 201@uaitions had occurred on January
the prior year (in thousands, except for per shareunts):

Year Ended December 31, 2013 2012 2011

Revenue $ 4,14494! $ 3,571,85. $ 2,789,43
Income from continuing operations, net of tax 105,78 81,53: 56,90«
Basic income per share from continuing operatiops of tax 4.1C 3.17 2.17
Diluted income per share from continuing operatjoret of tax 4.04 3.1z 2.13

These amounts have been calculated by applyinga@zounting policies and estimates. The resulthefacquired stores have been adjust
reflect the following: depreciation on a straidinie basis over the expected lives for propertgnpland equipment; accounting for inventory on ecsje
identification method; and recognition of interespense for real estate financing related to staesre we purchased the facility. No nonrecurring
forma adjustments directly attributable to the asitjons are included in the reported pro formaeraes and earnings.

In July 2011, we were awarded a Ford franchiselanmath Falls, Oregon which was accounted for aasset acquisition. Consideration of §
million was paid for the inventory, equipment asdaciated real estate.

(15) Discontinued Operations

We classify a store as discontinued operatiortseifidcation has been sold, we have ceased opevatidhat location or the store meets the cr
required by U.S. generally accepted accountingistals:

our management team, possessing the necesshoyigytcommits to a plan to sell the store;

the store is available for immediate sale ipitssent condition;

an active program to locate buyers and otheomgtihat are required to sell the store are ieitiat

a market for the store exists and we believsdis is likely to be completed within one year;

active marketing of the store commences at & phiat is reasonable in relation to the estima@diarket value; and

our management team believes it is unlikely ti@nges will be made to the plan or the plan tpadis of the store will be withdrawn.
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We reclassify the storg’operations to discontinued operations in our Glifeted Statements of Operations, on a compatzses for all perioc
presented, provided we do not expect to have amjfisiant continuing involvement in the store’s ogéons after its disposal.

In 2011, we sold three stores: a Chrysler Jeep Batire in Concord, California; a Volkswagen sfaréhornton, Colorado and a GMC Buick
a Kia store in Cedar Rapids, lowa. The associasdlts of operations for these locations are dladsas discontinued operations. As of Decembe2811
we had no stores and no properties classified ldStresale.

In October 2012, we sold two stores: a Chryslep J#adge store and a Hyundai store, both locatéeleinton, Washington. The associated re
of operations for these locations are classifiedissontinued operations.

Additionally, in October 2012, we determined thaem®f our stores met the criteria for classificatod the assets and related liabilities as hel
sale. As of December 31, 2013, the store has Hassifted as held for sale for more than one year.

As this store has been classified as held forlsayend one year, we continually evaluated whetheveg had taken all necessary actions to res
to the change in circumstances; (ii) we were algtimearketing the store at a price that was readenamd (iii) we continued to meet all of the crié
discussed above to continue to classify the sesdweld for sale.

Since the end of 2012, we have actively marketeddsttore for sale and continue to identify intezdsparties. Throughout the past year, we
had both signed letters of intent and contractshfersale of the property. However, these salee hatbeen consummated for various reasons ingjutis
potential buyers being unable to obtain manufactapproval. We believe the classification continteebe appropriate as all criteria to classify $tere a
held for sale are still met as of December 31, 20h@ stores assets and related liabilities are classifiededd for sale and its associated operating re
are classified as discontinued operations as oééer 31, 2013.

As of December 31, 2013, we have one store andopepies classified as held for sale. Assets fazldale included the following (in
thousands):

December 31, 2013
Inventories $ 8,26(
Property, plant and equipment 1,19¢
Intangible assets 2,072
$ 11,52¢

Liabilities related to assets held for sale inchlittee following (in thousands):

December 31, 2013
Floor plan notes payable $ 6,271

Actual floor plan interest expense for the stoessified as discontinued operations is directlgtesl to the store’s new vehicles. Interest
expense related to our used vehicle inventory fimgnand revolving line of credit is allocated béiea the working capital level of the store. Ingtre
expense included as a component of discontinuetipes was as follows (in thousands):
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Year Ended December 31, 2013 2012 2011
Floor plan interest $ 117 $ 217 $ 52C
Other interest 21 69 10¢
Total interest $ 13t $ 28€ $ 62€
Certain financial information related to discontduoperations was as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31, 2013 2012 2011
Revenue $ 38,97¢ $ 82,15( 131,38(
Pre-tax gain from discontinued operations $ 1,31C $ 2,18¢ 1,51¢
Net gain (loss) on disposal activiti - (627) 4,39¢
1,31( 1,56¢ 5,91:
Income tax expense (529 (599¢) (2,262
Income from discontinued operations, net of incdaxeexpense $ 78¢ $ 967 3,65(
Goodwill and other intangible assets disposed of $ - 3 16¢ 71z
The net gain (loss) on disposal activities inclutteglfollowing charges (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31, 2013 2012 2011
Goodwill and other intangible assets $ - 9% (169) 3,16¢
Property, plant and equipment - (299 1,357
Inventory - (82 (88
Other - (77) (47,
$ - $ (621) 4,39¢

Related Party Transactions

Sale of Nissan, Volkswagen and BMW Stores

On March 27, 2012, we completed the sale of an B#étest in our Nissan, Volkswagen and BMW storesledford, Oregon to Dick Heimanr
director and our Vice Chairman. We received prose#ds9.6 million, of which $2.9 million was recei in cash and $6.7 million was received throug
payoff of floor plan financing. The sale of the 8@4terest in the stores resulted in a gain of $llfon and was recorded as a component of seltjegere
and administrative expense on our Consolidatee®&tts of Operations.

The Nissan and Volkswagen stores were purchasethéobook value of the inventory as defined by dhiginal terms of an option agreem
provided to Mr. Heimann in 2009. The price of theangible assets of $1.2 million was based on direvhlue of the intangible assets related to tN&AE
store. We corroborated the fair value of the BMWe's intangible assets with independent third parbkér opinions and financial projections using a
value income approach.

When we sold the three stores, we entered int@eedtservice agreement with the stores. This agreeallows the stores to lease our emplo
use the Lithia name, utilize accounting supportcfioms and receive consulting services. The sesvizevided and the costs of the services are shen
the same as the shared services provide to outywdwhed stores.

We retained a 20% interest in the stores as ofrtlmsaction date. We determined that we are nopitieary beneficiary of the stores and the

and rewards associated with our investment aredb@s®wnership percentages. We determined we nigéataignificant influence over the operations
a result, our 20% interest is accounted for underequity method. We recorded the equity investraefdir value of $0.8 million as of the transantiate
that resulted in a gain of $0.2 million. The gaiaswrecorded as a component of other income on onsdlidated Statements of Operations. We deterr
the fair value of our equity investment based atependent third party broker opinions and finangiajections using a fair value income approach.

As of December 31, 2013, the carrying value ofemuity investment was $1.2 million and was recor@ed component of other noorrent asse
in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Sale of Land

In the fourth quarter of 2013, we completed the sdlland in Medford, Oregon to Dick Heimann for.Z4nillion. Mr. Heimann intends to reloc
the stores he purchased in 2012 to this locatiom défermined the fair value of the land based thrird party appraisal for the property. The sakubed ir
a gain of $2.5 million, recorded as a componersietiing, general and administrative expenses.

a7) Net Income Per Share of Class A and&3s B Common Stock

We compute net income per share of Class A ancs@aommon stock using the tvetass method. Under this method, basic net incoenesipar
is computed using the weighted average numberrofan shares outstanding during the period excludingested common shares subject to repurchi
cancellation. Diluted net income per share is caegwsing the weighted average number of commorestend, if dilutive, potential common sh:
outstanding during the period. Potential commorreshaonsist of the incremental common shares isugidon the exercise of stock options and unwv
restricted shares subject to repurchase or catioaelldhe dilutive effect of outstanding stock apits and other grants is reflected in diluted egsipe
share by application of the treasury stock metfite computation of the diluted net income per slofi@lass A common stock assumes the conversi
Class B common stock, while the diluted net incquaeshare of Class B common stock does not asswermmhversion of those shares.

Except with respect to voting and transfer riglie rights of the holders of our Class A and CRssommon stock are identical. Our Rest
Articles of Incorporation require that the Classad Class B common stock must share equally indangtends, liquidation proceeds or other distribo
with respect to our common stock and the Articlefnoorporation can only be amended by a vote efdtockholders. Additionally, Oregon law provi
that amendments to our Articles of Incorporatiomicli would have the effect of adversely altering tights, powers or preferences of a given cla
stock, must be approved by the class of stock adiemffected by the proposed amendment. As atrabel undistributed earnings for each yeal
allocated based on the contractual participatightsi of the Class A and Class B common sharesths #arnings for the year had been distributedaBs
the liguidation and dividend rights are identi¢hk undistributed earnings are allocated on a ptigmate basis.

Following is a reconciliation of the income fromntmuing operations and weighted average shares foseur basic earnings per share (“EPS”
and diluted EPS for the years ended December 3B,2012 and 2011 (in thousands, except per shaoers):
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Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

Basic EPS

Numerator:

Income from continuing operations
applicable to common stockholders
Distributed income applicable to commo
stockholders

Basic undistributed income from continu
operations applicable to common
stockholders

Denominator:

Weighted average number of shares oul
standing used to calculate basic income
share

Basic income from continuing operations
per share applicable to common
stockholders

Basic distributed income per share
applicable to common stockholders
Basic undistributed income from continu
operations per share applicable to comn
stockholders

Class A

Class B

Class A

Class B

Class A Class B

$

94,53:

(9,067)

$

10,68:

(1,022)

$

69,06¢

(10,49))

$

10,32¢

(1,569)

$

47,29: $ 7,91¢

(5,844) (97¢)

85,47

$

9,65¢

$

58,57

8,751

$

41,44¢ $ 6,94(

23,18¢

2,62(

22,35¢

3,34:

22,46¢ 3,76:

(0.39)

4.0¢

(0.39)

$

3.0¢

(0.47)

3.0¢

(0.47)

21C $ 2.1C

(0.26) (0.26)

3.6¢

$

3.6¢

$

2.62

$

2.62

$

184 $ 1.84
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Year Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

Diluted EPS

Numerator:

Distributed income applicable to commo
stockholders

Reallocation of distributed income as a
result of conversion of dilutive stock
options

Reallocation of distributed income due tc
conversion of Class B to Class A
Diluted distributed income applicable to
common stockholders

Undistributed income from continuing
operations applicable to common
stockholders

Reallocation of undistributed income as
result of conversion of dilutive stock
options

Reallocation of undistributed income due
conversion of Class B to Class A
Diluted undistributed income from
continuing operations applicable to
common stockholders

Denominator:

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding used to calculate basic inco
per share

Weighted average number of shares froi
stock options

Conversion of Class B to Class A
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding used to calculate diluted
income per share

Year Ended December 31,

Class A

Class B

Class A

Class B Class A Class B

$

9,061

15

1,00¢

1,02¢

(15)

$

10,49:

28

1,541

1,56¢ $ 584s $ 97¢

(28) 15 (15)

- 962 -

10,08¢

1,00¢

12,06¢

1541 % 6,82: $ 963

$

85,47

142

9,51¢

9,65¢

(142)

58,57.

15¢

8,59¢

8,751 $ 41,44¢  $ 6,94(

(159) 117 (119

- 6,821 -

95,12¢

9,51¢

67,32¢

8,59¢ $ 48,38t $ 6,821

23,18t

38¢
2,62(

2,62(

22,35¢

474
3,342

3,342 22,46¢ 3,762
- 434 -

- 3,76z -

26,19:

2,62(

26,17(

3,342 26,66+ 3,762

2013

2012

2011

Diluted EPS

Diluted income from continuing operatio
per share available to common stockholi
Diluted distributed income from continuir
operations per share applicable to comn
stockholders

Diluted undistributed income from
continuing operations per share applicat
to common stockholders

Antidilutive Securities:

Shares issuable pursuant to stock optior
not included since they were antidilutive

Class A

Class B

Class A

Class B Class A Class B

$

4.0z

(0.39)

$

4.0z

(0.39)

$

3.0¢

(0.47)

$

3.00 $ 207 $ 2.07

(0.47) (0.26) (0.26)

$

3.6

3.6

2.5€

25¢ $ 181 $ 1.81

16
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(18) Subsequent Events

Dividend

On February 17, 2014, our Board of Directors appdoa dividend of $0.13 per share on our Class AGads B Common stock related to
fourth quarter 2013 financial results. The dividenidl total approximately $3.4 million and will bgaid on March 21, 2014 to shareholders of recol
March 7, 2014.

Acquisition

On January 31, 2014, we acquired the inventoryjpagent and intangible assets of, and assumed rdiddiilities related to, Island Honda
Kahului, Hawaii. Total consideration for this acsjtion was $9.5 million. We financed this acqusitiwith $5.7 million in cash and $3.8 million innig-
term debt.

On February 3, 2014, we acquired the inventoryjpegant and intangible assets of, and assumed ididhilities related to, Stockton Volkswag
in Stockton, California. Total consideration foistlcquisition was $3.6 million.
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Exhibit 10.4.1
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LITHIA MOTORS, INC.
RESTATED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT
(Long Term Performance Vesting)

This Restated Restricted Stock Unit AgreemenmAd@teement”), which amends and restates in its entirely the Réstk Stock Unit Agreeme
dated February 1, 2013, is entered into pursuatitd@®mended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive (fiari' Plan ) as adopted by the Board of Direct
and Shareholders of Lithia Motors, Inc., an Oregorporation (the ‘Company ") and as amended from time to time. Unless otherdésimed hereir
capitalized terms defined in this Agreement shallehthe meanings as defined in the Phamy inconsistency between this Agreement and thagen:
conditions of the Plan will be resolved in accomamwith the Plan. Compensation paid pursuant ® Algreement is intended to qualify as performance-
based compensation under Section 162(m) of thena@t&evenue Code of 1986 (th€bde™).

“Recipient”

Number of Restricted Stock Units “RSU<")

“Date of Grant” March 8, 201:
1. GRANT OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD

1.1 The Grant.The Company hereby awards to Recipient and Retigiecepts the award of RSUs specified above ortehmas an
conditions set forth in this Agreement and as otfs provided in the Plan (theAward ”). Each RSU represents the right to receive one sifatéass /
Common Stock of the Company (e8hare”) on an applicable Settlement Date (as defined ii@ed.4 of this Agreement), subject to the terrhshés
Agreement and the Plan.

1.2 Forfeiture; Vesting

@) Forfeiture. The RSUs are subject to forfeiture in accordandd wie performance criteria specified in SectioB(l). of this
Agreement. On the date that is the sixth annivgrshthe Date of Grant, any RSUs that are not keate forfeited.

(b) Vesting.Subject to the continued employment of Recipierthwhe Company or any Subsidiary, a percentagheoRSUs she
vest, and no longer be subject to forfeiture, obr&ary 1 of the year following the fiscal year ihiesh the Companyg Pro Forma EPS (as defined in Sec
1.2(c)) for the fiscal year meets or exceeds thtopaance thresholds (each a&BPS Threshold”) outlined in the following table.

EPS Threshold Corresponding Vesting
Percentage
$4.00 33%
$5.00 33%
$6.00 34%
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The number of RSUs that vest at any given timel fleafounded to the nearest whole RSU, excepiftkRS meets or exceeds $6.00, all unve
RSUs shall vest. If more than one EPS Threshaldeisor exceeded that was not met or exceeded piyjdhe corresponding vesting percentages fdn
EPS Threshold met or exceeded may be added togéthewithstanding anything to the contrary, once #PS meets or exceeds any particular
Threshold and RSUs are vested accordingly, noiadditRSUs may vest in connection with EPS meatingxceeding that particular EPS Threshold again.

Example 1For fiscal year 2013, the $4.00 EPS Threshold veasmet or exceeded. For fiscal year 2014, the CoyigePro Forma EPS
$5.00. Because $5.00 is equal to the $5.00 EPSshtlick and greater than the $4.00 EPS Thresholdbecause the $4.00 EPS Thres
was not previously met or exceeded, 66% (the cooreding vesting percentages for the $4.00 EPS hblésind the $5.00 EPS Thresh
added together) of the RSUs vest effective Febrtia@p15. If the Award were 1,000 RSUs, then 660&®&ould vest effective February
2015.

Example 2For fiscal year 2013, the CompasyPro Forma EPS is $4.50. Because $4.50 is higharthe $4.00 EPS Threshold, 33% o
RSUs vest effective February 1, 2014. If the Awarte 1,000 RSUs, then 330 RSUs would vest on Fepdy®014. For fiscal year 20
the Companys earnings per share again is $4.50. While $4.30giser than the $4.00 EPS Threshold, 33% of the/sR&8lready vests
because the Compamsyearnings per share exceeded the $4.00 EPS Thtdshdiscal year 2013. Therefore, no additions8Us ves
effective February 1, 2015. For fiscal year 20b®, €ompanys Pro Forma EPS is $6.00. Because EPS met or ed¢&6d00, all remainif
RSUs, or 670 RSUs, vest effective February 1, 2016.

(c) Calculation of Pro Forma EPS* Pro Forma EPS” means the Company’'consolidated diluted income (loss) per sharsgafortt
in the audited consolidated statement of incometerCompany and its subsidiaries for the fiscalryexcluding noreperational transactions or dispc
activities, for example:

i. assetimpairment and disposal g:

ii. gains or losses on the sale of real estate orss
iii. gains or losses on equity investme

iv. related income tax adjustmer

As soon as practicable after each fiscal year[Dinector of Internal Audit of the Company shall @ate the Pro Forma EPS, and shall su
those calculations to the Committee. At or prioithe regularly scheduled meeting of the Committelel In the first fiscal quarter, the Committee ¢
certify in writing (which may consist of approvedmates of the meeting) the Pro Forma EPS attaineth® prior fiscal year. No Shares or other ams
shallbe delivered or paid unless the Committee certtfiesPro Forma EPS. The Committee may reduce tlaiatnof the compensation payable upor
attainment of the performance goals based on sathrs as it deems appropriate, including subjedtetors.

1.3 Clawbacklf the Companys financial statements are restated within thregsyafter it is determined that any EPS Threshakl iee
met or exceeded, the EPS for the applicable petiadl be recalculated (the resulting number, tieetalculated EPS’) based on the Comparg/testate
financial statements. If the Recalculated EPSds tean the EPS calculated before the Compgdimancial statements were restated, Recipiert sy tc
the Company the number of Shares calculated byamilitg the number of Shares Recipient would haeeived based on the Recalculated EPS froi
number of Shares Recipient received (tHextess Share$) and any dividend paid on the Excess Shares“(thecess Dividends). If any Excess Shar
are sold by Recipient before the Compangémand for repayment (including any Shares withfog taxes under Section 4 of this Agreement)ient
shall repay to the Company 100% of the proceedsuoh sale or sales. The Committee may, in its disleretion, reduce the amount to be repai
Recipient to take into account the tax consequeofcssch repayment for Recipient.
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If any portion of the Excess Shares and ExcessdBids was deferred under the RSU Deferral PlagtaféeJanuary 1, 2012 (theDeferral Plan
"), that portion shall be recovered by canceling thewts so deferred under the Deferral Plan and angleshds or other earnings credited under
Deferral Plan with respect to such cancelled amsurtte Company may seek direct repayment from Ratipf any Excess Shares, Excess Dividend:
proceeds not so recovered and may, to the extemtitped by applicable law, offset such amounts mgfaany compensation or other amounts owed &
Company to Recipient. In particular, such amounéy e recovered by offset against the afarproceeds of deferred compensation payouts uhe
Company’s Deferred Compensation Plan, the Compa8upplemental Executive Retirement Plan at thegisuch deferred compensation payouts
under the terms of those plans. Amounts that remapaid for more than 60 days after demand by tmgany shall accrue interest at the rate used
time to time for crediting interest under the DederCompensation Plan.

1.4 Settlement of RSUshere is no obligation for the Company to make pawyt® or distributions with respect to RSUs exceypttfie
distribution of Shares with respect to vested RS issuance of one Share for each vested RSU @ettlement”) may be subject to such conditic
restrictions and contingencies as the Committed deéermine. The Company agrees not to exercgseight under the Plan to settle the RSUs in
medium other than Shares. Unless receipt of theeShs validly deferred pursuant to the RSU Defd?tan effective January 1, 2012, RSUs shall biesl
as soon as practicable after they have vested @atehof Settlement, a Settlement Date”), but in no event later than March 15 of the calendsx
following the calendar year in which the RSUs vestéotwithstanding the foregoing, the payment datgorth in this Section 1.4 have been speciioe
the purpose of complying with the shéetm deferral exception under Code Section 4094, tarthe extent payments are made during the pepednitte:
under Code Section 409A (including applicable misibefore or after the specified payment datedostit in this Section 1.4), the Company shal
deemed to have satisfied its obligations undePtha and shall be deemed not to be in breach paitment obligations hereunder.

1.5 Termination of Recipient's Employment;Extended Leave of Absencelf Recipient's employment is terminated for any rea
including a voluntary or involuntary terminatiorr, wpon Recipiens death, Disability or retirement, any unvested B3Il be forfeited. If Recipient is «
unpaid leave for more than six months, any unveR®&ds will be forfeited.

2. REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS OF RECPIENT

2.1 No Representations by or on Behalf tife Company.Recipient is not relying on any representation,ramty or statement made by
Company or any agent, employee or officer, direcbareholder or other controlling person of thenfany regarding the RSUs or this Agreement.

2.2 Tax ConsiderationsThe Company has advised Recipient to seek Recipienin tax and financial advice with regard to theefral an
state tax considerations resulting from Recipiergeipt of the Award and Recipiesitteceipt of the Shares upon Settlement of thesdgsortion of th
Award. Recipient understands that the Companyhé¢oeixtent required by law, will report to approtEigaxing authorities the payment to Recipier
compensation income upon the Settlement of RSUsruh@ Award and Recipient shall be solely resgiedor the payment of all federal and state t
resulting from such Settlement.
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2.3 Agreement to Enter into Lock-Up Agreemnt with an Underwriter. Recipient understands and agrees that wheneveCdhgpan
undertakes a firmly underwritten public offeringitsf securities, Recipient will, if requested tostoby the managing underwriter in such offeringeeintc
an agreement not to sell or dispose of any seesiriti the Company owned or controlled by Recipiictuding any the RSUs, provided that such retsom
will not extend beyond 12 months from the effectilade of the registration statement filed in cotioacwith such offering.

3. GENERAL RESTRICTIONS OF TRANSFERS OFUNVESTED RSUS

3.1 No Transfers of Unvested RSURecipient agrees for himself or herself, his or &eecutors, administrators and other success
interest that none of the RSUs, nor any interesteih, may be voluntarily or involuntarily soldatisferred, assigned, donated, pledged, hypotheos
otherwise disposed of, gratuitously or for consatien prior to their vesting in accordance withstAigreement.

3.2 Award Adjustments.The number of RSUs granted under this Award shalihe discretion of the Committee, be subjectdjiostmen
under the Plan in the event the outstanding shr€®@mmon Stock are hereafter increased, decreabadged into or exchanged for a different numip
kind of shares of Common Stock or for other semgibof the Company or of another corporation, lasom of any reorganization, merger, consolide
reclassification, stock split up, combination o&s#s of Common Stock, or dividend payable in shaf€ommon Stock or other securities of the Comg
If Recipient receives any additional RSUs purstarhe Plan, such additional (or other) RSUs dhaltleemed granted hereunder and shall be subjde
same restrictions and obligations on the RSUs igially granted as imposed by this Agreement.

3.3 Invalid Transfers. Any disposition of the RSUs other than in strictnggiance with the provisions of this Agreement khalvoid.

4, PAYMENT OF TAX WITHHOLDING AMOUNTS. To the extent the Company is responsible for wiltling income taxes, upon the ves!
of the Award Recipient must pay to the Company akenadequate provision for the payment of all Tashiélding. It is expected that the Award will v
under Section 1.2 of this Agreement during a pefiodvhich trading is not permitted under the Companinsider trading policy. To satisfy the T
Withholding requirement, Recipient irrevocably efeto settle the Tax Withholding obligation by fBempany withholding a number of Shares other
deliverable upon vesting having a market valueigefit to satisfy the statutory minimum tax withtliolg of Recipient. If the Company later determities
additional Tax Withholding was or has become regflilveyond any amount paid or provided for by ReaipiRecipient will pay such additional amour
the Company immediately upon demand by the Comgd&Recipient fails to pay the amount demanded Gbenpany may withhold that amount from o
amounts payable by the Company to Recipient.

5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

5.1 Amendment and ModificationExcept as otherwise provided by the Plan, this Agrent may be amended, modified and supplem
only by written agreement of all of the partiesdter

5.2 AssignmentThis Agreement and all of the provisions hereofldiebinding upon and inure to the benefit of gaeties hereto and th
respective successors and permitted assigns, bénthis Agreement nor any of the rights, inteses obligations hereunder shall be assigned laypis!
without the prior written consent of the Company.

5.3 Governing Law.To the extent not preempted by federal law, thise&gent and the rights and obligations of the @atiereunder sh
be governed by and construed in accordance witinteenal laws of the State of Oregon applicabléhtoconstruction and enforcement of contracts ly
executed in Oregon by residents of Oregon and wipetformed in Oregon. Any action or proceedinguigitt by any party hereto shall be brought only
state or federal court of competent jurisdictionalied in the County of Multhomah in the State oé@dn and all parties hereto hereby submit to t
personal jurisdiction of such court for purposesij such action or procedure.
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5.4 Arbitration . The parties agree to submit any dispute arisimgeu this Agreement to final, binding, private &dtion in Portlanc
Oregon. This includes not only disputes about tleammng or performance of the Agreement, but digpat®ut its negotiation, drafting, or executione
dispute will be determined by a single arbitratoraccordance with the thexxisting rules of arbitration procedure of Multhdm@ounty, Oregon Circt
Court, except that there shall be no right of deoneview in Circuit Court and the arbitrator mayaoge his or her standard arbitration fees ratiean th
fees prescribed in the Multhomah County Circuit E€arbitration procedures. The proceeding will lmmenced by the filing of a civil complaint
Multhomah County Circuit Court and a simultaneceguest for transfer to arbitration. The partiesressly agree that they may choose an arbitratoris
not on the list provided by the Multnomah Countyc@it Court Arbitration Department, but if they areable to agree upon the single arbitrator witan
days of receipt of the Arbitration Department ligtey will ask the Arbitration Department to make tselection for them. The arbitrator will havel
authority to determine all issues, including adiflity, to award any remedy, including permanewanctive relief, and to determine any requestciost:
and expenses in accordance with Section 5.5 ofAgieement. The arbitrat@’award may be reduced to final judgment in MultabnCounty Circu
Court. The complaining party shall bear the arhiiraexpenses and may seek their recovery if ivgte Notwithstanding any other provision of
Agreement, an aggrieved party may seek a tempoeatyaining order or preliminary injunction in Madtmah County Circuit Court to preserve the s
quo during the arbitration proceeding.

55 Attorney Fees If any suit, action, or proceeding is instituedconnection with any controversy arising out lestAgreement or tt
enforcement of any right hereunder, the prevaifiagty will be entitled to recover, in addition tosts, such sums as the court or arbitrator maydge
reasonable as attorney fees, including fees orappgal.

5.6 HeadingsThe headings of the sections and subsections oAl ieement are inserted for convenience only aad sot constitute a p:
hereof.

5.7 Entire AgreementThis Agreement and the Plan embody the entire aggaeand understanding of the parties hereto ipexsof th
subject matter contained herein and supersedegriafl written or oral communications or agreemealisof which are merged herein. There are
restrictions, promises, warranties, covenantsndettakings, other than those expressly set farteferred to herein.

5.8 No WaiverNo waiver of any provision of this Agreement or aights or obligations of any party hereunder shalleffective, exce
pursuant to a written instrument signed by theypartparties waiving compliance, and any such washall be effective only in the specific instareel fo
the specific purpose stated in such writing.

5.9 Severability of Provisiondn the event that any provision hereof is foundaiiosor unenforceable pursuant to judicial decredezision
the remainder of this Agreement shall remain vatid enforceable according to its terms.

5.10 Incorporation by Reference, EtcThe provisions of the Plan are hereby incorporhimein by reference. Except as otherwise set
herein, this Agreement shall be construed in acmd with the provisions of the Plan and any intggtions, amendments, rules and regula
promulgated by the Committee from time to time par¥ to the Plan. The Committee shall have the &nthority to interpret and construe the Plan tuig
Agreement and to make any and all determinatiomeuthem, and its decision shall be final, bindamgl conclusive upon Recipient and his or her
representative in respect to any questions arigimugr the Plan or this Agreement.
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5.11 NoticesAll notices or other communications pursuant t@ thgreement shall be in writing and shall be deecdhdy given if delivere
personally or by courier service, or if mailed bartdfied mail, return receipt requested, prepaid addressed to the Company executive offices t
attention of the Corporate Secretary, or if to Riegit, to the address maintained by the persorgpantiment, or such other address as such partyhsiva
furnished to the other party in writing.

5.12 Acceptance of Agreementinless Recipient notifies the Corporate Secretarviiting within 14 days after the Date of Granai
Recipient does not wish to accept this Agreemesgifgtent will be deemed to have accepted this Agere and will be bound by the terms of
Agreement and the Plan.

5.13 No Right of EmploymentNothing contained in the Plan or this Agreementldieconstrued as giving Recipient any right tadtainec
in any position, as an employee of the CompanyngrSubsidiary.




(Senior Executives, Long Term Performance Ves

Recipient and the Company have executed this Ageaeeffective as of the Grant Date.

RECIPIENT
Signature
Type or Print Name
Social Security Number:
COMPANY LITHIA MOTORS, INC.

By:
Chris Holzshu, CF(

* Please take the time to read and understand thidgreement in its entirety. If you have any specifiquestions or do not fully understand any of th
provisions, please contact Chris Holzshu in writingvithin 10 days of receipt of this Agreement.



Exhibit 10.4.4
(' Senior Executives, with performance- and tiasting)

LITHIA MOTORS, INC.
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT
(Performance and Time Vesting)

This Restricted Stock Unit AgreementAfjreement”) is entered into pursuant to the 2013 AmendedRestated Stock Incentive Plan (thBlan
") adopted by the Board of Directors and Sharehslaé Lithia Motors, Inc., an Oregon corporatiohgt* Company "), as amended from time to tin
Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized teimshis Agreement have the meanings given to thenthe Plan. Any inconsistency between
Agreement and the terms and conditions of the Ridinbe resolved in favor of the Plan. Compensatpaid pursuant to this Agreement is intende
qualify as performance-based compensation undeio8ek52(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 198@ (tCode”).

“Recipient” [

—1

Number of Restricted Stock Units (“RSUSs") [

1

“Date of Grant” January 1, 2014
1. GRANT OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD

1.1 The Grant.The Company hereby awards to Recipient, and Rextipiereby accepts, the RSUs specified above otethes and conditiol
set forth in this Agreement and the Plan (thenfard ”). Each RSU represents the right to receive omeesbf Class A Common Stock of the Company (a “
Share”) on an applicable Settlement Date, as define8dntion 1.3 of this Agreement, subject to the tesfrthis Agreement and the Plan.

1.2 Forfeiture; Vesting; Clawback. The RSUs are subject to forfeiture in accordamitie the performance criteria specified in SectloB(a) o
this Agreement. Any RSUs not forfeited will vestading to the schedule set forth in Section 1.2ftthis Agreement. The RSUs, the Shares issued
vesting of the RSUs and any proceeds received thmsale of the Shares are subject to recoverhé&yCompany as specified in Section 1.2(c) of
Agreement.

(@) Forfeiture.

(i) The RSUs are subject to forfeiture basednenCompany’s 2014 Pro Forma earnings per shiage' @014 Pro Forma EPS'). The
number of RSUs that will be forfeited is determirextording to the highest earnings per share thtéstet forth on the table below (each, aBP<S
Threshold ") that the 2014 Pro Forma EPS meets or exceeds.tdllle below specifies the applicable percentdgeSiJs that will be retained (the “
Earned RSUs"), subject to adjustment as provided in Section 1(2agt the specified EPS Threshold. When the Cdttes certifies the number of Earr
RSUs as provided in Section 1.2(a)(iii), all RSbiattare not Earned RSUs are forfeited.

EPS Threshold Percentage of
Earned RSUs
$ 4.68 (highest) 100%
$ 4.57 90%
$ 4.46 80%
$ 4.36 70%
$ 4.25 60%
$4.14 50%
$ 4.04 40%
$ 0.01 30%
$ 0.00 or negative earnings pel 0%
share (lowest)




(i) If the 2014 Pro Forma EPS is at least 84abd falls between the EPS Thresholds specifigtiéntable above, the percentag
Earned RSUs will be determined on a pata basis and the number of Earned RSUs will beded to the nearest whole RSU. If the 2014 PranBdEPS i
positive but less than $4.04, the percentage afdehRSUs will not exceed 30%.

Example 11f the 2014 Pro Forma EPS is $4.30, the percentda@arned RSUs would be 60% plus an additionalgreege calculat
as follows: (a) the amount by which 2014 Pro FoERS exceeds the highest applicable EPS Threshdtiplied by (b) a fraction, (
the numerator of which is 10% and the (ii) denortmnaf which is the difference between the higreggilicable EPS Threshold and
next-highest EPS Threshold that was exceededifreample, $4.36 - $4.25 = $0.11):

$0.05 (10%/$0.11) = 4.5%
The resulting percentage of Earned RSUs correlatran EPS of $4.30 would be 64.5%. If the Awarden®,000 RSUs, the

number of Earned RSUs would be 64.5% of 1,0004&r BSUs. The number of forfeited RSUs would be @ @Mhus 645, or
355. The Earned RSUs would be subject to the \gstioording to the schedule specified in Secti@fb) .of this Agreement.

(i)  The 2014 Pro Forma EPS will be calculat®ddeducting from the Comparsytonsolidated diluted income (loss) per sharee:
forth in the audited consolidated statement of inedor the Company and its subsidiaries for thed2fiscal year, noreperational transactions or dispc
activities, for example:

i. asset impairment and disposal g

ii. gains or losses on the sale of real estate ors

ii. gains or losses on equity investment;

iv. reserves for real estate leases, Company osemtice contracts (e.g., lifetime oil), and legsdtters;
V. related income tax adjustments for any of the al

As soon as practicable, the Director of Internatifwf the Company shall calculate the 2014 PronteEPS, and shall submit those calculations t
Committee. At or prior to the regularly scheduledating of the Committee held in the first fiscabger of 2014, the Committee shall certify in wrg
(which may consist of approved minutes of the nmggtthe 2014 Pro Forma EPS and the number of Edr$tds. Unless otherwise required under
Agreement, no Shares or other amounts shall beedell or paid unless the Committee certifies th42Pro Forma EPS and the number of Earned F
The Committee may reduce the amount of the comgienspayable upon the attainment of the performapeals based on such factors as it de
appropriate, including subjective factors.




(b) Vesting. Any Earned RSUs shall vest subject to the coetinemployment of Recipient with the Company or Sapsidiary through tt
vesting dates set forth in the table below (eachVasting Date”). The number of Shares to which Recipient is entitedeach Vesting Date shall
rounded up to the nearest whole Share (excephéoiast Vesting Date, on which all remaining RShislls/est).

Vesting Date Vesting of
Award
January 1, 2015 25%
January 1, 2016 25%
January 1, 2017 25%
January 1, 2018 25%
Example 2: If there are 645 Earned RSUs as destchibExample 1, above, they would vest and erfideipient to receive Shares as
follows.
Vesting Date Vesting of Shares
Award
January 1, 201 25% 162
January 1, 201 25% 162
January 1, 2017 25% 162
January 1, 2018 25% 159

(c) Clawback. If the Company’s financial statements are redtateany time within three years after the Comnaittertifies the number of
Earned RSUs under Section 1.2(a)(iii) of this Agneat, the 2014 Pro Forma EPS shall be recalcu{giedesulting number, theRecalculated 2014 Pro
Forma EPS”) based on the restated financial statementbaed on the Company’s restated financial statemire Recalculated 2014 Pro Forma EPS is
less than the 2014 Pro Forma EPS that the Comnpiteaéously certified, (i) any Earned RSUs subjectesting shall be adjusted to reflect the nundber
RSUs that would have been Earned RSUs based drettadculated 2014 Pro Forma EPS and (ii) Recipgkall repay to the Company a number of Shares
calculated by subtracting the number of Sharesgrati should have received based on the Recaldu@@®4 Pro Forma EPS from the number of Shares
Recipient received under this Award (thEXcess Share¥) and any dividend paid on the Excess Shares"(Bvecess Dividends). If any Excess Shares
are sold by Recipient before the Company’s demandepayment (including any Shares withheld foetaMnder Section 4 of this Agreement), Recipient
shall repay to the Company 100% of the proceedsicl sale or sales. The Committee may, in itsdisi@etion, reduce the amount to be repaid by
Recipient to take into account the tax consequeofcesch repayment for Recipient.

If any portion of the Excess Shares and ExcessiBids was deferred under the RSU Deferral PlaotaféeJanuary 1, 2012 (theDeferral Plan
"), that portion shall be recovered by canceling @mounts so deferred under the Deferral Plan apdigidends or other earnings credited under the
Deferral Plan with respect to such cancelled ansurtte Company may seek direct repayment from Retipf any Excess Shares, Excess Dividends and
proceeds not so recovered and may, to the extemitped by applicable law, offset such amounts agfa@ny compensation or other amounts owed by the
Company to Recipient. In particular, such amourdy e recovered by offset against the after-taggeds of deferred compensation payouts under the
Company’s Deferred Compensation Plan, the Compayfplemental Executive Retirement Plan at thedisueh deferred compensation payouts occur
under the terms of those plans. Amounts that remmgraid for more than 60 days after demand by thragany shall accrue interest at the rate used from
time to time for crediting interest under the DederCompensation Plan.




1.3 Settlement of Earned RSUS here is no obligation for the Company to make pewyt®s or distributions with respect to RSUs excepttie
issuance of Shares to settle Earned RSUs aftepihlecable Vesting Date. The Company’s issuanaaefShare for each vested Earned RS8ettlemen
") may be subject to such conditions, restrictions emdtingencies as the Committee shall determindedsnreceipt of the Shares is validly defe
pursuant to the RSU Deferral Plan effective JandaB012, Earned RSUs shall be settled as sooraasqgable after the applicable Vesting Date (edete
of Settlement, a Settlement Date”), but in no event later than March 15 of the calenygar following the calendar year in which the VfegtDate occur:
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the payment daté$asth in this Section 1.3 have been specifiedtfar purpose of complying with the st-term deferre
exception under Code Section 409A, and to the éxitapyments are made during the periods permittetu€ode Section 409A (including applice
periods before or after the specified payment dsgesorth in this Section 1.3), the Company shaldeemed to have satisfied its obligations urfiePla
and shall be deemed not to be in breach of its paywbligations hereunder .

1.4 Termination of Recipient's Employment.

(@) Voluntary or Involuntary TerminationExcept as otherwise provided in this Section if Recipients employment with the Company or
Subsidiary terminates as a result of a voluntarineoluntary termination, all outstanding unvesi8Us (whether or not determined to be Earned R
shall immediately be forfeited. Recipient shall bettreated as terminating employment if Recipieohn an approved leave of absence.

(b) Death. If Recipient’s employment with the Company or @ybsidiary terminates as a result of Recipgedgath, Recipient shall becc
vested in a prorated number of Earned RSUs. Thete portion of the Earned RSUs that is vestedf &ecipients death shall be the total numbe
Earned RSUs multiplied by a fraction, the numeratbwhich shall be the number of full months elap$em the Date of Grant through the dat
Recipients death, and the denominator of which shall beT#4®. Vesting Date for additional RSUs vesting unithés Section 1.4(b) shall be the dat
Recipients death. Payment upon death shall be the total eumibshares vested as a result of this Sectio(b)l.4educed by the number of Shi
previously delivered to Recipient.

(c) Disability . If Recipient becomes Disabled while employedhsy €ompany or a Subsidiary, Earned RSUs shallrmoatio vest as schedu
in Section 1.2 of this Agreement for so long asipient remains Disabled. If Recipient dies whiles@liled, Section 1.4(b) of this Agreement shallyappl

(d) Qualified RetirementIf Recipient terminates employment due to a QiealiRetirement, Recipient shall become vestedprosated numb
of Earned RSUs. A “Qualified Retirementieans the Recipient voluntarily terminates emplayinom or after Recipient attains age 65 and héesasat fou
complete years of employment with the Company @&uhbsidiary. The prorated portion of the Earned R8\d¢ is vested as of RecipientQualifiec
Retirement shall be the total number of Earned R®Ukiplied by a fraction, the numerator of whidia$i be the number of full months elapsed fronr
Date of Grant through the date of Recipisrualified Retirement, and the denominator of Wishall be 48. The Vesting Date for additional RS#©stinc
under this Section 1.4(d) shall be the date of plent’'s Qualified Retirement. Payment upon Qualified frRetient shall be the total number of shares v
as a result of this Section 1.4(d), reduced byntimaber of Shares previously delivered to Recipient.




Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to tloatrary, in no event will any Settlement occur ptimthe applicable Vesting Date (i.e., the Vestrage
set forth in Section 1.2 unless the Vesting Datsaidier pursuant to Section 1.4 as a result ofgRatt’s death or Qualified Retirement).

2. REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS OF RECIRENT

2.1 No Representations by or on Behalf of thedtpany. Recipient is not relying on any representation,ramy or statement made by
Company or any agent, employee or officer, directbareholder or other controlling person of thenfany regarding the RSUs or this Agreement.

2.2 Tax ConsiderationsThe Company has advised Recipient to seek Recipiemin tax and financial advice with regard to thdefral an
state tax considerations resulting from Recipiergeipt of the Award and Recipient'eceipt of the Shares upon Settlement of thesdgsortion of th
Award. Recipient understands that the Companyhéoeixtent required by law, will report to approfidaxing authorities the payment to Recipier
compensation income upon the Settlement of RSUsruih@ Award and Recipient shall be solely resgiedor the payment of all federal and state t
resulting from such Settlement.

2.3 Agreement to Enter into Lock-Up Agreement vth an Underwriter. Recipient understands and agrees that wheneve€dngpan
undertakes a firmly underwritten public offeringitsf securities, Recipient will, if requested tostpoby the managing underwriter in such offerimgeeintc
an agreement not to sell or dispose of any seesiriti the Company owned or controlled by Recipiectuding any the RSUs, provided that such retsom
will not extend beyond 12 months from the effectilade of the registration statement filed in cotioacwith such offering.

3. GENERAL RESTRICTIONS OF TRANSFERS OFUNVESTED RSUS

3.1 No Transfers of Unvested RSU&Xcept for a transfer upon Recipientieath, Recipient agrees for himself or hers@fph her executor
administrators and other successors in intereshtivee of the RSUs, nor any interest therein, maydiuntarily or involuntarily sold, transferredssignec
donated, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise dispafsgratuitously or for consideration prior tethvesting in accordance with this Agreement.

3.2 Award Adjustments.The number of RSUs granted under this Award shathe discretion of the Committee, be subjectjosiment unde
the Plan in the event the outstanding shares offtmmStock are hereafter increased, decreased, ethamg or exchanged for a different number or lof
shares of Common Stock or for other securitieshef €Company or of another corporation, by reasorarf reorganization, merger, consolidat
reclassification, stock split up, combination odss of Common Stock, or dividend payable in shaf€2ommon Stock or other securities of the Comg
If Recipient receives any additional RSUs purstarhe Plan, such additional (or other) RSUs dhaltleemed granted hereunder and shall be subjde
same restrictions and obligations on the RSUs igially granted as imposed by this Agreement.

3.3 Invalid Transfers.Any disposition of the RSUs other than in stricingdiance with the provisions of this Agreement kbalvoid.

4, PAYMENT OF TAX WITHHOLDING AMOUNTS. To the extent the Company is responsible for wiltling income taxes, upon the ves!
of the Award Recipient must pay to the Company akenadequate provision for the payment of all Tahkélding. If the Award is scheduled to v
during a period in which trading is not permitteddar the Company’s insider trading policy (a “Blagk Period”),to satisfy the Tax Withholdir
requirement, Recipient irrevocably elects to setteTax Withholding obligation for an Award thatsis in a Blackout Period by the Company withhg
a number of Shares otherwise deliverable uponngstaving a market value sufficient to satisfy sketutory minimum tax withholding of Recipient.tife
Company later determines that additional Tax Wittiimg was or has become required beyond any anpaidtor provided for by Recipient, Recipient
pay such additional amount to the Company immelgiafgon demand by the Company. If Recipient fallpay the amount demanded, the Company
withhold that amount from other amounts payabl¢heyCompany to Recipient.




5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

5.1 Amendment and ModificationExcept as otherwise provided by the Plan, this &grent may be amended, modified and supplem
only by written agreement of all of the partiesdter

5.2 AssignmenThis Agreement and all of the provisions hereoflid& binding upon and inure to the benefit of tieaties hereto and th
respective successors and permitted assigns, bénthis Agreement nor any of the rights, inteses obligations hereunder shall be assigned laypis!
without the prior written consent of the Company.

5.3 Governing LawTo the extent not preempted by federal law, thise&gent and the rights and obligations of the @attereunder shall
governed by and construed in accordance with ttegrial laws of the State of Oregon applicable o ¢bnstruction and enforcement of contracts wl
executed in Oregon by residents of Oregon and wipaliformed in Oregon. Any action or proceedinguigiet by any party hereto shall be brought only
state or federal court of competent jurisdictional@d in the County of Multhomah in the State oégan and all parties hereto hereby submit to t
personal jurisdiction of such court for purposesamj such action or procedure.

5.4  Arbitration. The parties agree to submit any dispute arisimgtithis Agreement to final, binding, private &dtion in Portland, Oregc
This includes not only disputes about the meaningesformance of the Agreement, but disputes alisutegotiation, drafting, or execution. The dig
will be determined by a single arbitrator in ac@rde with the theexisting rules of arbitration procedure of Multndim@ounty, Oregon Circuit Cou
except that there shall be no right of de novoawvin Circuit Court and the arbitrator may charge dr her standard arbitration fees rather thanfebe
prescribed in the Multnomah County Circuit Courbitation procedures. The proceeding will be comeeenby the filing of a civil complaint
Multnomah County Circuit Court and a simultaneceguest for transfer to arbitration. The partiesregsly agree that they may choose an arbitratoris
not on the list provided by the Multhomah Countyc@it Court Arbitration Department, but if they areable to agree upon the single arbitrator withi
days of receipt of the Arbitration Department ligtey will ask the Arbitration Department to make tselection for them. The arbitrator will havel
authority to determine all issues, including adiflity, to award any remedy, including permanewanctive relief, and to determine any requestciost:
and expenses in accordance with Section 5.5 ofAgieement. The arbitrat@’award may be reduced to final judgment in MultabnCounty Circu
Court. The complaining party shall bear the arbiraexpenses and may seek their recovery if ivgle Notwithstanding any other provision of -
Agreement, an aggrieved party may seek a tempoestyaining order or preliminary injunction in Modtmah County Circuit Court to preserve the s
quo during the arbitration proceeding.

5.5 Attorney Feedf any suit, action, or proceeding is institutecconnection with any controversy arising outtitAgreement or the
enforcement of any right hereunder, the prevaitiagy will be entitled to recover, in addition tosts, such sums as the court or arbitrator maydgeju
reasonable as attorney fees, including fees orappgal.




5.6 Headingdhe headings of the sections and subsections ofAtipieement are inserted for convenience only &adl 8ot constitute a p:
hereof.

5.7 Entire AgreementThis Agreement and the Plan embody the entire aggat and understanding of the parties hereto ipesof th
subject matter contained herein and supersedegriafl written or oral communications or agreemealisof which are merged herein. There are
restrictions, promises, warranties, covenantsndettakings, other than those expressly set farteferred to herein.

5.8 No WaiverlNo waiver of any provision of this Agreement or amyhts or obligations of any party hereunder shalleffective, exce
pursuant to a written instrument signed by theypartparties waiving compliance, and any such washall be effective only in the specific instareel fo
the specific purpose stated in such writing.

5.9 Severability of Provision#n the event that any provision hereof is foundaiid/ or unenforceable pursuant to judicial decreéexision
the remainder of this Agreement shall remain valtid enforceable according to its terms.

5.10 Incorporation by Reference,t& The provisions of the Plan are hereby incorpordiectin by reference. Except as otherwise set
herein, this Agreement shall be construed in acmed with the provisions of the Plan and any intggtions, amendments, rules and regula
promulgated by the Committee from time to time parg to the Plan. The Committee shall have the &nthority to interpret and construe the Plan tiig
Agreement and to make any and all determinatiomeruthem, and its decision shall be final, bindamgl conclusive upon Recipient and his or her
representative in respect to any questions arigimugr the Plan or this Agreement.

5.11 NoticeAll notices or other communications pursuant te tAgreement shall be in writing and shall be deenhdlgt given if delivere
personally or by courier service, or if mailed bsrtdfied mail, return receipt requested, prepaid addressed to the Company executive offices t
attention of the Corporate Secretary, or if to Regit, to the address maintained by the persoremniment, or such other address as such partyhsiva
furnished to the other party in writing.

5.12 Acceptance of Agreemehinless Recipient notifies the Corporate Secretamyriting within 14 days after the Date of GrarattifRecipier
does not wish to accept this Agreement, Recipiethbe deemed to have accepted this Agreement alhtevbound by the terms of this Agreement anc
Plan.

5.13 No Right of Employmenhothing contained in the Plan or this Agreementidf@construed as giving Recipient any right taé®@ined, i
any position, as an employee of the Company orSamsidiary.
Recipient and the Company have executed this Ageaeaffective as of the Grant Date.




RECIPIENT

Signature

Type or Print
Name:

Social Security
Number:

COMPANY LITHIA MOTORS, INC

By:
Chris Holzshu, CF

* Please take the time to read and understand thidgreement. If you have any specific questions or doeot fully understand any of the provisions
please contact Larissa McAlister in writing.



Exhibit 10-23
AMENDMENT TO

TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TO TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (ih “Amendment”),is dated as of April ___, 2013, and is entered by
and among Lithia Motors, Inc., an Oregon corporatfthe “Employer”), and Brad Gray (the “Executivegnd it amends the Terms of Employn
Agreement entered into by and between the partiddarch 1, 2012.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Employer and Executive agrefelisvs:

1. ATWill Employment. Nothing in this Amendment or the Agreement, agraed by this Amendment (the “Agreement”), altexedtitive’s “At-
Will” employment status. The employment of Execatby Employer is “At Will” and Executive’'s employmiemay be terminated at any time for any
lawful reason or for no reason at all.

2. DefinitionsThe parties agree to change the definitions fou4ea and “Good Reason” in the Agreement as follows.

@ “Cause” for termination of employment means any one or nafrihe following: (i) willful misfeasance, grosggligence, or condu
involving dishonesty in the performance of Execeivduties, as determined by the board of directbEmployer; (ii) conviction of a crime in conneat
with Executives duties, or of any felony; (iii) conduct signifity harmful to Employer, as reasonably determibgdhe Boards of Directors, including |
not limited to intentional violation of law or ofig significant policy or procedure of Employer;)(refusal or failure to act in accordance withipidation
requirement, or directive of the Boards of Direst@urovided such directive is lawful); or (v) faiuto faithfully or diligently perform any of theutles o
Executive’s employment which are specified in tAgreement, articulated by the board of directorsa@ usual and customary duties of Execusive
employment, if Executive has not corrected the fembor formulated a plan for its correction witletBoard (if such failure is not susceptible to inliaée
correction) within 30 days after notice to Execativ

(b) “Good Reasori for Executive’s resignation means (i) any onenwore of the following occurs without Executigetonsent: (1)
material diminution of Executive’base compensation (unless consistent with asstiie board pay reduction for all senior managéieeth not in exce
of 20%); (2) a material change in the geographiation at which Executive must perform servicesHoployer; (3) a material diminution in Executige’
authority, duties or responsibilities, or (4) amgtien or inaction by Employer that constitutes aerial breach of this Agreement; (ii) Executive yid®es
notice to Employer of the existence of the conditiathin 90 days of the initial existence of thenddion; (iii) Employer has 30 days following repeiof
such notice to remedy the condition and fails t@dpand (iv) Executive resigns within twelve mantti such event occurring.

3. Change in Service Dafnployer and Executive agree that the “Change imiGeDate” under the Agreement shall be March2g1L6.

4, New RoleEmployer and Executive agree that, starting Septerhp2014, Executive’s new title with Employer kba “Consultant” and
Executive’s compensation will be reduced to $5,8080nth ($60,000 annually), and starting Janua@015, Executive will no longer be eligible for
variable compensation Executive, however, shalimehe following benefits at the same level athefdate of this Amendment until the Change in 8erv
Date: vehicle allowance, cell phone allowance, langd term care insurance premiums paid by the Eyepl¢f desired by Executive). For the avoidance of
doubt, the changes in Executive’s role and compemsdescribed in this paragraph 4 do not constit®ood Reason” for Executive’s resignation.




5. Employer and Executive further agies neither Employer or Executive has made anynaibment to the other after the Change in Servicte!
If the parties so choose, they may reach an agmeeoneemployment after the Change in Service Omieneither party is obligated to do so.

6. Compensation Packag&mployer and Executive agree to DELETE Compens&®uxrkage 1 on Exhibit A, and REPLACE as follows:

e |f Executive remains employed with Employer throdlgh Change in Service Da

o All stock options outstanding as of August 31, 2044 vest as currently described in the applicadleards through the Change in Ser
Date, any amounts unvested as of the Change inc8evate will fully vest on March 31, 201

o All Long term deferred compensation outstandingpfdugust 31, 2014 will vest as currently scheduledugh the Change in Serv
Date, any amounts unvested as of the Change inc8dpate will fully vest on March 31, 2016; a

0 Allunvested RSU grants outstanding as August 8142vill vest as currently scheduled through thar@e in Service Date, any amot
unvested as of the Change in Service Date wily fuilst on March 31, 201

7. Compensation Packag&ployer and Executive agree to DELETE Compensa&iekage 2 on Exhibit A, and REPLACE as follows

e Employer and Executive agree that, if Employer teates Executiv's employment withou“Caus” or Executive resigns wit“Good Reasc”
anytime on or before the Change in Service Dat Hxecutive will be entitled to the following coemsation in addition to all other compense
received:

0 Remainder of Base compensation that would have éaered through the Change in Service C

o Variable compensation (if any) will be calcuthfgorata through the date of termination, and suchatégi compensation amount will
paid out (if any is paid out) on the day Lithia payut such compensation to other executi

o Long term care insurance premiums paid througiCtenge in Service Dat

o0 Remainder of vehicle allowance to continue throtighChange in Service Da

0 Allunvested Stock Options will vest (or not veas$)currently described in the applicable aws
o Allunvested Long term deferred compensation wetvas of the date of terminatic

o Executive will forfeit all unvested RSU grants, hewer, Executive will receive the value of such wsted grants in a lump sum payrr
to be paid out at or around thirty (30) days frdma tlate of terminatio

8. Resignation without Good Reasone@miination for Causd-or the avoidance of doubt, if Executive resignthuit Good Reason anytime bel
the Change in Service Date, and/or if Employer teates Executive with Cause before the Change mi&eDate, then Executive shall not rec
Compensation Package 1 or Compensation Package 2hall only receive the compensation due andedahrough the date of such termination.

9. Reaffirmation of Agreemeriimployer and Executive agree that, except as esigrasodified by this Amendment, all other termstire
Agreement remain valid and enforceable.




10. Advice of CounselExecutive acknowledges that, in executing this ANTBRENT, Executive has had the opportunity to seek dldvice ¢
independent legal counsel, and has read and uaddratl of the terms and provisions of this AMENDME This AMENDMENT shall not be constru
against any party be reason of the drafting orgmaon hereof.

11. Entire AgreementThis Agreement represents the entire agreemdnteba the parties regarding the subject matterofiek#here there is
conflict between this Agreement and the Execusiveahployee handbook or code, the terms of this ékgent shall govern. This Agreement supersede
other prior oral or written employment agreemeriMeen the parties on the subject matter hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed thiseggent effective on the day and year first aborttem.

EXECUTIVE: LITHIA MOTORS, INC.

Brad Gray Bryan DeBoer



EXHIBIT 12

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES
The following table shows the ratio of earningstonbined fixed charges for us and our consolidatdxidiaries for the dates indicated.

(Dollars in Thousands)
Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Earnings

Income from continuing operations

before income taxes $ 165,78¢ $ 128,45 $ 88,27( $ 22,21: $ 11,57¢

Fixed charges 25,82( 27,38 26,86¢ 29,401 30,947

Amortization of capitalized interest 28C 27¢ 27C 26¢ 25¢€

Capitalized interest (85) (299 (16%) - (916)
Total earnings $ 191,80: $ 155,82( $ 115,24; $ 51,88 $ 41,86"
Fixed Charges

Floor plan interest expense $ 12,37 $ 12,81¢ $ 10,36« $ 10,15 $ 10,58:

Other interest expensd 8,35( 9,621 12,87¢ 14,52: 13,84¢

Capitalized interest costs 85 294 162 = 91¢€

Interest component of rent expense 5,012 4,65( 3,461 4,72% 5,60¢
Total fixed charges $ 25,82( $ 27,38. $ 26,86t $ 29,40 $ 30,941
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 7.4% 5.7x 4.3x 1.8x 1.4x

(1) Other interest expense includes amortization of tsliance cos’

For purposes of these ratios, “earnings” consish@dme from continuing operations before incomesaand fixed charges, and “fixed chargesfisist o
interest expense on indebtedness and the intenegianent of rental expense, and amortization of disbount and issuance expenses.

We did not have any preferred stock outstandingHemeriods presented above, and therefore tios @ftearnings to combined fixed charges and pret
stock dividends would be the same as the rati@anfings to combined fixed charges presented above.



LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

EXHIBIT 21

STATE OF ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME(S)
NAME OF ENTITY (1) ORIGIN (if different than entity name)
Lithia of Anchorage, Inc. Alaska Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Anchorage
Lithia Value Autos
Lithia Imports of Anchorage, Inc. Alaska Lithia Hyundai of Anchorage
Lithia Kia of Anchorage
Lithia Anchorage Auto Body
Lithia of Fairbanks, Inc. Alaska Chevrolet of Fairbanks
Chevrolet Buick GMC of Fairbanks
Lithia NA, Inc. Alaska BMW of Anchorage
Mini of Anchorage
Lithia of South Central AK, Inc. Alaska Chevrolet of South Anchorage
Chevrolet of Wasilla
Saab of South Anchorage
Lithia of Wasilla, LLC Alaska
Lithia CIMR, Inc. California Lithia Chevrolet of Redding
Lithia of Eureka, Inc. California Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Eureka
Lithia of Lodi, Inc. California Lodi Toyota
Lodi Scion
Lithia of Stockton, Inc. California Nissan of Stockton,
Kia of Stockton
Lithia of Stockton-V, Inc. California Volkswagen of Stockton
Lithia of Walnut Creek, Inc. California Diablo Subaru of Walnut Creek
Lithia FMF, Inc. California Lithia Ford of Fresno
Lithia Ford Lincoln of Fresno
Lithia Fresno, Inc. California Lithia Subaru of Fresno
Fresno Mitsubishi
Lithia JEF, Inc. California Lithia Hyundai of Fresno
Lithia MMF, Inc. California Lithia Mazda of Fresno
Lithia Suzuki of Fresno
Lithia NF, Inc. California Lithia Nissan of Fresno
Lithia of Santa Rosa, Inc. California Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Santa Rosa
Lithia Sea P, Inc. California Porsche of Monterey
Lithia Seaside, Inc. California BMW of Monterey
Lithia TR, Inc. California Lithia Toyota of Redding
Lithia Scion of Redding
Lithia VF, Inc. California Volvo of Fresno




Lithia of Maui-H, LLC Hawaii Island Honda
Island Auto Center
Lithia Ford of Boise, Inc. Idaho Lithia Ford of Boise
Lithia Ford Lincoln of Boise
Auto Credit of Idaho
Lithia Body & Paint of Boise
Lithia of Pocatello, Inc. Idaho Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Pocatello
Lithia Hyundai of Pocatello
Lithia Dodge Trucks of Pocatello
Lithia Poca-Hon, Inc. Idaho Honda of Pocatello
Lithia CCTF, Inc. Idaho Chevrolet of Twin Falls
Lithia of TF, Inc. Idaho Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Twin Falls
Lithia AcDM, Inc. lowa Acura of Johnston
Lithia Body and Paint of Des Moines
Lithia HDM, Inc. lowa Honda of Ames
Lithia MBDM, Inc. lowa Mercedes Benz of Des Moines
European Motorcars Des Moines
Lithia NDM, Inc. lowa Lithia Nissan of Ames
Lithia of Des Moines, Inc. lowa BMW of Des Moines
European Motorcars Des Moines
Lithia VAuDM, Inc. lowa Audi Des Moines
Lithia Volkswagen of Des Moines
Lithia of Billings, Inc. Montana Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Billings
Lithia of Billings Il, LLC Montana Lithia Toyota of Billings
Lithia Scion of Billings
Lithia of Missoula, Inc. Montana Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Missoula
Lithia Auto Center of Missoula
Lithia of Missoula ll, LLC Montana Lithia Toyota of Missoula
Lithia Scion of Missoula
Lithia CDH, Inc. Montana Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Helena
Lithia HGF, Inc. Montana Honda of Great Falls
Lithia of Great Falls, Inc. Montana Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Great Falls
Lithia of Helena, Inc. Montana Chevrolet of Helena
Lithia SALMIR, Inc. Nevada Lithia Volkswagen of Reno
Lithia Hyundai of Reno
Lithia Chrysler Jeep of Reno
Lithia Reno Sub-Hyun, Inc. Nevada Lithia Reno Subaru
Lithia Body & Paint
LDLC, LLC New Mexico Lithia Dodge of Las Cruces
Lithia CIDSF, Inc. New Mexico Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Santa Fe




Lithia ND Acquisition Corp. #:

North Dakote

Lithia Ford Lincoln of Grand Fork

Lithia ND Acquisition Corp. #:

North Dakote

Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Grand Fo

Lithia ND Acquisition Corp. #:

North Dakote

Lithia Toyota of Grand Forks
Lithia Scion of Grand Forks
Lithia Toyota Scion of Grand Forks

LAD Advertising, Inc. Oregon LAD Advertising
LAD Printing
The Print Shop at the Commons
The Print Shop
Lithia Aircraft, Inc. Oregon
Lithia Auto Services, Inc. Oregon Lithia Body & Paint
Assured Dealer Servic
Lithia Financial Corporatio Oregon Lithia Leasing
Lithia Real Estate, In Oregon
Lithia Motors Support Services, Ir Oregon
Lithia MTLM, LLC Oregon Lithia Toyota
Lithia Scion
Lithia Toyota Scion
LGPAC, Inc. Oregon Lithia’'s Grants Pass Auto Center
Lithia DM, Inc. Oregon Lithia Dodge
Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge
Xpress Lube
Lithia HPI, Inc. Oregon
Lithia DE, Inc. Oregon Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Eugene
Lithia BNM, Inc. Oregon
Hutchins Imported Motors, Inc. Oregon Lithia Toyota of Springfield
Lithia Scion of Springfield
Lithia Toyota Scion of Springfield
Hutchins Eugene Nissan, Inc. Oregon Lithia Nissan of Eugene
Lithia Klamath, Inc. Oregon Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Klamath Falls
Lithia Toyota of Klamath Falls
Lithia Scion of Klamath Falls
Lithia Klamath Falls Auto Center
Lithia SOC, Inc. Oregon Lithia Subaru of Oregon City
Lithia of Roseburg, Inc. Oregon Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Roseburg
Lithia Roseburg Auto Center
Lithia Rose-FT, Inc. Oregon Lithia Ford Lincoln of Roseburg
Lithia Medford Hon, Inc. Oregon Lithia Honda
Lithia of Bend #1, LLC Oregon Bend Honda

Lithia of Bend #2, LLC

Oregon

Chevrolet Cadillac of Bend




Lithia of Eugene, LLC Oregon Lithia FIAT of Eugene
LMBB, LLC Oregon Mercedes-Benz of Beaverton
LMBP, LLC Oregon Mercedes-Benz of Portland
LMBW, Inc. Oregon Mercedes-Benz of Wilsonville
LMOP, LLC Oregon MINI of Portland
LBMP, LLC Oregon BMW Portland
LFKF, LLC Oregon Lithia Ford of Klamath Falls
LSTAR, LLC Oregon
Salem-B, LLC Oregon BMW of Salem
Salem-H, LLC Oregon Honda of Salem
Salem-V, LLC Oregon Volkswagen of Salem
Southern Cascades Finance Corporation Oregon
Lithia Bryan Texas, Inc. Texas Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Bryan College Station
Lithia CIDSA, Inc. Texas All American Chrysler Jeep Dodge of San Angelo
Lithia CSA, Inc. Texas All American Chevrolet of San Angelo
Lithia NSA, Inc. Texas Honda of San Angelo
All American Autoplex
Lithia CJDO, Inc. Texas All American Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Odessa
Lithia DMID, Inc. Texas All American Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Midland
Lithia CO, Inc. Texas All American Chevrolet of Odessa
Lithia CM, Inc. Texas All American Chevrolet of Midland
Lithia HMID, Inc. Texas Hyundai of Odessa
Lithia TO, Inc. Texas Lithia Toyota of Odessa
Lithia Scion of Odessa
Lithia of Abilene, Inc. Texas Honda of Abilene
Lithia of Corpus Christi, Inc. Texas Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Corpus Christi
Lithia of Killeen, LLC Texas All American Chevrolet of Killeen
Lithia of Midland, Inc. Texas Honda of Midland
Lithia TA, Inc. Texas Lithia Toyota of Abilene
Lithia Scion of Abilene
Lithia of Texas, Inc. Texas
Camp Automotive, Inc. Washington Camp BMW
Camp Chevrolet
Subaru of Spokane
Camp Cadillac
Lithia Dodge of Tri-Cities, Inc. Washington Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Tri-Cities
Lithia of Bellingham, LLC Washington Chevrolet Cadillac of Bellingham

Lithia of Seattle, Inc.

Washington

BMW Seattle




Lithia of Spokane, Inc. Washington Mercedes Benz of Spokane
Lithia FBCS, LLC Texas Fiat of Bryan College Station
Lithia of Clear Lake, LLC Texas

Lithia of Honolulu-V, LLC Hawaii

Lithia of Honolulu-BGMCC, LLC Hawaii

Lithia Community Development Company, Inc| Oregon

(1) Unless specifically noted to the contray entities are wholly owned subsidiaries of Lathlotors, Inc.




EXHIBIT 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Lithia Motors, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrdggstration statement (Nos. 333-190192, 333-43333-69169, 333-156410, 333-39092, &aB02
333-106686, 333-116839, 333-116840, 333-135350,183590 and 333-168737) on Forms S-8 and registratiatement (No. 333-182913) on Forr3 S-
of Lithia Motors, Inc. of our reports dated Febgudf, 2014, with respect to the Consolidated BaaBheets of Lithia Motors, Inc. and subsidiariesf
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related Cdasedi Statements of Operations, Comprehensive lacQinanges in Stockholdefsguity and Cas
Flows for each of the years in the thgemar period ended December 31, 2013, and the ieffeesss of internal control over financial repagtias o
December 31, 2013, which reports appear in the Mbee 31, 2013 annual report on Form 10-K of Litkiators, Inc.

Our report on the effectiveness of internal contrnedr financial reporting as of December 31, 2046tains an explanatory paragraph that states hia
gross percentage of total assets and revenue feensacquisitions excluded from managengassessment of the effectiveness of internal aoatel
financial reporting as of and for the year endedddeber 31, 2013 is approximately 3% and 2% of hitliotors, Inc.'s consolidated total assets
revenues, respectively. Our audit of internal aaniwer financial reporting also excluded an evidwaof the internal control over financial repadi of
these seven acquisitions

/sl KPMG LLP

Portland, Oregon
February 21, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR RULE 15d-14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Bryan B. DeBoer, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKithia Motors, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordain untrue statement of a material fact or omistate a material fact necessary to mak
statements made, in light of the circumstancesunwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, aiher financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects
financial condition, results of operations and ci@lvs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contavid procedures (as defined in Exchs
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobrover financial reporting (as defined in ExchanAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 18df)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under our supervision, to er
that material information relating to the registrancluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is midewn to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this rep@ateing preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed under our supervi
to provide reasonable assurance regarding thebiléieof financial reporting and the preparatiohfmancial statements for external purpose
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsaditsclosure controls and procedures and presentbi report our conclusions about the effectesn
of the disclosure controls and procedures, aseétid of the period covered by this report basesligh evaluation; ar

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’s most refisnal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethie case of an annual report) that has materifttgt@d, or is reasonably likely to materially affe
the registrar's internal control over financial reporting; ¢

5. The registran$’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @brdver financial reporting, to tl
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons perfiog the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which are reasona
likely to adversely affect the registr’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéatn the registra’s internal control ove
financial reporting

Date: February 21, 2014

/s/ Bryan B. DeBoer

Bryan B. DeBoer

President and Chief Executive Officer
Lithia Motors, Inc.




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR RULE 15d-14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Christopher S. Holzshu, certify that:

=

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKithia Motors, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordgain untrue statement of a material fact or omistatte a material fact necessary to mak
statements made, in light of the circumstancesumbeh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, aiher financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects
financial condition, results of operations and ci@lvs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registran other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defined in Exchz
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobrover financial reporting (as defined in ExcganAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 13d5(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduttes tiesigned under our supervision, to er
that material information relating to the registrancluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is mkdewn to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this rep@being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed under our supervi
to provide reasonable assurance regarding thebilédiaof financial reporting and the preparatiohfmancial statements for external purpose
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslaiisire controls and procedures and presentedsineghort our conclusions about the effectiver
of the disclosure controls and procedures, aseoétid of the period covered by this report basesligh evaluation; ar

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regit’s internal control over financial reporting thatoed during the registre’s most recent fisci
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethia case of an annual report) that has materifftbgted, or is reasonably likely to materially affe
the registrant's internal control over financigdoging; anc

5. The registran$’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @brdver financial reporting, to tl

registrant's auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons perfiog the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registr’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmancial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inxed management or other employees who have aisagttifole in the registrarst’internal control ove
financial reporting

Date: February 21, 2014

[s/ Christopher S. Holzshu

Christopher S. Holzshu

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer &wtretary
Lithia Motors, Inc.




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR RULE 15d-14(b)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 AND 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

In connection with the Annual Report of Lithia Mo Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-for the year ended December 31, 2013 as filedh Wit
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateh@he “Report”),l, Bryan B. DeBoer, President and Chief Executiféd®r of the Company, certif
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursadn®06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejurements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Redairly presents, in all material respects, timamcial condition and results of operations of @mmpany.

/s/ Bryan B. DeBoer

Bryan B. DeBoer

President and Chief Executive Officer
Lithia Motors, Inc.

February 21, 2014




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR RULE 15d-14(b)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 AND 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

In connection with the Annual Report of Lithia Mo Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yemrded December 31, 2053 filed with ths
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateohéitee “Report”),l, Christopher S. Holzshu, Senior Vice Presidertje€Financial Officer an
Secretary of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18.0. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 ofaheaBes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejuerements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and results of operations of @wmpany.

[s/ Christopher S. Holzshu

Christopher S. Holzshu

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer &wtretary
Lithia Motors, Inc.

February 21, 2014




